
AGENDA

G Ŵ Y S  Y  C Y N G O R

At holl aelodau'r cyngor

Rydych dan wŷs trwy hyn i ddod i

GYFARFOD Y CYNGOR

i'w gynnal am 2.00 pm 

DYDD MERCHER, 29 IONAWR 2020 

yn 

Siambr y Cyngor, Canolfan Ddinesig, Port Talbot  

Bydd Caplan y Maer yn dweud gweddi cyn i'r cyfarfod ddechrau. 

--- A G E N D A ---

RHAN A

1. Cyhoeddiadau'r Maer.  

2. Datganiadau o fudd  

3. Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y cyngor a'u cadarnhau os 
ystyrir bod hyn yn addas:  

        Y Flwyddyn Ddinesig 2019/2020   16 Hydref and 27 Tachwedd 2019                                                                              



RHAN B

4. Cynllun Gostyngiadau Treth y Cyngor  (Tudalennau 17 - 30)
Adroddiad Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Chorfforaethol yn 
amgaeëdig
 

5. Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Castell-nedd Port Talbot 2011-2026  
(Tudalennau 31 - 138)
Adroddiad Pennaeth Cynllunio a Diogelu’r Cyhoedd yn amgaeëdig
 

6. Pwyllgor Safonau Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot 
- Aelod o'r Cyngor Tref/Cymuned  (Tudalennau 139 - 144)
Adroddiad Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol yn amgaeëdig

7. Newidiadau i'r Cylch Cyfarfodydd  (Tudalennau 145 - 146)
Adroddiad y Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol a’r Prif Swyddog Digidol 
yn amgaeëdig
 

RHAN C

8. Derbyn y canlynol ac unrhyw gwestiynau a godir gan yr aelodau, 
neu unrhyw faterion sydd i'w codi gan Aelodau’r Cabinet:-  
(Tudalennau 147 - 174)

      Cofnod o benderfyniadau gweithredol y Cabinet a Byrddau'r Cabinet.

RHAN D

9. Derbyn unrhyw gwestiynau gan aelodau, gyda hysbysiad, dan Reol 
9.2 Rheolau Gweithdrefnau'r cyngor.  

10. Eitemau brys  
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag
adran 100B (4) (b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

Prif Weithredwr



CANOLFAN DDINESIG, 
PORT TALBOT

Dydd Iau, 23 Ionawr 2020



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



- 1 -

Dydd Mercher, 16 Hydref 2019

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Mercher, 16 Hydref 2019

Y Dirprwy Faer Councillor J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, 
C.Clement-Williams, M.Crowley, S.apDafydd, 
A.P.H.Davies, N.J.E.Davies, C.Edwards, 
S.E.Freeguard, C.Galsworthy, W.F.Griffiths, 
J.Hale, S.Harris, M.Harvey, N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, 
J.Hurley, C.James, H.N.James, C.J.Jones, 
D.Jones, H.Jones, L.Jones, R.G.Jones, 
D.Keogh, S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, A.Llewelyn, 
A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, J.Miller, S.Miller, 
R.Mizen, J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison, S.M.Penry, 
D.M.Peters, M.Protheroe, L.M.Purcell, 
S.Pursey, S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees, S.Renkes, 
A.J.Richards, P.D.Richards, A.J.Taylor, 
R.L.Taylor, D.Whitelock, C.Williams, 
A.Wingrave, R.W.Wood a/ac A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

A.Evans, C.Griffiths, A.Jarrett, H.Jenkins, 
K.Jones, A.Manchipp, N.Pearce a/ac S.Phillips

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Present

1. CYHOEDDIADAU'R MAER. 

Roedd yn bleser gan y Maer gyhoeddi bod Gaynor Richards MBE 
wedi'i phenodi'n Ddirprwy Arglwydd Raglaw, yn effeithiol o 11 Medi 
2019.

2. DERBYN COFNODION CYFARFOD BLAENOROL Y CYNGOR A'U 
CADARNHAU OS YSTYRIR BOD HYN YN ADDAS: 

PENDERFYNWYD:    Cadarnhau cofnodion cyfarfod y cyngor    
gynhaliwyd ar 4 Medi 2019 fel cofnod cywir.

Tudalen5

Atodiad i’r Agenda



- 2 -

Dydd Mercher, 16 Hydref 2019

                
                           

3. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYNLLUN CORFFORAETHOL 2018-
22 (ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD LLAWN) AR GYFER CYFNOD: 1 
EBRILL 2018 I 31 MAWRTH 2019 
 
Cyflwynodd Arweinydd y Cyngor Adroddiad Blynyddol Cynllun 
Corfforaethol 2018-2022 a gyflwynwyd i'r cyngor gan y Cabinet ar 2 
Hydref 2019.  Roedd yr adroddiad yn canolbwyntio ar y cynnydd a 
wnaed yn erbyn 3 amcan lles yr awdurdod a fanylwyd yng Nghynllun 
Corfforaethol "Llunio CNPT".

Roedd yn bleser nodi bod mwyafrif y camau gweithredu ar y trywydd 
cywir a bod staff wedi ymdrin â phethau megis tirlithriadau etc.  
Roedd y perfformiad wedi'i gynnal yn y rhan fwyaf o ardaloedd, oedd 
yn gyflawniad sylweddol o ystyried y toriadau i adnoddau dynol ac 
ariannol. 

Yn ogystal, lle nodwyd bod perfformiad wedi disgyn, roedd mesurau 
ar waith i fynd i'r afael â hyn a byddai'r rhain yn cael eu monitro dros 
weddill cyfnod y flwyddyn ariannol.

Aeth yr Arweinydd ati i amlygu prif gyflawniadau'r awdurdod a oedd 
yn cynnwys cwblhau cam cyntaf Rhaglen Gwella Ysgolion yr 21ain 
Ganrif a gwaith y Grŵp Digwyddiadau Tyngedfennol mewn perthynas 
ag ymddygiad gwrthgymdeithasol a chamddefnyddio sylweddau.  
Roedd y rhain yn erbyn y mesurau cyni a osodwyd gan y cyngor, sef 
llai o gyllideb a staff.  Cefnogwyd hyn gan yr aelodau a oedd wedi 
crybwyll y canlynol:

Mewn perthynas ag Amcan Lles 3, mynegwyd pryder ynghylch nad 
oedd trafnidiaeth yn gwella, yn enwedig yn ardaloedd y cwm ac 
efallai y bydd Rhaglen Bargen Ddinesig Bae Abertawe'n darparu cyfle 
i fynd i'r afael â hyn.  Nodwyd eu bod yn aros am gyhoeddiad mewn 
perthynas â dadreoli bysus. 

PENDERFYNWYD:      Cymeradwyo Adroddiad Blynyddol Cynllun  
Corfforaethol 2018-2022 fel a nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd.            

Tudalen6



- 3 -

Dydd Mercher, 16 Hydref 2019

4. DIWYGIADAU I AMSERLEN CYFARFODYDD 2019/20 A 
NEWIDIADAU I AELODAETH PWYLLGORAU A CHYRFF 
ALLANOL 

PENDERFYNWYD:    1.  Canslo'r Pwyllgorau Personél ar gyfer 21   
Hydref 2019, 13 Ionawr a 6 Ebrill 2020;

                                      2.  Cynnal cyfarfodydd Pwyllgor Craffu/Bwrdd 
Cabinet Gofal Cymdeithasol, Iechyd a Lles bob pedair wythnos o 1 
Ionawr 2020;

                             3. Y Cynghorydd S Renkes i gymryd lle'r
Cynghorydd A Aubrey ar y Pwyllgor Cynllunio;

                                             4. Y Cynghorydd S Renkes i gymryd lle'r    
Cynghorydd A Aubrey ar y Pwyllgor Archwilio;

                                            5. Y Cynghorydd D Keogh i gymryd lle'r 
Cynghorydd S M Penry ar Awdurdod Iechyd Porthladd Bae Abertawe.

5. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR ARCHWILIO 

PENDERFYNWYD: Dylid nodi'r adroddiad.

6. DERBYN Y CANLYNOL AC UNRHYW GWESTIYNAU A OFYNNIR 
GAN YR AELODAU, NEU UNRHYW FATERION SYDD I'W CODI 
GAN AELODAU’R CABINET:- 

PENDERFYNWYD: Nodi'r canlynol:

Cabinet 31 Gorffennaf 2019 
Addysg, Sgiliau a Diwylliant 10 Gorffennaf 2019 
Strydlun a Pheirianneg 20 Medi 2019 
Adfywio a Datblygu Cynaliadwy

                                     CHAIRPERSON
 6 Medi 2019 

Tudalen7



- 4 -

Dydd Mercher, 16 Hydref 2019 Tudalen8



- 1 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

CYNGOR

(CANOLFAN DDINESIG PORT TALBOT) 

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

Y Dirprwy Faer Cynghorwyr J.Warman

Cynghorwyr: A.R.Aubrey, S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, H.C.Clarke, 
C.Clement-Williams, S.apDafydd, A.P.H.Davies, 
N.J.E.Davies, O.S.Davies, R.Davies, 
C.Edwards, J.Evans, S.E.Freeguard, 
W.F.Griffiths, S.Harris, N.T.Hunt, S.K.Hunt, 
H.N.James, C.J.Jones, D.Jones, H.Jones, 
J.Jones, L.Jones, R.G.Jones, D.Keogh, 
S.A.Knoyle, E.V.Latham, D.Lewis, A.Llewelyn, 
A.R.Lockyer, A.McGrath, J.Miller, R.Mizen, 
J.D.Morgan, S.Paddison, S.M.Penry, 
D.M.Peters, R.Phillips, M.Protheroe, 
L.M.Purcell, S.Rahaman, P.A.Rees, S.Renkes, 
A.J.Richards, P.D.Richards, A.J.Taylor, 
D.Whitelock, C.Williams, R.W.Wood a/ac 
A.N.Woolcock

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

A.Evans, C.Furlow-Harris, C.Griffiths, A.Jarrett, 
H.Jenkins, A.Manchipp, G.Nutt, N.Pearce a/ac 
S.Phillips

Cynrychiolwyr o’r 
Gwasanaeth 
Cyfieithu:

Bresennol

1. CYHOEDDIADAU'R MAER. 

Er mawr ofid iddo, dywedodd y Dirprwy Faer wrth y cyngor bu'r cyn-
gynghorwyr Glyn Rawlings, a oedd yn cynrychioli Ward Glyncorrwg, 
ac Alan Carter, a oedd yn cynrychioli Ward Cimla farw yn ddiweddar. 

Fel arwydd o barch, safodd y cyngor am funud o dawelwch. 

Yna, croesawodd y Dirprwy Faer y Cynghorydd Marcia Spooner i'w 
chyfarfod cyntaf gyda'r cyngor wedi iddi gael ei hethol i gynrychioli 
Ward Rhos. 

Tudalen9



- 2 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDD 

Gwnaeth yr aelodau canlynol ddatganiadau o fudd ar ddechrau'r 
cyfarfod:

Y Cynghorydd S Freeguard           Parthed y cyflwyniad gan y Prif 
Swyddog Tân gan ei bod yn 
cynrychioli'r awdurdod ar 
Awdurdod Tân Canolbarth a 
Gorllewin Cymru. 

Y Cynghorydd A Llewelyn              Parthed y cyflwyniad gan y Prif 
Swyddog Tân gan ei fod yn 
cynrychioli'r awdurdod ar 
Awdurdod Tân Canolbarth a 
Gorllewin Cymru. 

 
Y Cynghorydd A N Woolcock         Parthed y cyflwyniad gan y Prif 

Swyddog Tân gan ei fod yn 
cynrychioli'r awdurdod ar 
Awdurdod Tân Canolbarth a 
Gorllewin Cymru. 

3. CYFLWYNIAD GAN Y PRIF SWYDDOG TÂN 

Croesawodd y Dirprwy Faer y Prif Swyddog Tân, Chris Davies a'r 
Rheolwr Ardal, Peter Greenslade, o Awdurdod Tân ac Achub 
Canolbarth a Gorllewin Cymru, i'w cyfarfod blynyddol â'r cyngor. 

Nododd y cyngor y sefyllfa bresennol o ran Papur Gwyn Llywodraeth 
Cymru, a nodwyd bod yr ymgynghoriad wedi cau ym mis Chwefror 
2019. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru'n dadansoddi'r ymatebion a 
dderbyniwyd ar hyn o bryd.  

Amlinellodd y Prif Swyddog Tân sefyllfa ariannol bresennol yr 
Awdurdod Tân, a nodwyd yn benodol na fyddai unrhyw doriadau yn y 
dyfodol yn arbedion effeithlonrwydd, yn hytrach byddant yn cael 
effaith negyddol ar ddarpariaeth y gwasanaeth. Amlinellodd Mr 
Davies opsiynau amrywiol y byddai'n cael eu hystyried yn ystod 
rownd y gyllideb yn 2020/21. Nodwyd manylion y cais am godiad 
cyflog ar gyfer 2020-2021. Mae'n bosib y bydd y rhain yn effeithio'n 
sylweddol ar gyllidebau. Ynghylch yr arian wrth gefn a gedwir gan yr 

Tudalen10



- 3 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

Awdurdod Tân ar hyn o bryd, nodwyd ei fod yn cyfateb ag 1.5% o'r 
gyllideb, sydd o dan y 3% a nodwyd fel arfer da gan CIPFA. 

Nododd aelodau'r digwyddiadau a'r heriau gweithredol sy'n wynebu'r 
Awdurdod Tân. Dywedodd Mr Davies y byddai cylch gwaith yr 
Archwiliadau Diogelwch Rhag Tân yn cael ei ehangu i gynnwys 
Iechyd a Lles a byddai swyddogion tân yna'n cysylltu â swyddogion 
perthnasol o'r awdurdod os bydd angen. 

Nodwyd manylion yr ymatebion i Arolwg Barn y Cyhoedd, yn benodol 
y farn bod y gwasanaeth yn darparu gwerth am arian. 

Yn dilyn y cyflwyniad uchod, cododd aelodau'r materion canlynol:- 

 A oedd yr Awdurdod Iechyd wedi ad-dalu'r Awdurdod Tân am ei 
waith fel cyd-ymatebwyr.  Cadarnhawyd bod cytundeb adfer y gost ar 
waith. 

 Gofynnodd yr aelodau a ddylai'r prydlesau rhad sydd eisoes yn bodoli 
cael eu disodli gan brydlesi cyfradd y farchnad?  Mewn ymateb, 
dywedodd Mr Davies fod y sefyllfaoedd yn cael eu hadolygu'n 
flynyddol. 

 Gofynnodd aelodau faint o amser a dreuliwyd fel cyd-ymatebwyr a 
dywedwyd wrthynt ei fod yn cyfateb i tua 16% o alwadau coch 
ambiwlansiau, sy'n hydrin. 

 Gofynnodd aelodau ar bad adeg y byddai Gorsaf Dân Castell-nedd 
dan fygythiad o gael ei israddio, a dywedwyd wrthynt fod Gorsafoedd 
Tân Castell-nedd a Phort Talbot wedi cael eu hasesu gyda'r bwriad i 
adeiladu gorsaf dân newydd ym Maglan yn lle'r ddwy orsaf dân, ond 
nid yw hwn yn cael ei ddatblygu ar hyn o bryd. 

 Roedd aelodau'n hapus i glywed bod yr Awdurdod Tân wedi cynnig 
lleoedd at ddefnydd cymunedol. 

 Diolchwyd i'r Awdurdod Tân am ei ymateb i'r llifogydd diweddar yn y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol. 

Ar ôl derbyn diolch gan y Dirpwy Faer, gadawodd Mr Davies a Mr 
Greenslade y cyfarfod. 

Tudalen11



- 4 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

4. COFNODION CYFARFOD BLAENOROL Y CYNGOR (BLWYDDYN 
DDINESIG 2019/20) 

PENDERFYNWYD:     Cadarnhau cofnodion cyfarfod y cyngor a 
gynhaliwyd ar 9 Hydref 2019 fel cofnod cywir. 

5. CYFLWYNIAD GAN SAC AR YR ADRODDIAD GWELLIANT 
BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT 

Croesawodd y Dirprwy Faer Alison Lewis, Arweinydd Archwilio 
Perfformiad Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru. 

Roedd aelodau'n hapus i nodi o'r cyflwyniad nad yw'r awdurdod yn 
awdurdod risg uchel a bod ganddo hanes da gan gynnwys arloesedd 
e.e. y Strategaeth Digidol. Yn ogystal â hyn nodwyd bod yr 
Archwilydd Cyffredinol yn teimlo bod yr awdurdod yn debygol o 
gydymffurfio â'r Mesur Llywodraeth Leol.    

Diolchodd y Dirprwy Faer i Alison Lewis am ei chyflwyniad.   

6. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL CYFARWYDDWR Y 
GWASANAETHAU CYMDEITHASOL 

Cyflwynodd Aelod y Cabinet yr adroddiad uchod, a oedd yn edrych 
yn ôl ar y flwyddyn flaenorol. Nodwyd y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei 
gyhoeddi ar wefan yr awdurdod a'i anfon at Lywodraeth Cymru er 
gwybodaeth yn dilyn cyfarfod heddiw. 

Yn dilyn yr uchod, gofynnodd aelodau am waith y cydlynwyr 
ardaloedd ac a oedd digon o allu wrth ehangu eu hardaloedd. 
Atgoffodd y cyfarwyddwr fod hyn yn cyfeirio at y llynedd a bod a 
llwyth gwaith wedi cael ei reoli'n gyfartal ar draws bob rhan o'r 
fwrdeistref sirol. Anogwyd aelodau i gysylltu'n uniongyrchol â'u 
cydlynydd ardal perthnasol. 

Gofynnwyd i'r cyfarwyddwr pa waith sy'n cael ei wneud i gefnogi 
gofalwyr a dywedodd y datblygwyd Strategaeth Gofalwyr at y diben 
hwn ac y byddai'n cael ei hadolygu yn y flwyddyn newydd. 

Tudalen12



- 5 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

PENDERFYNWYD y byddai'r adroddiad yn cael ei nodi.

   
7. CYNLLUN BLYNYDDOL CYFIAWNDER IEUENCTID AC 

YMYRRYD YN GYNNAR CASTELL-NEDD PORT TALBOT 2019-20 

Cyflwynodd Aelod y Cabinet yr adroddiad uchod a dywedodd wrth y 
cyngor mai dyma oedd adroddiad blynyddol cyntaf y gwasanaeth ers 
iddo wahanu oddi wrth yr hen Fae'r Gorllewin. Atgoffwyd aelodau bod 
hwn yn ganlyniad i'r adroddiad arolygu gwrthwynebus a dderbyniwyd 
gan wasanaeth ar y cyd Bae'r Gorllewin. Gwnaed gwelliannau ac 
roedd morâl staff hefyd wedi gwella. Caiff arolygiad o'r gwasanaeth ei 
gynnal ar ddechrau 2020. 

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cynllun Blynyddol  Cyfiawnder 
Ieuenctid ac Ymyrryd yn Gynnar Castell-nedd 
Port Talbot 2019-20, fel y'u cynhwysir yn yr 
adroddiad a gylchredwyd. 

8. RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFNAU CONTRACTAU 

Cyflwynodd Aelod y Cabinet yr adroddiad uchod. 

PENDERFYNWYD: 1.  Nodi'r Rheolau Gweithdrefnau   
                                          Contractau diweddaredig 

fel y'u cynhwysir yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad 
a gylchredwyd ac fel y'u mabwysiadwyd 
gan y Cabinet ar 30 Hydref 2019; 

                          2.  Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i Bennaeth y 
Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol i newid y 
Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau a 
gynhwysir yng Nghyfansoddiad Cyngor 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot ar hyn o bryd i'r 
fersiwn a gynhwysir yn Atodiad 

9. NEWIDIADAU I AELODAETH PWYLLGORAU A CHYRFF 
ALLANOL 

Ystyriodd y cyngor yr adroddiad uchod, yn ogystal â'r adroddiad 
adendwm, a gyflwynwyd yn y cyfarfod. 

PENDERFYNWYD:     Cymeradwyo'r newidiadau canlynol i     

Tudalen13



- 6 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

                                     aelodaeth pob pwyllgor/corff allanol:

 Bydd y Cynghorydd S Knoyle yn cymryd lle'r 
Cynghorydd D Lewis ar y Pwyllgor Craffu Adfywio a 
Datblygu Cynaliadwy; 

 Bydd y Cynghorydd J Warman yn cymryd lle'r 
Cynghorydd A McGrath ar Elusendai Llewelyn Alms; 

 Llenwyd y swydd wag ar y Pwyllgor Cynllunio gan y 
Cynghorydd M Protheroe. 

 
 

10. DATGANIAD GAN ARWEINYDD Y CYNGOR AR FARGEN 
DDINESIG BAE ABERTAWE 

Derbyniodd y cyngor ddatganiad gan Arweinydd y Cyngor ar Fargen 
Ddinesig Bae Abertawe yn unol â'r ymrwymiad a roddwyd yn ystod y 
cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 24 Ebrill 2019. Yn benodol, atgoffwyd y 
cyngor am yr achos busnes newydd - Arloesedd a Thwf Carbon Isel. 

Nododd aelodau'r cynnydd a wnaed wrth gyflwyno'r prosiectau a bod 
llinyn ychwanegol ynghylch trafnidiaeth hefyd yn cael ei ddatblygu. 

Croesawodd aelodau'r diweddaraf gan yr Arweinydd ac roeddent yn 
gobeithio y byddai'r prosiectau'n dechrau'n fuan.   

11. COFNODION CYFARFODYDD BLAENOROL Y CABINET A 
BYRDDAU'R CABINET 

PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r canlynol:

Cabinet                                            25 Medi 2019 
Cabinet                                            2 Hydref 2019
Addysg, Sgiliau a Diwylliant (Ar)     12 Medi 2019
Addysg, Sgiliau a Diwylliant            12 Medi 2019
Strydlun a Pheirianneg                    25 Hydref 2019
Gofal Cymdeithasol, Iechyd a Lles  5 Medi 2019

12. HYSBYSIAD O GYNNIG DAN ADRAN 10 O RAN 4 (RHEOLAU 
GWEITHDREFNAU) CYFANSODDIAD Y CYNGOR A GYNIGIWYD 
GAN Y CYNGHORYDD PADDISON AC A EILIWYD GAN Y 
CYNGHORYDD LLEWELYN.

Tudalen14



- 7 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

 

Derbyniodd Aelodau'r cyngor Hysbysiad o Gynnig dan Adran 10 o 
Ran 4 (Rheolau Gweithdrefnau) Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor, ynghylch y 
defnydd o dân gwyllt. Cynigiwyd y Cynnig gan y Cynghorydd S 
Paddison, ei eilio gan y Cynghorydd Alun Llywelyn, a'i gymeradwyo 
gan Ddirprwy Arweinydd Grŵp y Democratiaid Annibynnol.

PENDERFYNWYD: 1.   Y bydd pob arddangosfa tân gwyllt a 
                                       gynhelir ar dir yr awdurdod lleol ac/neu  
                                       sy'n amodol ar ganiatâd gan yr 
                                       awdurdod lleol yn cael ei hysbysebu cyn 
                                       dyddiad y digwyddiad i alluogi 
                                       perchnogion i ofalu am eu hanifeiliaid a 
                                       phobl ddiamddiffyn;

            2.   Bydd yr awdurdod yn hyrwyddo ymgyrch 
ymwybyddiaeth gyhoeddus am effaith tân 
gwyllt ar les anifeiliaid a phobl ddiamddiffyn - 
gan gynnwys y rhagofalon y gellir eu cymryd 
i liniaru risgiau;

  3.   Bydd yr awdurdod yn ysgrifennu at 
Lywodraeth Cymru i'w hannog i ddefnyddio 
unrhyw ddylanwad sydd ganddi i liniaru 
unrhyw effeithiau negyddol ar anifeiliaid a 
phobl ddiamddiffyn mewn perthynas ag 
arddangosfeydd tân gwyllt;

4.   Bydd yr awdurdod yn ysgrifennu at 
Lywodraeth y DU i'w hannog i gyflwyno 
deddfwriaeth i leihau uchafswm lefelau sŵn 
tân gwyllt i 90dB ar gyfer y rheini sy'n cael eu 
gwerthu i'r cyhoedd am arddangosfeydd 
preifat;                

5.   Bydd yr awdurdod yn annog cyflenwyr tân 
gwyllt lleol i werthu tân gwyllt 'tawelach' ar 
gyfer arddangosfeydd cyhoeddus.

Tudalen15



- 8 -

Dydd Mercher, 27 Tachwedd 2019

13. EITEMAU BRYS 

Gan mai dyma oedd cyfarfod olaf y cyngor byddai Gareth Nutt yn 
mynd iddo fel Cyfarwyddwr yr Amgylchedd. Diolchodd Arweinydd y 
Cyngor iddo am ei gyfraniad, ei waith a'i ymroddiad i'r awdurdod a 
dymunodd ymddeoliad hir, iach a ffyniannus iddo, a chefnogwyd hyn 
gan y Prif Weithredwr ac aelodau'r cyngor. 

CHAIRPERSON

Tudalen16



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL

29 JANUARY 2020

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND 
CORPORATE SERVICES

SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION

WARDS AFFECTED – ALL

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2020/21

Purpose of Report

1. This report sets out the Proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
for 2020/21 which needs to be adopted by Council by 31st January 
2020. It also makes proposals relating to discretionary areas within 
the proposed scheme.

Background

2. Council Tax Benefit was replaced in April 2013 by a Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme more commonly known as Council Tax Support. 

3. As Members are aware the UK Government funding for the scheme 
was reduced by approximately 10% as compared to their funding 
level for the previous Council Tax Benefit Scheme. However, since 
2013/14 the Welsh Government has continued to provide an 
additional £22m on top of its base funding of £222m to enable 
financial support up to 100% of the council tax bill to be made 
available for eligible claimants. 

4. The Welsh Government made regulations for a national scheme for 
Council Tax support.  However, the obligation remains upon the 
Council to adopt a scheme. 

Tudalen17

Eitem yr Agenda4



5. The cost of the Welsh Government scheme currently exceeds the 
£244m funding made available by the Welsh Government with the 
remaining funding requirement having to be built into this Council’s 
budget considerations.

Current Position

6. The current Council Tax Reduction Scheme ends on 31st March 
2020 and a new scheme must be adopted for 1st April 2020.

7. As Members are aware the Council provides Council Tax support to 
circa 17,000 households within the County Borough, of which 
approximately 12,500 receive full support and pay no Council Tax.  
The remaining 4,500 households receive partial support to pay for 
their Council Tax.

8. Although the Local Government Finance Act gives Welsh Ministers 
discretion to allow Welsh local authorities to determine the contents 
of schemes themselves, the Welsh Government have approved an 
extension to the existing national framework for the provision of 
Council Tax Support in Wales.  This is to avoid what has been 
termed a "postcode lottery" whereby eligibility for a Council Tax 
reduction and the size of the Council Tax reduction for particular 
groups could be different in different council areas.  This extension 
provides up to a “100% support scheme” for 2020/21.

9. The Council Tax Reduction Scheme in Wales is set by Regulations 
made under Schedule 1B of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 (as inserted by the Local Government Finance Act 2012).  On 
26th November 2013 the Wales Government approved the Council 
Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements (Wales) 
Regulations 2013 and the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default 
Scheme) (Wales) Regulations 2013.

10. These regulations are further amended for 2020/21 by the Council 
Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and Default 
Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 (“Uprating 
Regulations”).

11. These regulations amend the 2013 CTRS Regulations plus the 
annual updates since then to uprate financial figures used to 

Tudalen18



calculate entitlement to support to paying council tax in line with 
Welsh Government policy. These include: 

Uprating figures for 2020-21 

Personal allowances in relation to working age, and carer and 
disabled premiums 

The financial figures in respect of these allowances have been 
amended and have increased in line with the cost-of-living rises. The 
convention is to uprate most elements in line with the Consumer 
Price Index figure for September from the previous year (2019), 
which is 1.7%. 

However for some personal allowances such as for pensioners the 
Pension Credit Standard Minimum Guarantee is uprated by 
earnings. 
 
Additional Consequential Amendments 

In addition to uprating the financial figures, this statutory instrument 
makes a number of consequential amendments to the 2013 CTRS 
Regulations. These ensure the 2013 Regulations remain up-to-date 
and fit for purpose. 

Same sex civil partnerships  

Under the Civil Partnerships, Marriages and Deaths (Registration 
etc.) Act 2019, the Civil Partnership Act 2004 must be amended by 
31 December 2019 to allow for opposite sex civil partnerships. This 
statutory instrument therefore includes amendments to ensure that 
opposite sex civil partnerships are treated on an equitable basis with 
opposite sex and same sex marriages and same sex civil 
partnerships for the purposes of CTRS. 

The Civil Partnership (Opposite-sex Couples) Regulations 2019 
were made on 5 November 2019 and come into force in 2 
December 2019. It is recognised that at the point of laying this 
statutory instrument anticipates the changes to the primary 
legislation but this is necessary to allow the instrument to be laid and 

Tudalen19



approved in time for local authorities to approve their schemes for 
2020-21 by the statutory deadline of 31 January 2020 and to provide 
the Assembly with sufficient time for scrutiny in line with Standing 
Orders. 

Parental Bereavement Leave and Pay 

The Parental Bereavement (Leave and Pay) Act 2018 amends or 
inserts a number of provisions into the Employment Rights Act 1996 
and the Social Security Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, 
providing powers to make regulations in relation to Parental 
Bereavement Leave and pay for eligible parents. The introduction of 
a specific, statutory entitlement to parental bereavement is intended 
to provide certainty for employed parents and employers in relation 
to parents’ right to time off from work following the death of a child. 

The Regulations that implement parental bereavement leave and 
pay are intended to come into force on 6 April 2020 and changes to 
the 2013 regulations to reflect this are being made in this statutory 
instrument. Again it is recognised that this statutory instrument 
anticipates the coming into effect of the primary legislation but, as 
above, this is necessary to allow the changes to be incorporated into 
council tax reduction schemes for 2020-21 and to avoid having any 
period where persons in receipt of parental bereavement pay would 
not be able to access a reduction that they would have been entitled 
to but for that parental bereavement pay. 

EU Exit related changes 

A new basis of stay has been created for EEA (European Economic 
Area) and Swiss nationals under the EU Settlement Scheme 
(EUSS) as of 30 March 2019. The EUSS is the means by which 
EEA and Swiss nationals and their family members, resident in the 
UK by the specified date, can apply for a UK immigration status 
which will protect their entitlements and right to remain in the UK. 
The specified date has been set at 31 December 2020 in the event 
the UK agrees a deal with the EU and the deadline for applying to 
the EUSS is 30 June 2021. If the UK leaves the EU without a deal, 
then EEA and Swiss nationals will need to be living in the UK before 
it leaves the EU to apply and the deadline for applying will be 31 
December 2020. 

Tudalen20



Provision in the CTRS which makes provision about persons treated 
as not being in Great Britain has been updated to clarify that limited 
leave to enter or remain granted under the EUSS (also referred to 
as pre settled status) is not a relevant right to reside for the 
purposes of being habitually resident in the United Kingdom. The 
Regulations update references to the Immigration (European 
Economic Area) Regulations 2006 with references to the 
Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016 as the 
latter revoked the former. The Regulations also provide that a 
number of rights to reside established for nationals of European 
Economic Area states in connection with the United Kingdom’s 
withdrawal from the EU are not relevant rights to reside for the 
purposes of establishing habitual residence. 

Integrated Impact Assessment 

12. The Welsh Government has previously compiled an Equalities 
Impact Assessment following its consultation.  A local Equalities 
Impact Assessment has previously been carried out by this Council 
in 2012 and 2013.  Those consultations assisted the Council in 
satisfying the public sector equality duty as set out in the Equality 
Act.  

13. The approved national scheme, within the Prescribed Requirements 
Regulations, provides some limited discretion for the Council to 
apply additional elements that are more generous than the national 
scheme. 

14. As the Welsh Government has introduced a standard scheme other 
than for 3 discretionary items as set out below they have determined 
there is no need for each Council to carry out a separate 
consultation process in relation to individual schemes.  This is 
provided that there is no proposed change in relation to the 
discretionary elements.  It is confirmed that there are no proposed 
changes to the discretionary elements for the 2020/21 Council 
Scheme as set out below.

(a) The ability to backdate the application of council tax reduction 
with regard to late claims prior to the standard period of three 
months before the claim;

Tudalen21



that there is no increase in the backdate period for 
pensioners and working age claimants from the standard 3 
months contained within the prescribed scheme.

(b) The ability to increase the standard extended reduction period 
of 4 weeks given to persons after they return to work where 
they have previously been receiving a council tax reduction that 
is to end as a result of their return to work;

that there is no change to the standard 4 week extended 
reduction period contained within the Prescribed Scheme.

(c) Discretion to increase the amount of War Disablement 
Pensions, War Widows Pensions and War Widower’s Pensions 
which is to be disregarded when calculating income of the 
claimant;

The National Scheme provides for the first £10 per week of this 
income to be disregarded.  

to continue to disregard the above-mentioned pensions 
income in full.

Financial Implications

15. This Council’s total budget for Council Tax Support in 2019/20 is 
£18.108m.  The Welsh Government’s Provisional Settlement for 
2020/21 provides funding of £16.201m, a reduction of £180k 
compared to the current year.  The projected budget cost for 
2020/21 amounts to £18.7m which will result in circa £2.5m having 
to be fully met from the Council’s budget.   

Legal Implications

16. The Council is obliged to make a Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
under the Prescribed Requirements Regulations.  Although the 
legislation provides for a default scheme to apply in the absence of 
the Council making a scheme, the Council is nevertheless under a 
statutory duty to adopt its own scheme, even if it chooses not to 
apply any of the discretionary elements. 

Tudalen22



Risk Implications

17. The Council needs to manage the cost of Council Tax Support 
within its budget.  The amount of Welsh Government support is 
provided on a fixed basis rather than the demand-led basis of 
support to council tax benefit.  Any variation in Council Tax support 
costs will have to be met by this Council. 

Recommendations

18. It is recommended that Council approve the following in relation to 
establishing its Council Tax Reduction Scheme for the 2020/21 
financial year:

 Adopts the Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed 
Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013 as further amended by 
the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements 
and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 

 Approves the retention of the existing discretionary elements in 
relation to the Prescribed Scheme:

(a) That no increase in the backdate period for all claimants be 
applied from the standard 3 months contained in the 
Prescribed Scheme.

(b) That no increase in the extended reduction period for all 
claimants be applied from the standard 4 weeks currently 
contained within the Prescribed Scheme.

(c) Apply a 100% disregard for War Disablement Pensions, War 
Widows Pensions and War Widower’s Pensions for all 
claimants.

Reason for Proposed Decision

19. To establish a Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2020/21 in line 
with legislation and regulations.

Tudalen23



Implementation of Decision

20. The decision is required to be made by 31st January 2020 for 
application during 2020/21.

Background Documents

21. Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed Requirements 
(Wales) Regulations 2013 as amended by the Council Tax 
Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and Default 
Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2015, amended by the 
Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and 
Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2016,  
amended by the Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed 
Requirements and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2017 (“Uprating Regulations”), amended by The 
Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and 
Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 
(“Uprating Regulations”) and further amended by The Council Tax 
Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements and Default 
Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2019. Further 
amended by The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed 
Requirements and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2020.

Appendix
Appendix 1 – Impact Assessment – First Stage

Officer Contact

For further information on this report item, please contact:

Mr Hywel Jenkins – Director of Finance and Corporate Services
Tel. No. 01639 763251
E-mail: h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk

Mr Huw Jones – Head of Finance
Tel. No. 01639 763575
E-mail: h.jones@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen24

mailto:h.jenkins@npt.gov.uk
mailto:h.jones@npt.gov.uk


Mr Kevin Davies – Principal Officer Benefits
Tel No. 01639 763920
E-mail: k.davies1@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen25

mailto:k.davies1@npt.gov.uk


Appendix 1

Impact Assessment - First Stage 

1. Details of the initiative 

Initiative description and summary: Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21. 
The Welsh Government has previously consulted and put in place a universal scheme across Wales for the provision of 
financial support to the most financially disadvantaged citizens to help them pay their Council Tax.  Since 2013/14 the 
Welsh Government has provided £244m to the 22 Local Authorities in Wales to adopt a standard scheme of financial 
support.  This is to avoid what has been termed a "postcode lottery" whereby eligibility for a Council Tax reduction and the 
size of the Council Tax reduction for particular groups could be different in different council areas.  The continued extension 
of this scheme into 2020/21 provides up to a “100% support scheme” for eligible taxpayers. As in all years since 2013/14 
Neath Port Talbot Council’s Council Tax Reduction Scheme (or support scheme) will be in line with the standard Welsh 
Government Scheme and does not propose any change to the 3 Discretionary elements of the scheme as asset out in 
paragraph 14 of the report.  

Service Area: Council Tax  

Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services

2. Does the initiative affect:  
Yes No

Service users (council taxpayers) X

Staff X

Wider community X

Internal administrative process only X

T
udalen26



3. Does the initiative impact on people because of their: 

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
Know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence)/How 
might it impact?

Age X
Disability X
Gender Reassignment X
Marriage/Civil Partnership X
Pregnancy/Maternity X
Race X
Religion/Belief X
Sex X
Sexual orientation X

Council Tax is payable by people occupying non 
domestic properties. These include owner occupiers, 
tenants and owners of properties (if they are vacant).  
There are a number of exemptions and discounts 
available for council tax payers and these along with the 
Council Tax Support Reduction scheme are applied to 
each property/taxpayer in line with Government 
legislation and regulations.  
The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS) set out in 
this report was consulted on by Welsh Government prior 
to its adoption in 2013/14. CTRS is provided to all 
eligible taxpayers to help them pay their Council Tax.  
This report shows that the cost to the Council exceeds 
the share of the £244m funding made available.  The 
cost of the scheme has to be found from within the 
Council’s total resources available.  The Council Tax 
database does not identify the specific characteristics of 
taxpayers. All eligible taxpayers receive the appropriate 
financial support in line with the scheme’s criteria and do 
not treat any people with protected characteristics any 
different.

T
udalen27



4. Does the initiative impact on:

Yes No None/
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence used) / 
How might it impact?

People’s opportunities 
to use the Welsh 
language 

X Applications for support can be made in Welsh 

Treating the Welsh 
language no less 
favourably than English 

X Applications for support can be made in Welsh

5. Does the initiative impact on biodiversity:

Yes No None/ 
Negligible

Don’t 
know

Impact 
H/M/L

Reasons for your decision (including evidence) / 
How might it impact?

To maintain and 
enhance biodiversity X

To promote the 
resilience of 
ecosystems, i.e. 
supporting protection of 
the wider environment, 
such as air quality, flood 
alleviation, etc. 

X

T
udalen28



6. Does the initiative embrace the sustainable development principle (5 ways of working):

Yes No Details

Long term - how the initiative 
supports the long term well-being of 
people 

X The scheme provides assistance to people on benefits and low income 
to help them pay their Council Tax. This is a continuation of a standard 
uniform scheme introduced by Welsh Government in 2013/14. In line 
with Regulations the council must determine annually before the end of 
January the Council Tax Reduction scheme that it will have in place for 
the next financial year i.e. 2020/21. 

Integration -  how the initiative 
impacts upon our wellbeing 
objectives 

X It assists to provide a sense of community and helps people live locally 
without having to be concerned about paying all or part of their Council 
Tax.

Involvement -  how people have 
been involved in developing the 
initiative 

X The scheme has been in existence since 2013/14 and is proposed to 
continue unchanged in 2020/21.  If the Welsh Government proposes 
any changes to the scheme they will be subject to full consultation.

Collaboration - how we have worked 
with other services/organisations to 
find shared sustainable solutions

X The Council is applying the standard scheme of financial support as 
provided by the Welsh Government

Prevention -  how the initiative will 
prevent problems occurring or getting 
worse 

X It prevents people having tax arrears and having to pay their Council 
Tax when they are on the appropriate benefits and/or low incomes

T
udalen29



7. Declaration - based on above assessment (tick as appropriate):

A full impact assessment (second stage) is not required X

Reasons for this conclusion   

This is a continuation of the Council Tax Reduction scheme that has been in existence since 2013/14. In line with 
regulations the Council’s is required to approve its scheme for the forthcoming financial year before 31 January of each 
year.

A full impact assessment (second stage) is required 

Reasons for this conclusion   

Name Position Date
Signed off by Hywel Jenkins Director of Finance & Corporate Service 14 January 2020

T
udalen30



 
 
 
 

 
NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNCIL 

 
 

Council 
29th January 2020 

 
 

Report of the Head of Planning and Public Protection 
Ceri Morris 

 
 
Matter for Decision 
 
Wards Affected:  All 
 
Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP) 2011-2026 – 
Consideration of: the draft LDP Review Report; and the publication / 
consultation procedures to be implemented. 
 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1 To consider and agree the Consultation Draft LDP Review Report 

and the publication / consultation procedures to be implemented. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
2 The Neath Port Talbot LDP (2011-2026) was formally adopted by the 

Council on 27th January 2016. The LDP sets out the Council’s vision 
and objectives, together with a series of policies and proposals which 
together sets the framework for the development and use of land up 
to 2026. 

 
3 To ensure the LDP is kept up-to-date, the Council has an obligation 

to undertake a full review of the plan at intervals not longer than 
every four years from initial adoption – the LDP is now the subject of 
this four year review cycle. 

 
4 The first stage of the review is to prepare and publish a ‘Review 

Report’ which identifies the key issues to be considered when taking 
the existing LDP forward, setting out areas where the current LDP is 

Tudalen31

Eitem yr Agenda5



delivering and performing well, in addition to those areas where 
changes may be required. 

 
5 This report has been subject to scrutiny by the Regeneration and 

Sustainable Development Scrutiny Committee on 24th January 2020 
and subject to any proposed amendments by the relevant Cabinet 
Board, Council is asked to endorse the Consultation Draft LDP 
Review Report and approve the consultation arrangements. 

 
Background 
 
6 The Neath Port Talbot LDP (2011-2026), formally adopted by the 

Council on 27th January 2016, sets the policy framework for the 
development and use of land up to 2026. 

 
7 An up-to-date LDP is an essential part of the plan-led planning 

system in Wales. The Council therefore has a statutory obligation to 
both monitor the implementation and performance of the LDP on an 
annual basis and to undertake a full review of the adopted Plan at 
intervals not longer than every four years from initial adoption. 

 
8 Since plan adoption, three Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) have 

been published and in the case of Neath Port Talbot, the LDP is now 
the subject of the statutory four year full review cycle and as such all 
aspects of the Plan will need to be reassessed to consider if they 
remain sound and fit for purpose. 

 
9 It is important therefore that the Council now progresses with the 

statutory review of the LDP, to address in particular the policy issues 
that have been highlighted by the monitoring undertaken to date. 

 
LDP Review Report 
 
10 Any revision to a LDP must begin with the preparation of a ‘Review 

Report’. The Review Report, which must be published within 6 
months of the start of the review, is a statutory part of the full review 
process and ultimately, will form a key part of the Council’s evidence 
base when the Replacement LDP is submitted to the Welsh 
Government for examination. 

 
11 The Review Report identifies the key issues to be considered when 

taking the existing LDP forward and sets out areas where the current 
LDP is delivering and performing well, in addition to those areas 
where changes may be required. 

 

Tudalen32



12 Members should note that it is not the purpose of the Review Report 
to detail any changes that may be made to the Plan. The detail and 
extent of any changes will only be identified through the preparation 
process of the Replacement Plan. 

 
13 The draft LDP Review Report is presented in full in Appendix 1 and 

is structured into the following four parts: 
 

 PART 1: Introduction and Background – setting out the 
context and scope of the report. 

 PART 2: Factors Informing the Review – providing a 
summary of the key findings of the monitoring undertaken to 
date and the contextual changes that will influence policy 
development moving forward. 

 PART 3: Detailed Review – setting out a review of the existing 
LDP vision, objectives, strategy and policies. 

 PART 4: Other Considerations – providing a summary of the 
opportunities for collaborative working. 

 
Overview of Key Findings 
 
14 The conclusions of the Review Report have been informed by the 

findings of the published AMRs; updated evidence and surveys; 
relevant contextual information including changes to legislation, the 
national/regional policy framework and local strategies and policies; 
and engagement with Development Management Officers. 

 
15 In determining the future direction of the Replacement LDP, the 

Review Report highlights in particular the need to account for and 
address the following: 

 
 Contextual Changes – the most significant in land use terms 

will be evidence base changes associated with Welsh 
Government Population and Household projections; the policy 
framework emanating from the emerging National 
Development Framework (NDF); the regional work associated 
with the Swansea Bay City Deal (SBCD); and more locally the 
designation of the Port Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone and 
the work of the Valleys Taskforce. 

 Level and Spatial Distribution of Growth – in light of the 
failure to achieve targets in relation to housing and employment 
related development, the level and spatial distribution of growth 
(i.e. coastal corridor / valleys) needs to be reassessed to 

Tudalen33



establish the most appropriate strategic approach moving 
forward. 

 Housing Land Supply – given that the housing land supply 
has fallen below the 5 year minimum requirement to 4.5 years, 
there is an urgent need to address the shortfall by identifying 
and allocating additional new housing sites and ensuring that 
these are deliverable and viable. 

 Strategic Regeneration Areas – given the limited progress to 
date, there is a need to reassess the rates of housing, 
employment and infrastructure delivery at both Coed Darcy and 
Harbourside. 

 New Policy Areas – there is a need to consider the potential 
introduction of new policy areas including Placemaking; Green 
Infrastructure; Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs); 
Telecommunications; Renewable Energy; Ultra Low Emission 
Vehicle Charging Infrastructure; Active Travel; and Land 
Instability. 

 
16 Notwithstanding these issues, it should be recognised that the 

Review Report also concludes that many aspects of the current 
adopted LDP are functioning effectively and delivering as expected. 
Consequently, many elements and components of the current Plan 
will not require anything other than minor amendments to reflect 
contextual changes and updates to national policy. 

 
Publication and Consultation Procedures 
 
17 To maximise the robustness of the Review Report, the Council will 

need to consult on its findings and conclusions. Stakeholders will 
make a valuable contribution in helping to identify and clarify what 
issues need to be considered, how effective the existing LDP has 
been in terms of delivery and the extent of likely changes required. 

 
18 On this basis, it is proposed to undertake a consultation on the draft 

Review Report with a range of specific and general stakeholder 
bodies. The consultation period will run for 6 weeks commencing in 
February. 

 
19 Representations received as a result of consultation will again be 

considered by Cabinet Board / Council together with any 
amendments needed to the document prior to final publication. 
Following formal approval by Council, the Review Report will be 
published on the Council’s website and submitted to the Welsh 
Government. 

Tudalen34



 
20 In accordance with the Council’s Welsh Language Standards Policy 

all publicity / communication will be bilingual and the Consultation 
Draft Review Report will also be made available in Welsh. 

 
21 The Consultation Draft Review Report will also be available for 

purchase at a reasonable charge. In common with previous practice, 
it is suggested that the price be based on the cost of printing together 
with post and package at the prevailing cost. Electronic copies will be 
made available at no cost. 

 
Financial Impacts 
 
22  The decisions at this stage will incur expenditure in relation to the 

publication and consultation procedures. These costs will be 
accommodated within existing budgets. 

 
23  In terms of the wider costs associated with completing the LDP 

review, it is estimated that such costs will amount to circa £500k. 
Whilst there is an existing reserve for LDP preparation, this will be 
insufficient to cover the funding necessary to meet all the statutory 
requirements to review and prepare a Replacement Plan. As a 
consequence, this shortfall will be identified as an unavoidable 
pressure moving forward and will need to be met from additional 
corporate resources.  

 
24  It should also be recognised that the demands on the LDP budget 

will be influenced by factors outside the control of the Council, 
including the number and nature of objections received, the sites put 
forward for development consideration, the length of the Examination 
in Public and whether or not issues emerge that require expert 
advice and evidence procured from external sources. 

 
25  The financial implications and resources required to prepare a 

Replacement LDP will be set out in more detail in a new Delivery 
Agreement which will be the subject of a separate report to be 
considered by Council in due course. 

 
Integrated Impact Assessment 
 
26  In order to comply with the relevant legislation and guidance, the 

preparation of the LDP will need to be subjected to a number of 
assessments.  

 

Tudalen35



27  Sustainability Appraisal (SA) is an assessment of the economic, 
environmental and social effects of a plan which is carried out from 
the outset of the plan-making process to ensure that decisions are 
made that accord with sustainable development principles. SA is 
therefore an iterative process that identifies and reports on the extent 
to which implementation of the plan will achieve sustainable 
development objectives and identifies opportunities for improving 
plan performance in relation to these. 

 
28 One of the ‘ways of working’ that forms part of the sustainable 

development principle is the need to take an integrated approach. 
Given the nature and scope of the LDP therefore, the assessments 
will be amalgamated integrating SA with other statutory and non-
statutory assessments including Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA), health, equalities and the impact on the Welsh 
language. 

 
29 The integration of these assessments will ensure that the Council 

discharges its legislative duties under the Equality Act 2010, the 
Welsh Language Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015, the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Environment 
(Wales) Act 2016. Furthermore, the approach will ensure that a 
collaborative approach is taken on different issues, recognising the 
links between topics and providing a robust and thorough 
mechanism for identifying issues and opportunities, assessing 
impacts including cumulative and indirect effects. 

 
Valleys Communities Impacts 
 
30  The preparation of the Replacement LDP will have significant spatial 

implications for the valley communities. Setting the framework for the 
development and use of land up to 2026, the current LDP seeks to 
reinvigorate the valley communities by identifying Pontardawe and 
the Upper Neath Valley as strategic growth areas and also presents 
a series of policies to provide a more flexible approach to 
development. 

 
31  The current strategic approach to the valleys will be reassessed as 

part of the review of the LDP to determine if the approach remains 
sound and fit for purpose. Furthermore, the LDP will need to be 
updated to account for a range of contextual changes including the 
emergence of the Welsh Government’s Valleys Task Force: Our 
Valleys, Our Future and more locally, the outputs of the Council’s 
own Valleys Taskforce initiative. 

 

Tudalen36



 
 
Workforce Impacts 
 
32  It is anticipated that the review of the LDP will be accommodated 

mainly by utilising the existing staff structure within the Planning 
Policy team. This however will need to be kept under review, subject 
to the nature and scope of the review process. 

 
33  The staff resources required to prepare a Replacement LDP will be 

set out in more detail in a new Delivery Agreement which will be the 
subject of a separate report to be considered by Council in due 
course. 

 
Legal Impacts 
 

34  Given that it is now four years since the LDP was formerly adopted, 
the report addresses the legal requirement for the Council to proceed 
with a full review of the LDP. 

  
Risk Management Impacts 
 

35  The Council will be in breach of its legal requirement to proceed with 
a full review of the LDP should there be a failure to implement the 
proposed recommendations. 

 

Consultation 
 

36  This item will be subject to external consultation.  
 

Recommendations 
 

37  That subject to any amendments proposed by the Regeneration and 
Sustainable Development Cabinet Board on 24th January 2020;  

   The following be approved: 
 

1. The draft LDP Review Report as set out in Appendix 1 be 
agreed as forming the basis for targeted consultation. 
 

2. The publication and consultation procedures as set out in the 
report be implemented. 

 

Reasons for Proposed Decision 
 

38  The recommendations are needed to: 
 

Tudalen37



1. Ensure compliance with Section 69 of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004; The Town and Country 
Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2015; and the Local Development Plan Manual 
Edition 2 (2015). 
 

2. Authorise the consultation exercise to ensure that the final LDP 
Review Report is robust and the conclusions fully justified. 

 

Implementation of Decision 
 

39  The decision is proposed for immediate implementation. 
 

Appendices 
 

40  Appendix 1 – LDP Review Report (Consultation Draft – January’20). 
 

List of Background Papers 
 

Legislation and Regulations: 
 

41  Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
42  Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
43  Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 
44  The Town and Country Planning (Local Development Plan) (Wales) 

(Amendment) Regulations 2015. 
45  The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes (Wales) 

Regulations 2004. 
46  The Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations 1994. 
47  EC Directive 92/43/EEC on Conservation of Natural Habitats and of 

Wild Fauna and Flora (Habitats Directive). 
 

Planning Policy / Guidance: 
 

48  Neath Port Talbot LDP (2011-2026) (January 2016). 
49  Planning Policy Wales Edition 10 (2018). 
50  Technical Advice Notes (TANs). 
51  Minerals Technical Advice Notes (MTANs). 
52  Local Development Plan Manual Edition 2 (2015). 
 

Officer Contact 
 

53  Lana Beynon – Planning Policy Team Leader  
Tel: 01639 686314 or e-mail: l.beynon@npt.gov.uk  

 

Tudalen38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
LDP Review Report (Consultation Draft – January’20) 

Tudalen39



Tudalen40



www.npt.gov.uk/ldp

Local Development Plan 
Review Report
(Consultation Draft - January 2020)

-

Neath Port Talbot Council

Tudalen41



Tudalen42



1Note to Reader

PART 1 - Introduction and Background

31 Introduction

52 The Review Report

52.1 Structure and Content

PART 2 - Factors Informing the Review

93 LDP Annual Monitoring Reports - Key Findings

134 Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

155 Contextual Changes

236 Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

PART 3 - Detailed Review

297 LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

297.1 Key Issues, Vision and Objectives

307.2 Growth Strategy

347.3 Spatial Strategy

377.4 Reconsideration of the Strategy

418 LDP Topic Area Reviews

418.1 Overarching Policies

418.1.1 Strategic Policy 1 - Climate Change

418.1.2 Strategic Policy 2 - Health

428.1.3 Strategic Policy 3 - Sustainable Communities

438.1.4 Strategic Policy 4 - Infrastructure

448.2 Area Based Policies

44
8.2.1 Strategic Policy 5 - Development in the Coastal Corridor Strategy

Area

458.2.2 Strategic Policy 6 - Development in the Valleys Strategy Area

Contents

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

Tudalen43



8.3 Communities and Housing 45

458.3.1 Strategic Policy 7 - Housing Requirement

468.3.2 Strategic Policy 8 - Affordable Housing

488.3.3 Strategic Policy 9 - Gypsies and Travellers

488.3.4 Strategic Policy 10 - Open Space

508.4 The Economy

508.4.1 Strategic Policy 11 - Employment Growth

518.4.2 Strategic Policy 12 - Retail

528.4.3 Strategic Policy 13 - Tourism

528.5 Environment and Resources

528.5.1 Strategic Policy 14 - The Countryside and Undeveloped Coast

548.5.2 Strategic Policy 15 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity

558.5.3 Strategic Policy 16 - Environmental Protection

558.5.4 Strategic Policy 17 - Minerals

568.5.5 Strategic Policy 18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

588.5.6 Strategic Policy 19 - Waste Management

598.6 Transport and Access

598.6.1 Strategic Policy 20 - Transport Network

608.7 Culture and Heritage

608.7.1 Strategic Policy 21 - Built Environment and Historic Heritage

608.7.2 Strategic Policy 22 - Welsh Language

PART 4 - Other Considerations

639 Reconsideration of the SA/SEA and HRA

63
9.1 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) including Strategic Environmental Assessment

(SEA)

639.2 Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)

6510 Opportunities for Collaborative Working

6510.1 Joint LDPs and Collaborative Studies

6710.2 Strategic Development Plans

Contents

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

Tudalen44



Appendices

69A LDP Policy Review

75B Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

81C Status of LDP Allocations

87D Glossary

Contents

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

Tudalen45



Contents

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

Tudalen46



Note to Reader

This note explains the purpose of the Review Report and how to comment on the document.
This note will not form part of the final published report.

Purpose of the Document

The Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted by the Council on 27th

January 2016. The LDP sets out the Council's vision and objectives, together with a series
of policies and proposals for the development and use of land in the County Borough up
to 2026.

The Council is required to annually monitor the implementation and performance of the
LDP and in order to ensure the LDP is kept up to date, the Council has an obligation to
undertake a review of the Plan at intervals not longer than every four years from initial
adoption.

Any review should be informed by the content and key findings of the published Annual
Monitoring Reports (AMRs), any relevant updated evidence or surveys and contextual
changes such as relevant changes to legislation and/or national policy.

The first stage of any review process is the preparation of a Review Report. The primary
purpose of the report is to set out the procedures to be followed and the key issues to be
considered. Given that the LDP is now the subject of a statutory required four year full
review, all aspects of the Plan will need to be assessed to consider if they remain sound
and fit for purpose.

This Review Report therefore sets out areas where the current LDP is delivering and
performing well, in addition to those areas where changes may be required.

Consultation

The Council is seeking views on the matters set out in this LDPReview Report. In particular,
views are sought on what issues should be considered in the review, together with what
subsequent changes are required to the LDP.

The consultation period will run for 6 weeks, starting midday on Monday 3rd February
and ending at midday on Monday 16th March 2020.

How to Make Comments

Comments can be submitted:

Directly Online at: www.npt.gov.uk/ldp/consultation

Alternatively:

Note to Reader

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

1

Tudalen47



By E-mail to: ldp@npt.gov.uk

By Post to:

Mr Ceri Morris

Head of Planning and Public Protection

Neath Port Talbot Council

The Quays

Brunel Way

Baglan Energy Park

Neath

SA11 2GG

Comments via e-mail or post will need to be submitted using the 'Review Report
Representation Form'. Copies of the form are available on request or an editable version
is available to download from the Council's website: www.npt.gov.uk/ldp

The deadline for comments is midday on Monday 16th March 2020. Comments
received after the deadline will not be accepted.

This report is also available in Welsh, either to download or by request. Should you need
this document in another format, then please contact the LDP team
at ldp@npt.gov.uk or [01639] 686821.

Note to Reader

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

2

Tudalen48



1 Introduction

1.0.1 The Council is required under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
(the Act) to prepare a Local Development Plan (LDP) for its administrative area.

1.0.2 The current Neath Port Talbot LDP(1) was adopted by the Council on 27th January
2016. The LDP sets out the Council's vision and objectives, together with a series of
policies and proposals which together sets the framework for the development and use
of land in the County Borough up to 2026.

1.0.3 The Council also has a statutory obligation to prepare an Annual Monitoring Report
(AMR) to assess the extent to which the LDP strategy, policies and allocations are being
delivered, the sustainability credentials of the Plan and to identify any significant contextual
changes that might influence its implementation.

1.0.4 In order to ensure that there is a regular and comprehensive assessment of whether
plans remain up-to-date the Council is also statutorily required, under Section 69 of the
Act, to undertake a full review of the adopted LDP at intervals not longer than every four
years from the date of adoption.

1.0.5 As four years has now passed since the LDP was adopted, the LDP will be
subject to a full review and all aspects of the Plan will need to be assessed to
consider if they remain sound and fit for purpose. This will include the key issues,
vision and objectives, the strategy, policies and land use allocations / designations.

1 Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council Local Development Plan (2011-2026).

1 . Introduction

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

3

Tudalen49



1 . Introduction

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

4

Tudalen50



2 The Review Report

2.0.1 Any revision to a LDP must begin with the publication of a Review Report and its
submission to the Welsh Government. The Review Report will form a key part of the
Council's evidence base when the Replacement LDP is submitted to theWelsh Government
for examination.

2.0.2 This Review Report therefore sets out areas where the current LDP is delivering
and performing well, in addition to those areas where changesmay be required. Importantly,
it is not the purpose of the Review Report to detail any changes that may be made
to the Plan. The detail and extent of any changes will only be identified through the
preparation process of the Replacement Plan.

2.0.3 In developing this ReviewReport, the Council has taken the following considerations
into account:

Content of the published LDP Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) (2017, 2018 and
2019) including the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) monitoring findings;
Updated evidence and surveys, including the Joint Housing Land Availability Studies
that have been published post LDP adoption;
Relevant contextual information, including changes to legislation, the national/regional
policy framework and local strategies and policies; and
Internal Officer Working Group engagement.

2.0.4 The Council will also consult with specific and general consultation bodies(2)on its
findings and conclusions and take into account the comments received.

2.0.5 It is proposed that the Replacement LDP will cover a 15 year plan period
(2020-2035), with a base date of 1st April 2020.

2.1 Structure and Content

2.1.1 The Review Report is structured around the following key parts:

Part 1 - Introduction and Background (Chapters 1-2)

2.1.2 Chapter 1 briefly summarises the legislative requirements to monitor and review
the LDP andChapter 2 sets out the importance, scope and structure of the Review Report.

Part 2 - Factors Informing the Review (Chapters 3-6)

2.1.3 Chapter 3 highlights the key findings of the three LDP Annual Monitoring Reports
(AMRs) published since Plan adoption. These reports include detailed assessments of
the performance of all the Plan policy areas and constitute important evidence in assessing
the success of the Plan in meeting its aims and objectives and the delivery of the strategy.

2 General and Specific Bodies are defined in Regulation 2 of the Town and Country Planning Wales, Town and
Country Planning LDP (Wales) Regs 2005 as amended by LDP (Wales) Amendment Regs 2015.

2 . The Review Report

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

5

Tudalen51



2.1.4 Chapter 4 summarises the main findings of the Sustainability Appraisal (SA)
monitoring to provide an overview of the effects of the Plan in sustainability terms. The
SA monitoring is also undertaken on an annual basis and is reported as part of the AMR.

2.1.5 The main contextual changes that have taken place since the adoption of the Plan
at national, regional and local level are outlined in Chapter 5. These include changes to
national policy and guidance, regional collaborative working / studies and changes to the
policies and approaches of the local authority and other local bodies.

2.1.6 Chapter 6 covers potential changes to the evidence base that underpins and
informs the development of the strategy and policies. Some important changes that are
evident are outlined together with other anticipated changes. All evidence base information
will however need to be revisited as part of the review process.

Part 3 - Detailed Review (Chapters 7-8)

2.1.7 This part of the report addresses all the detailed elements of the Plan in turn,
starting with the key issues, vision and objectives including consideration of how these
may require amendment as a result of the factors outlined in Part 2. Consultation and
involvement with stakeholders and consultation bodies will form an important part of the
review of these aspects.

2.1.8 The LDP growth and spatial strategies are addressed in Chapter 7. The growth
strategy was underpinned by an economic-led growth model which used the projected
increase in jobs and aspirations to increase the economic activity rate in order to identify
the required working age population to support the projected number of jobs.

2.1.9 The projected increase in working age population was then translated into the
need for new housing, ensuring that the housing and employment forecasting was aligned
and that there was a direct correlation between the number of jobs, houses, labour supply
and employment land. The appropriateness of this strategy will be reconsidered as part
of the review in the light of the other factors outlined in Part 2.

2.1.10 The LDP spatial strategy divided the administrative area into two distinct strategy
areas to identify the broad locations for meeting the growth and development needs of
the growth strategy and in recognition of the unique identity, varying characteristics and
the market demand of the different areas of Neath Port Talbot.

2.1.11 Within the 'Coastal Corridor Strategy Area', development was facilitated along
the M4 corridor in the urban areas of Neath and Port Talbot, while the 'Valleys Strategy
Area' (an area comprising Pontardawe and the five valley areas) was to be reinvigorated
employing a variety of policy interventions. The outcomes of this approach are also detailed
in Chapter 7.

2.1.12 All the LDP policies (overarching, area and topic based), are considered in
Chapter 8, and are presented under each of the strategic policy headings. These have
been considered principally in the light of the AMR findings, but also take into account
amendments that may be needed as a result of contextual changes and discussion in the
Officer Working Groups.

2 . The Review Report

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

6

Tudalen52



2.1.13 Reconsideration of some housing and employment allocations will be required
as part of the review. An overview of the policies and findings of this section are detailed
in Appendix A 'LDP Policy Review' and Appendix C 'Status of LDP Allocations'.

Part 4 - Other Considerations (Chapters 9-10)

2.1.14 This part of the report addresses other matters that are relevant to the approach
that will be taken to the review. Chapter 9 addresses the changes that will be needed to
the SA/SEA and HRA, including baseline information, assessment frameworks and
methodology.

2.1.15 Chapter 10 considers collaborative working with other local authorities and
addresses the possibility of the preparation of a Strategic Development Plan (SDP) for
Mid and South West Wales (M&SWW) as detailed in the draft National Development
Framework (NDF). Whilst the section concludes that collaboration is unlikely to be feasible
in respect of preparing a Joint LDP with adjoining authorities based on the respective
timescales for preparing Replacement Plans, significant work is however underway In the
form of collaborative studies that will inform the development of the Replacement LDP.

2 . The Review Report

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

7

Tudalen53



2 . The Review Report

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

8

Tudalen54



3 LDP Annual Monitoring Reports - Key Findings

3.0.1 In line with national guidance, the review of the LDP should along with other factors,
draw on the findings of the published LDP Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs). The LDP
Monitoring Framework(3) forms the basis of the AMR and over time enables the assessment
of how the Plan's strategic policies and supporting detailed policies are performing against
the identified targets and outcomes.

3.0.2 The framework contains a total of 89 indicators, comprising a small number of
core indicators (prescribed by LDP Regulations), along with a range of local and contextual
indicators identified by the Council. Each indicator has a specified target along with a
'trigger' which identifies the point or level at which any deviation will trigger the need for
further action to be considered and/or taken.

3.0.3 Since LDP adoption, a total of three AMRs have been published. The latest AMR
was published in October 2019 and covers the monitoring period 1st April 2018 to 31st

March 2019. A brief summary of the outcome of the latest year's monitoring is provided
below, along with an overview of the key findings of the monitoring completed to date.

Table 3.0.1 LDP Monitoring Framework (2019)

Number of Indicators Within
Category

ActionAssessment

60No further action required. Monitoring
to continue

The indicators point to the successful
implementation of the Policy

1Officer and/or Member training may
be required

LDP Policies are not being
implemented in the intended manner

2
Supplementary Planning Guidance
may be required

Indicators suggest the need for further
guidance in addition to those
identified in the Plan

0
Further research and investigation
required

The indicators are suggesting that the
LDP strategic policy is not proving to
be as effective as originally expected

26
Following confirmation, the policy will
be subject to a review process

The indicators are suggesting that the
strategic policy is not being
implemented

0
Following confirmation, the LDP will
be subject to a review process

The indicators are suggesting that the
LDP strategy is not being
implemented

3.0.4 The third phase of monitoring has shown that in broad terms the objectives of the
LDP continue to be largely achieved. The majority of indicators continue to show that the
plan policies are being implemented successfully, while contextual indicators show that
most are resulting in the anticipated benefits to communities across the administrative
area.

3 Table 6.2 (Pages 98-114) Neath Port Talbot Council Local Development Plan (2011-2026) January 2016.

3 . LDP Annual Monitoring Reports - Key Findings

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

9

Tudalen55



3.0.5 There are however, several key policy indicator targets and monitoring outcomes
relating primarily to housing delivery and employment related development that are not
currently being achieved. This indicates that these policies are not always having the
required effect and as a consequence provides an indication that the LDP strategy (i.e.
the level and spatial distribution of growth) is not being fully implemented.

3.0.6 The more notable areas of concern are briefly summarised below and it is
imperative that the Council progresses with the statutory review of the LDP in order to
address these issues.

Housing Delivery (General Market and Affordable)

3.0.7 A total of 299 housing completions were recorded in Neath Port Talbot over the
latest 2019 monitoring period. Although an improvement on previous annual delivery rates,
this figure remains significantly lower than the year target of 686 dwellings.

3.0.8 Since the LDP base date (2011), the number of housing completions totals 2,126
dwellings. Compared against the annual cumulative target of 3,582, this shows that
completions have now fallen 1,456 below target and that just 59.4% of the cumulative
annual target has been delivered to date.

3.0.9 Although there is sufficient housing land allocated in the LDP to meet the identified
housing requirement over the Plan period, for a variety of reasons (including those that
are independent of the planning system), sites are not coming forward and progressing
as anticipated.

Affordable Housing Delivery

3.0.10 Over the latest monitoring period, no affordable housing units were recorded as
being delivered through the planning system (i.e. via Section 106 agreements). This is
against the year target of 130 units.

3.0.11 Since the LDP base date, the number of affordable housing completions delivered
totals 50 units. Compared against the annual cumulative target of 478, this shows that
completions have now fallen 428 below target and that just 10.5% of the cumulative annual
target has been delivered to date.

3.0.12 The delivery of affordable housing is directly linked to broader housing delivery
and the position reflects the fact that LDP allocated sites are not coming through the
planning system as originally anticipated.

Housing Viability

3.0.13 There has been a substantial decrease in residual values over the Plan period,
which has had a negative impact on the ability of housing allocations to deliver affordable
housing and other planning obligations. Since LDP adoption, there has been a significant
increase in build costs, which has not been met with the required uplift in sales values,
which has had a detrimental impact on viability across each of the sub-market areas of
Neath Port Talbot.

3 . LDP Annual Monitoring Reports - Key Findings

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

10

Tudalen56



Affordable Housing Exception Sites

3.0.14 There have been no applications for affordable housing exception sites over the
Plan period to date. Although no applications have been received, Registered Social
Landlords (RSLs) have developed a number of sites within the area, providing affordable
housing on sites allocated within the H1 portfolio and windfall sites within settlement limits.

Housing Land Supply

3.0.15 The latest 2019 'Joint Housing Land Availability Study' shows that Neath Port
Talbot has a housing land supply, assessed against the housing requirement of the adopted
LDP, of 4.5 years.

3.0.16 In the previous three studies completed since Plan adoption, the Council had
demonstrated a land supply of 5.0 years (2016), 5.3 years (2017) and 5.0 years (2018)
respectively. This latest study therefore is the first occasion post-adoption where the
Council's land supply figure has dropped below the required 5 years.

Strategic Regeneration Areas

3.0.17 There has been limited progress in regard to the delivery of the two allocated
'Strategic Regeneration Areas' at Coed Darcy (Neath) and Harbourside (Port Talbot)
respectively.

3.0.18 At Coed Darcy Urban Village, 291 dwellings have been completed since the LDP
base date. The continued low rate of housing delivery has seen the cumulative delivery
of housing for the site fall 509 units below target. The slower than anticipated rate of
housing and infrastructure delivery has also resulted in a delay in the progression of the
employment related element of the mixed use regeneration scheme, with no new land
developed for employment uses to date. Road improvements including the provision of a
southern access road and additional improvements to M4 Junction 43 have also been
delayed.

3.0.19 At Harbourside, 34 dwellings and 1.8 hectares of employment land have been
developed since the LDP base date. This is a shortfall of 41 residential units below target
with no employment development for three consecutive years. Consequently, the cumulative
delivery of both elements has fallen behind targets identified for the site.

3.0.20 The redevelopment of both these former industrial areas is proving complex and
challenging and over time, progress has been frustrated by a number of factors including
the nature of existing site constraints, viability issues and in some cases land ownership.

Employment Sites and Economic Activity

Land Developed for Employment Purposes

3 . LDP Annual Monitoring Reports - Key Findings

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

11

Tudalen57



3.0.21 There has been no new development on allocated employment sites over the
past two years which constitutes a trigger point for Policy SP11 (Employment Growth).
Further research and investigation will therefore be required in respect of this issue as
part of the review process to establish the reasons and whether changes to the policy
framework are required.

Workplace Employment

3.0.22 One of the fundamental elements of the LDP economic-led strategy is to create
3,850 jobs in Neath Port Talbot over the Plan period. The number of jobs has fluctuated
over the initial period, increasing from 49,400 jobs in 2011 to 50,900 jobs in 2015, an
increase of 1,500, which indicated that the Plan was progressing well in achieving the
overall target of 3,850 jobs by 2026. Since 2015 however, the number of jobs has decreased
to 49,600 jobs in 2018, which represents an increase of just 200 jobs since the base-date
of the Plan.

Live-work Units

3.0.23 In order to encourage economic development in the Valleys Strategy Area (VSA),
Policy EC6 allows development of live-work units outside (but immediately adjacent to)
settlement limits within the VSA. To date however, there has been no such development
proposed under this policy and its lack of effect on economic development and local
economies will need to be taken into account in the LDP review.

Environment and Resources

Protection of the Undeveloped Coast, GreenWedges and Special Landscape Areas

3.0.24 Although in previous years all proposals within designated areas have been
determined in accordance with the policy framework, during the most recent monitoring
period two applications have been determined contrary to policy (one an appeal decision).
This has raised questions about the effectiveness and appropriateness of these policies
which will need to be addressed in detail as part of the review.

Biodiversity and Geodiversity

3.0.25 Targets of preventing net loss of biodiversity are not being achieved, partly due
to adverse effects on locally designated protection areas and partly due to a lack of
mitigation and/or compensation measures delivered as part of development schemes.

3 . LDP Annual Monitoring Reports - Key Findings

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

12

Tudalen58



4 Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

4.0.1 The main issues identified in the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) monitoring related
to the following SA topics:

Climate Change

4.0.2 The indicators in respect of the SA climate change objectives suggest that the
LDP is not fully meeting aspirations in respect of climate change adaptation or mitigation.
In particular, since Plan adoption, there have been instances where proposals have been
approved within flood risk and protected areas contrary to policy; the LDP density
requirements are often not being met; and the number of renewable / low carbon energy
schemes has been lower than expected.

Natural Resources

4.0.3 In respect of the SA natural resources objectives, there are concerns that low
density development has an unnecessarily large impact per unit on natural resources
generally.

Biodiversity and Geodiversity

4.0.4 Targets of preventing net loss of biodiversity are not being met, partly due to
developments having adverse effects on locally designated and protected areas and partly
due to a lack of biodiversity enhancement within development sites or funded through
developer contributions.

Landscape, Townscape and Historic Character

4.0.5 A small number of developments have been permitted contrary to LDP policy on
landscape and green wedges, giving rise to concerns about meeting the SA objective to
protect and enhance the area's landscape and townscape.

Community Cohesion

4.0.6 Indicators showing the loss of community facilities, approvals for new 'town centre
uses' in out-of-centre locations and shortfalls in delivery of new housing and affordable
housing, open space, employment floorspace and small scale local retail suggest some
mixed impacts in respect of the SA social cohesion objective.

Health and Well-being

4.0.7 Indicators showing loss of community facilities, shortfalls in open space provision
and decreasing levels of workplace employment and economic activity suggest some
mixed or negative impacts in respect of the SA objectives concerning health and poverty.

4 . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

13

Tudalen59



The Economy

4.0.8 Indicators showing shortfalls in housing delivery, new employment floorspace and
new small local retail development suggest mixed impacts in respect of the SA Economy
objectives.

4.0.9 A full summary of the SA monitoring findings is contained in the table in Appendix
B.

4 . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

14

Tudalen60



5 Contextual Changes

5.0.1 As reported in the published AMRs, since LDP adoption there has been a range
of new contextual material published which sets the framework within which planning
policy is developed at the local level. In addition, Welsh Government (WG) has recently
consulted on and will shortly be publishing an updated Development Plans Manual
(Edition 3) which will guide the preparation of the Replacement LDP.

5.0.2 The review of the LDP will therefore need to take account of the various new Acts,
policy frameworks, updated guidance, initiatives and evidence that has emerged at the
national, regional and local level. Whilst not exhaustive, the following sets out those
elements that will have the most significant influence on the review of the Plan.

National Context

5.0.3 Planning (Wales) Act 2015 - the Act sets out a series of legislative changes to
deliver reform of the planning system in Wales, to ensure that it is fair, resilient and enables
development. One of the objectives is to strengthen the plan led approach in Wales and
accordingly the Act has introduced the legal basis to prepare the National Development
Framework (NDF) and also Strategic Development Plans (refer to Section 10.2).

5.0.4 Replacing the 'Wales Spatial Plan'(4), the NDF will set out a clear 20 year spatial
direction for government policy, action and investment. The WG issued the Draft NDF for
public consultation in August 2019 with the final publication of the NDF scheduled for
September 2020. The Replacement LDP will ultimately need to conform with the NDF, so
there will be a need for the Council to closely consider the implications of the NDF as the
new national policy direction emerges.

5.0.5 Planning Policy Wales (PPW) Edition 10 (December 2018) - PPW has been
extensively revised and restructured to reflect the Well-being of Future Generations Act.
It consequently takes the seven well-being goals and the five ways of working as
overarching themes and embodies a placemaking approach throughout with the aim of
delivering Active and Social Places, Productive and Enterprising Places and Distinctive
and Natural Places.

5.0.6 The document has significant implications for the planning system in Wales and
identifies that the planning system is one of the main tools to create sustainable places,
and that placemaking principles are a tool to achieving this through both plan making and
the decision making process. The revisions to PPW will have an impact on the future
development and delivery of Strategic Development Plans, Local Development Plans and
Place Plans.

5.0.7 Technical Advice Notes (TANs) - associated with PPWand those issued/amended
since LDP adoption include:

TAN 1: Joint Housing Land Availability Studies (January 2015) - in June 2018,
the WG issued notification that for the duration of a national review into the delivery

4 Wales Spatial Plan - People, Places, Futures' (2004/Updated 2008).

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

15

Tudalen61



of housing through the planning system, Paragraph 6.2 of TAN 1 would be temporarily
dis-applied. This means that currently housing land supply figures of Council's across
Wales are not being treated as a material consideration in determining housing
planning applications;
TAN 4: Retail and Commercial Development (November 2016);
TAN 12: Design (March 2016);
TAN 20: Planning and the Welsh Language (October 2017);
TAN 21: Waste (February 2017);
TAN 24: The Historic Environment (May 2017).

5.0.8 Welsh Government 'Prosperity for All: A Low Carbon Wales' (March 2019) -
the document sets out the WG’s approach to cut emissions and increase efficiency in a
way that maximises wider benefits for Wales, ensuring a fairer and healthier society. It
sets out policies and proposals that are intended to reduce emissions and support the
growth of the low carbon economy.

5.0.9 Of particular note in relation to planning are the targets and policies introduced in
the following sectors: power; buildings; transport; industry; land use, land use change and
forestry; agriculture; and wastemanagement. The implications of the Plan will be considered
through the LDP review process.

5.0.10 Implementation of Schedule 3 to the Flood and Water Management Act
2010: the Mandatory Use of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) - as of 7th January
2019, all new developments of more than 1 dwelling house or where the construction area
is 100 square metres or more will require sustainable drainage systems (SuDS) for surface
water. The SuDSmust be designed and built in accordance with Statutory SuDS Standards
(published by the Welsh Ministers) and SuDS Schemes must be approved by the local
authority acting in its SuDS Approving Body (SAB) role, before construction work begins.

5.0.11 Welsh Government Circular (005/2018): Planning for Gypsy, Traveller and
Showpeople Sites (June 2018) - the circular provides updated guidance on the planning
aspects of identifying sustainable sites for Gypsies and Travellers and outlines how planning
authorities and Gypsies and Travellers can work together to achieve this aim. The circular
outlines the duty to provide sites, the necessity of involving Gypsies and Travellers
proactively in the process and the steps required to assess the need for sites, identify
suitable sites, and include policies in development plans.

5.0.12 Noise and Soundscape Action Plan (2018-2023) - the plan outlines the Welsh
public sector’s strategic policy direction in relation to noise and soundscape management
for the next five years. It has a broader focus than just reducing noise levels alone,
recognising also the need to create appropriate soundscapes, meaning the right acoustic
environment in the right time and place.

5.0.13 Welsh Government 'Prosperity for All': the National Strategy' (2017) - takes
the commitments of their 5 year programme for Government, 'Taking Wales Forward:
2016-2021', and places them in a long-term context, setting out how they will be delivered

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

16

Tudalen62



by bringing together the efforts of the whole Welsh public sector. The four key Themes of
the strategy are: 'Prosperous & Secure'; 'Healthy & Active'; 'Ambitious & Learning'; and
'United & Connected'.

5.0.14 National Natural Resources Policy (NNRP) (2017) - focusing on the sustainable
management of Wales' natural resources, the NNRP sets out three national priorities:
delivering nature based solutions; increasing renewable energy and resource efficiency;
and taking a place-based approach. The NNRP sets the context for Natural Resources
Wales (NRW) to produce 'Area Statements' to ensure that the national priorities inform
the approach at the local level. The implications of the NNRP and relevant Area Statement
will be considered as part of the LDP review.

5.0.15 Welsh Government Valleys Task Force: Our Valleys, Our Future (July
2017) - this Ministerial Taskforce for the South Wales Valleys published a high level action
plan outlining priorities for the future of the Valleys. The key themes/priorities in the Plan
include good quality jobs and the skills to do them; better public services; and my local
community. Associated Delivery Plans subsequently outline a range of actions linked to
each priority and include the creation of new, fair, secure and sustainable jobs and exploring
the development of a Valleys Landscape Park.

5.0.16 Notably, Neath has been identified as one of seven strategic hubs where public
money is to be focused to provide opportunities for the private sector to invest and create
new jobs. The focus of each hub reflects the opportunities and demand in the particular
area along with the aspirations for the future - the Neath hub will focus on industrial,
residential, digital and energy related development.

5.0.17 Welsh Government Future Trends Report (2017) - this report identifies key
future social, economic, environmental and cultural future trends for Wales under six
themes. Whilst identifying future trends, it is hoped it will help change the way authorities
think about decision making and long term planning. The report is an attempt to take a
wider and longer view, bringing trends together and examining the interactions and inter
dependencies between them.

5.0.18 Environment (Wales) Act 2016 - the Act establishes the legislative framework
needed to plan andmanage the natural resources ofWales in a more proactive, sustainable
and joined-up way. The Act requires that NRW report on the state of Wales' natural
resources and detail their ability to respond to pressures and adapt to climate change,
and also requires theWG to produce a 'Natural Resources Policy' that sets out the priorities,
risks and opportunities for sustainably managing Wales' natural resources.

5.0.19 Historic Environment (Wales) Act 2016 - the Act makes important improvements
to existing systems for the protection of the historic environment by giving more effective
protection to listed buildings and scheduled monuments; enhancing existing mechanisms
for the sustainable management of the historic environment; and introduces greater
transparency and accountability into decisions taken on the historic environment.

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

17

Tudalen63



5.0.20 Energy Efficiency in Wales – A Strategy for the Next Ten Years (2016 –
2026) - the strategy considers the role of authorities in driving this agenda as well as the
role of other organisations, businesses and householders. It also highlights the vision to
ensure that Wales can realise its full energy efficiency potential and become a major
exporter of energy efficiency technology and know-how.

5.0.21 Well-being of Future Generations Act (2015) - the Act strengthens existing
governance arrangements for improving the well-being of Wales by ensuring that
'sustainable development' is at the heart of decision making across Government and all
public bodies and identifies seven well-being goals: a prosperous, resilient, healthier, more
equal and globally responsible Wales, and a Wales of cohesive communities, vibrant
culture and thriving Welsh language. The Act has also provided the legislative framework
for the preparation of 'Local Well-being Plans'.

5.0.22 The Act defines 'sustainable development' as the process of improving the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales and sets out five
governance principles (or five ways of working) to aid in the consideration of this work (i.e.
long term, integration, collaboration, prevention and involvement).

5.0.23 The Replacement LDP will need to be underpinned by sustainable development
principles and accordingly the review will need to be informed by an 'Integrated
Sustainability Appraisal / Strategic Environmental Assessment' (ISA/SEA). Clear linkages
and associations will also need to be made between the aims and objectives of the Local
Well-being Plan and the emerging Replacement LDP.

Regional Context

5.0.24 Swansea Bay City Region and City Deal - although the City Region was formally
launched in 2013, the key change at the regional level since the adoption of the LDP has
been the signing of the 'City Deal' on 20th March 2017. The City Deal comprises the local
authorities of Neath Port Talbot, Swansea, Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire, together
with Abertawe Bro Morgannwg and Hywel Dda University Health Boards, Swansea
University, the University of Wales Trinity St David and private sector companies.

5.0.25 The City Deal Investment Programme is intended to transform the regional
economy, establish and maintain an effective and aligned skills base, create, prove and
commercialise new technologies and ideas, and be a recognised regional centre of
excellence in the application of digital technologies, life science and well-being, energy
and advanced manufacturing. This Council is the lead authority on the following three City
Deal projects:

1. Homes as Power Stations;
2. Swansea Bay Technology Centre; and
3. Centre of Excellence for Next Generation Services (CENGS) - located within

the Swansea Bay Technology Centre.

5.0.26 The preparation of the Replacement LDP will need to be set firmly in the context
of the City Region/City Deal aspirations.

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

18

Tudalen64



5.0.27 Regional Technical Statement (RTS) 2nd Review (2020) - under the provisions
of Mineral Technical Advice Note 1 (MTAN1): Aggregates, the South Wales Regional
Aggregates Working Party (SWRAWP) is charged with preparing a RTS setting out how
aggregates demand will be met in the region for a 15 year period.

5.0.28 The RTS assesses the demand and supply of aggregates within the SouthWales
region and considers the environmental capacity of each Mineral Planning Authority (MPA)
to make a contribution to meeting the regional demand. The SWRAWP has recently
consulted on and will shortly be publishing an updated RTS 2nd Review and the implications
of the statement will be considered as part of the LDP review.

Local Context

5.0.29 Neath Port Talbot Public Services Board (PSB)Well-being Plan (2018-2023)
'The Neath Port Talbot We Want' - replacing the Single Integrated Plan (SIP), the
Well-being Plan published in May 2018 sets out the PSB's long term vision for Neath Port
Talbot. The Plan sets out the following six objectives to improve the well-being of people
in Neath Port Talbot and identifies priorities for action:

Support children in their early years, especially children at risk of adverse childhood
experiences;
Create safe, confident and resilient communities, focusing on vulnerable people;
Put more life into our later years - ageing well;
Promote well-being through work and in the workplace;
Value our green infrastructure and the contribution it makes to our well-being
(cross-cutting); and
Tackle digital exclusion (cross-cutting).

5.0.30 Neath Port Talbot Corporate Plan (2019-2022) 'Shaping NPT' - the Plan sets
out an overarching vision along with three well-being objectives: to improve the well-being
of children and young people; to improve the well-being of all adults who live in the County
Borough; and to develop the local economy and environment so that the well-being of
people can be improved.

5.0.31 The Replacement LDP will need to give a spatial expression of the land use
implications of the Neath Port Talbot Well-being Plan and Corporate Plan, and the LDP
vision in particular will need to complement those within the published documents.

5.0.32 Neath Port Talbot Biodiversity Duty Plan (2017) - the plan demonstrates how
the Council will fulfil the biodiversity duty set out under the Environment (Wales) Act 2016
and will act as a driver for conservation activities throughout Neath Port Talbot. Through
meeting the Biodiversity Duty, the Council is delivering against well-being objectives and
the ways of working under theWell-Being of Future Generations Act 2015 and contributing
towards the delivery of the Nature Recovery Action Plan for Wales. The Replacement LDP
will need to complement the Biodiversity Duty Plan and set an appropriate framework to
deliver ecosystems resilience and the protection and enhancement of biodiversity.

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

19

Tudalen65



5.0.33 Neath Port Talbot Local Biodiversity Action Plan (LBAP) - the Plan is currently
under review by the Neath Port Talbot Nature Partnership and will be replaced by a new
‘Neath Port Talbot Nature Plan’; this will set out the state of nature, highlight priorities for
conservation action in the future and ensure nature recovery in NPT. An action plan will
also be produced to set out key projects and activities that will contribute to nature recovery
and feed in to the implementation of the Welsh Nature Recovery Action Plan. The NPT
Nature Plan is intended to be published in 2020 and will feed in and inform the review of
the LDP.

5.0.34 Port Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone (2016) - in March 2016, the WG
confirmed that Port Talbot Waterfront would receive Enterprise Zone status. Its unique
combination of factors in terms of location, infrastructure and its connectivity to the
knowledge economy has attracted some of the UK’s top manufacturers, including TATA
Steel, BOC, SPECIFIC, TWI and ThyssenKrupp.

5.0.35 The area covered by the designation includes: Harbourside, Port Talbot Docks,
Baglan Energy Park and Baglan Industrial Estate. There is now a firm focus on continuing
to develop cutting edge, world class industries in sectors such as Advanced Materials and
Manufacturing, Construction and Green Energy. Businesses moving to the area will profit
from the inherent strengths and the existing growth potential of the region, and the
momentum of the Economic Regeneration Strategy of Swansea Bay City Region which
is a catalyst to improving the prospects of communities, businesses and the economy. The
preparation of the Replacement LDP will need to be set firmly in the context of these
aspirations.

Figure 5.1 Port Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone

5.0.36 Neath Port Talbot Active Travel 'Existing Route Map' (ERM) and 'Integrated
Network Map' (INM) - WG Ministers approved the Council's revised ERM and INM in
February 2018. The ERM identifies the existing routes in Neath Port Talbot that the Council
considers suitable for active travel and the INM sets out the Council’s aspirations for the

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

20

Tudalen66



next 15 years, identifying either improvements that could be made to existing routes or
where new routes could be developed and added to the active travel network. The
Replacement LDP will need to provide an appropriate policy framework to enable the
aspirations of the INM to be met.

5.0.37 Neath Port Talbot Decarbonisation and Renewable Energy Strategy - in light
of the recent declaration by the WG of a 'climate emergency', the Council has recently
consulted on and will shortly be publishing a strategy / action plan that will set the framework
to achieve the Council's carbon footprint reduction aspirations. The strategy is developed
around three key themes: transportation; buildings and spaces; and influencing behaviour.
The Replacement LDP will therefore have a key role in facilitating the implementation of
this overarching corporate strategy.

5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

21

Tudalen67



5 . Contextual Changes

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

22

Tudalen68



6 Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

6.0.1 To inform the review of the LDP and in addition to accounting for the contextual
changes set out above, there will be a need to update various elements of the evidence
base that informed the current LDP.

6.0.2 The table below provides a list of studies (albeit not exhaustive), that will be required
to inform the Replacement LDP. As this data is not yet available however, the following
section focuses on theWGPopulation and Household Projections that have been released
and the changes that have occurred since the current LDP was formulated.

Table 6.0.1 Replacement LDP - Evidence Base Studies

Evidence Base StudiesTopic Areas

Strategic Flood Consequences Assessment (SFCA)Overarching Policies

Settlement Hierarchy and Boundary Review

Annual Joint Housing Land Availability StudiesCommunities and Housing

Audit of Communities Facilities

Affordable Housing Viability Assessment

Urban Capacity Study

Open Space Assessment

Population & Household Projections

Local Housing Market Assessment (LHMA)

Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Needs Assessment

Economic Assessment and Employment Land Provision StudyThe Economy

Employment Land Review

Retail Study

Annual Retail Survey

Green Infrastructure AssessmentEnvironment and Resources

Energy Needs Assessment, Renewable Energy Assessment and
District Heat Network Assessment

Strategic Transport AssessmentTransport and Access

6 . Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

23

Tudalen69



Population and Household Projections

Adopted LDP - Current Position

6.0.3 Based on the projected economic-led growth scenario of 3,850 jobs for the area,
the current LDP makes provision for an additional 7,800 new residential units. Delivering
this level of housing need over the Plan period will lead to an increase of approximately
7,500 people and a total population of 147,400 by 2026.

6.0.4 Initially, at the time of preparing the Deposit Plan, the 2008 based WG Household
Projections were used as a starting point and were incorporated into an aspirational
economic-led scenario which aimed to maximise job growth within the local economy. The
method enabled the Authority to forecast how economic changes over the Plan period
equated to the requirements for employment land and the number of new homes needed
to accommodate the projected total population and required labour supply. Prior to the
Examination in Public, the 2011 based projections were published and the level of growth
was then reassessed using these updated projections.

6.0.5 Over time, there has been a slight change in emphasis by WG on how the
household projections should be used. During the preparation of the LDP, PPW stated
that the WG's latest household projections should form the starting point for assessing
the level of growth and housing requirement in LDPs. The latest version of PPW (2018)
however now states that these projections will form a fundamental part of the evidence
base and will therefore remain a key consideration in the LDP Review.

6.0.6 The purpose of the following section is to analyse the projections published since
the LDP was adopted and the implications of the most recent projections on the formulation
of housing need for the extended Plan period.

Revised Household Projections

6.0.7 The WG release population and household projections every three years (broken
down by Local Authority). The most recent projections released since the adoption of the
LDP are the 2014 based projections. The following table illustrates the
comparisons between the 2008, 2011 and 2014 based principle projections.

6.0.8 As illustrated in Figure 6.1 below, there is a large variation between the 2008
projections and the 2011 and 2014, with the number of households at 2026 estimated to
be 74,307 under the 2008 projections, 62,715 under the 2011 based projections and
63,009 under the 2014 projections. The 2008 projections indicate a high level of growth,
whereas the 2011 and 2014 projections follow a similar pattern with marginal variance
between the two sets of projections.

6 . Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

24

Tudalen70



Figure 6.1 Comparison ofWelshGovernment's 2008, 2011 and 2014BasedHousehold
Projections

6.0.9 As projections are trend based, the assumptions underlying the 2011 based
projections were founded on a period of economic decline following the global economic
crisis, which resulted in a significantly lower projected level of growth than the 2008
projections. Using the principle projection, it was estimated that 10,066 new homes would
be required using the 2008 projections, with the projections under the 2011
significantly lower at 2,319 new homes by 2026.

6.0.10 As the 2011 principle projections were founded on a period of low economic
growth, and as they do not make any allowance for the effects of government policy, the
WG re-emphasised the expectation of using the projections as a starting point, whilst
considering all sources of evidence available. For this reason, the 2011 based 10 year
migration variant was used, which covered a period of both high and low economic growth,
which increased the number of households at 2026 from 2,319 under the principle variant
to 4,331. This variant was then considered in the context of the aspirational
economic growth scenario to form the growth strategy in the adopted LDP.

6.0.11 More recently, the WG have made the decision not to publish the 2017 based
projections and it is anticipated that the 2018 based projections will be published in 2020.
Whilst the projections by authority are yet to be released, the national 2018 based
projections have been published, which estimates that housing need will gradually decrease
over the next 15 years, and by mid 2030s (which would be the end date of the Replacement
LDP), 6,500 new homes will be required annually in Wales.

6 . Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

25

Tudalen71



Revised Populations Projections

6.0.12 The 2008 based population projections estimated the total population at 2026 to
be 148,038, slightly higher than the LDP's economic-led growth scenario (which estimated
the population to be 147,400). Based on the 2011 Census, 2011 based projections were
published prior to the LDP adoption and estimated that the population at 2026 would be
142,716, which was 5,322 less than the 2008 based projection. By comparison, the 2014
based projections indicate a population of 142,779 at 2026, which is just 63 people lower
than the 2011 based. Figure 6.2 below illustrates the comparisons between the projections.

Figure 6.2 Comparison ofWelshGovernment's 2008, 2011 and 2014BasedPopulation
Projections

6.0.13 The housing requirement within the Replacement LDP will therefore need to be
reconsidered in the context of: the 2018 basedWG population and household projections;
the City Deal; the provisions of corporate strategies, viability and constraints (such as
flooding and topography); the key issues that the plan will seek to achieve; links between
homes and jobs; the need for affordable housing; and achieving the holistic objective of
the planning system: 'Placemaking'.

Placemaking

6.0.14 PPW continues to stress the importance of clearly identifying the housing
requirement in the development plan, and states : 'These requirements must be based on
evidence and clearly express the number of market and affordable homes the planning
authority considers will be required in their area over the plan period'.

6 . Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

26

Tudalen72



6.0.15 However, there is a now also an emphasis on Placemaking and the creation of
sustainable places: 'Sustainable Places are the goal of the land use planning system in
Wales; they are the output of the planning system rather than the process of achieving
them. All development decisions, either through development plan policy choices or
individual development management decisions should seek to contribute towards the
making of sustainable places and improved well-being'.

6.0.16 The LDP will therefore need to continue to ensure that a fully evidenced housing
requirement is identified and that the delivery of housing remains a priority, but this should
not be at the expense of the need for effective placemaking and the creation of sustainable
places.

Regional Planning - Assessing Housing Need at the Regional Level

6.0.17 Planning and coordinating the delivery of new housing to meet identified needs
will be an important task for the regional planning process. The Draft NDF (August 2019)
uses the 2014 projections and under the WG's central estimates, identifies that 114,000
homes are needed across Wales by 2038 with almost a quarter (23,400) in Mid and South
West Wales (M&SWW).

6.0.18 The Cross Border Local HousingMarket Assessment (LHMA) (2019) undertaken
by ORS on behalf of the M&SWW region (5) was based on the 2014 projections.
Accommodating each of the Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) preferred population
projections and covering a 15 year period (2018-2033) is nearing completion and will be
published early in the new year (2020).

6.0.19 Previously, Neath Port Talbot worked jointly with the City & County of Swansea
and commissioned Peter Brett Associates (PBA) to project the number of homes needed
over each of the respective Plan periods based on an employment-led strategy which
aligned job numbers with homes.

6.0.20 As part of the review, the Council will need to consider whether to undertake a
similar exercise, either with Swansea or on a larger geographical scale which could
encompass LPAs further west to align with the forthcoming SDP.

5 Based on ORS' methodology and applied consistently across all of the Local Planning Authorities within the
M&SWW region.

6 . Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

27

Tudalen73



6 . Evidence Base Changes and Requirements

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

28

Tudalen74



7 LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

7.1 Key Issues, Vision and Objectives

Key Issues

7.1.1 The LDP Key Issues were identified following a significant amount of evidence
gathering and an extensive programme of community involvement including a number of
stakeholder events held across the County Borough. A total of 18 key issues were identified,
covering a wide range of topic areas including climate change, the need for affordable
housing, erosion of the Welsh language and air quality.

7.1.2 The key issues then fed into the development of the LDP objectives which were
grouped according to the themes set out in the Wales Spatial Plan.

7.1.3 All the key issues will need to be reconsidered in the light of updated evidence
and changes in national legislation and guidance, including in particular the requirements
of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act (2015) relating to the five 'ways of
working' and the seven 'well-being goals', together with the vision and objectives set out
in the Neath Port Talbot PSB Local Well-being Plan and Corporate Plan respectively.

7.1.4 To accord with the ways of working, the close involvement of the community (public
and stakeholders) will be necessary in order to assess the continued relevance of the
existing key issues or whether changes or additions are required. This process will need
to be informed by up-to-date information on all aspects of life in Neath Port Talbot in order
to identify areas where issues have now been addressed as well as those where issues
remain an ongoing concern.

Vision

7.1.5 The LDP vision was developed from public participation and evidence gathering
and was prepared to seek to address the key issues that had been identified. The vision
consisted of several iterations as the development of the Plan progressed, from initial
consultation and stakeholder engagement sessions to its development through the Preferred
Strategy and then finalised at Deposit stage.

7.1.6 As with the key issues, the vision will need to be reconsidered in the light of updated
background evidence, the new legislation and national policy that has emerged, along
with the new corporate priorities and objectives that have been developed.

Objectives

7.1.7 The LDP vision is supported by 25 objectives, cross referenced to the relevant
key issues. Of the 25 objectives, there are four overarching, two area-based and the
remaining are grouped under the Wales Spatial Plan themes.

7.1.8 Again, the objectives will need to be reconsidered as part of the LDP Review in
the light of any changes to the key issues and vision, and to account for new evidence
from updated information and revised legislation and guidance. Given that the Wales

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

29

Tudalen75



Spatial Plan will be superseded upon adoption of the NDF, it is anticipated that the new
set of objectives will be grouped to align with the NDF and/or the themes as set out in the
new updated PPW.

7.2 Growth Strategy

7.2.1 The current LDP Strategy aims to:

Facilitate growth within Neath Port Talbot, with a focus on the coastal corridor
whilst reinvigorating the valley communities.

This means:

Focusing development along the coastal corridor and in the urban areas of
Neath and Port Talbot, in recognition of the important role these settlements
play within the wider context;
Maximising the benefit of market interest along the coastal corridor and
stimulating growth through the delivery of strategic employment sites and
strategic regeneration areas;
Identifying Pontardawe and the Upper Neath Valley as strategic growth
areas in the valleys which will create a mechanism to co-ordinate investment
and ensure the benefits of growth and regeneration are shared more widely
throughout the valley communities; and
Providing a flexible approach to development within the valley communities.

Economic-led Growth Strategy - Aligning jobs, houses, labour supply and
employment land

7.2.2 The LDP strategy is underpinned by an economic-led growth model that uses the
projected increase in jobs and an aspiration to increase the economic activity rate to identify
the required working age population to support the projected number of jobs. The projected
increase in working age population is then translated into the need for new housing, which
ensures that the housing and employment forecasting is aligned and that there is a direct
correlation between the number of jobs, houses, labour supply and employment land within
Neath Port Talbot.

7.2.3 Prior to the LDP base date economic growth in Neath Port Talbot had stagnated,
which provided an opportunity for the Plan to try and address a number of fundamental
issues within the area, maximising the opportunities likely to be created through key
regeneration and infrastructure projects. The economic-led scenario is aspirational in its
approach, aiming to maximise job creation within the local economy, seeking to increase
economic activity rates and reduce unemployment levels in line with the welsh average,
thereby addressing some of the key issues identified within the LDP.

7.2.4 The economic growth model projected that 3,850 jobs would be created over the
Plan period, increasing the number of jobs in Neath Port Talbot to 53,250 jobs by 2026,
with the population growth for the area derived from the ratio of working age population

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

30

Tudalen76



to total population. The number of jobs created over the Plan period is therefore one of
the major indicators that can monitor how the LDP strategy is being implemented and to
determine how successful the Plan has been in addressing some of the main issues in
Neath Port Talbot.

7.2.5 Data releases for jobs numbers are subject to revision and can sometimes have
fluctuations and variances year on year. There can also be time delays before the release
of the current year's data, which can make the monitoring of workplace employment more
difficult than other economic indicators. The original economic growth model projected
that there would be an increase in jobs from 48,200 in 2011 to 52,050 in 2026, representing
the 3,850 increase. However, by the time of the Examination in Public (2015), the latest
data release showed that there had actually been a decrease in the number of jobs from
48,200 in 2011 to 46,300 in 2013 and as a consequence, for the Plan to achieve 52,050
jobs by 2026, the annual target for job creation would need to increase in order to make
up for the reduction in jobs between 2011 and 2013.

7.2.6 The next statistical release revised the figures further, actually indicating that the
number of jobs at the base position (2011), was actually higher than the previous data
release had suggested, and the number of jobs in 2011 was 49,400 (as opposed to the
original release figure of 48,200), and whilst there had been a reduction of jobs in 2013
(47,100), by 2014 the number of jobs had increased to 50,500, which provided a positive
reflection on the local economy and potentially illustrating a more resilient economy.

7.2.7 A further increase in jobs was then seen over the next 12 month period, increasing
to 50,900 jobs by 2015. Since 2015, there has been a reduction in the number of jobs,
with a dramatic decrease to 46,600 jobs in 2017, which was 2,800 fewer jobs than at the
LDP base date. The latest release (2018) shows a vast improvement, increasing by 3,000
jobs to 49,600. Whilst this is positive, the overall increase between the base date, 2011
and 2018 is just 200 jobs, against a 3,850 jobs target over the Plan period. The following
table illustrates the annual fluctuations in workplace employment in Neath Port Talbot.

Table 7.2.1 Workplace Employment in Neath Port Talbot

20182017201620152014201320122011Year

49,60046,60049,80050,90050,50047,10050,20049,400Workplace
Employment

Source: Annual Population Survey, Office for National Statistics

7.2.8 Whilst the level of workplace employment has fallen significantly below the Plan's
aspirations, other LDP objectives, such as increasing the economic activity rate to align
with the Welsh average and reducing the unemployment rate have been more positive.

7.2.9 One of the Plan's objectives is to increase the economic activity rate to 76% by
2026, to align with theWelsh average. There has been an increase in the rate of economic
activity in Neath Port Talbot, increasing from 69.7% in 2011 to 74% in 2019, with the gap

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

31

Tudalen77



between Neath Port Talbot and Wales reducing slightly from being 3% behind the Welsh
average in 2011 to 2.7% behind in 2019. The gap between Neath Port Talbot and the UK
average has also reduced from 6.3% to 4.5% over the same period.

7.2.10 A further objective is to reduce the unemployment rate in line with the long term
Welsh average of 6.9%. The graph below illustrates the rate of unemployment for Neath
Port Talbot, Wales and the UK. Wales and the UK follow a similar pattern, with a steady
decline over the period. By contrast, Neath Port Talbot has seen more fluctuation over the
period, with a significant decline of 6.9% between the base date and 2019 and is now 3%,
which is lower than the Welsh (4.5%) and UK average (4.1%).

Figure 7.1 Unemployment Rate in Neath Port Talbot, Wales and UK

7.2.11 The increase in economic activity and the reduction in unemployment provides
a positive outlook for the area and shows a more resilient economic base. However, one
of the fundamental elements of the LDP strategy is to maximise job growth within the local
economy, in order to address a number of key issues the areas experiences, with wealth
creation through job growth required to meet the Plan's overall vision. Whilst economic
activity has increased, the jobs do not appear to have been created within the area, and
could possibly mean there are more people commuting outside of the area for employment
purposes.

7.2.12 Integral to increasing the number of jobs in the area, the Plan allocated sufficient
employment land to deliver an adequate supply, mix and range of high quality employment
sites at Baglan Bay, J38 of the M4, Coed Darcy and Harbourside. A total of 96 hectares

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

32

Tudalen78



of land was allocated for employment, comprising of 32 hectares for conventional B Class
uses and space to accommodate the needs of the growing energy sector. To date, only
5.1 hectares has been developed across these four strategic employment allocations.

7.2.13 As the LDP housing requirement was based on housing to support a projected
increase in the working age population to support new job creation and as jobs are not
being created, the demand for new housing has not therefore materialised.

Housing

7.2.14 The LDP makes provision to deliver 7,800 new dwellings over the Plan period.
Over the period 1st April 2011 to 31st March 2019, a total of 2,126 new housing units have
been developed, against the target of 3,582 equating to 59% of the target for the period.

7.2.15 The table below illustrates the annual requirement of the LDP compared to the
delivery of housing against the target, showing that housing completions have been below
the LDP dwelling requirement every year since the base date. Housing completions were
at their lowest in 2016/17 and 2017/18 where total completions were just 178 and 148
units respectively, significantly below the annual target of 520 units.

Housing Completions in Neath Port Talbot (2011-2019)

7.2.16 As a consequence of low housing delivery over the initial years of the Plan, to
meet the LDP housing target of 7,800 new dwellings, an annual build rate of 810 new
homes will now be needed from 2019 to 2026. This level of house building has never been

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

33

Tudalen79



achieved in Neath Port Talbot, with average build rate since the base date at a level of
265 units per year. It is therefore considered that the level of housing need is unrealistic
and not deliverable over the remainder of the Plan period.

7.2.17 Up to 31st March 2019, a total of 2,126 units have been delivered, which equates
to 27.3% of the overall housing need over the first 8 years of the LDP. There are a number
of reasons why sites have not come forward as anticipated, some of which are independent
of the planning system, with other reasons such as viability having an influence on whether
sites will come forward in the remaining Plan period.

7.2.18 The LDP has sufficient land allocated to meet the identified housing requirement
and until recently, the Authority was able to evidence a 5 year land supply based on the
anticipated level of future delivery, given early discussions with landowners and progress
made on a number of sites. However more recently, housing delivery has been slower
than anticipated and a number of the LDP allocations have not progressed to the planning
application / development stage for a number of reasons. This has resulted in the available
land supply falling below the required 5 years.

Table 7.2.2 Land Supply in Neath Port Talbot

Land SupplyYear

6 years2011/12

2.6 years2012/13

2.5 years2013/14

5.5 years2014/15

5.0 years2015/16

5.3 years2016/17

5.0 years2017/18

4.5 years2018/19

7.2.19 In light of delivery to date, it is evident that the current level of growth and the
housing allocations contained within the current LDP cannot be carried forward and the
growth strategy will need to be reconsidered during the review.

7.3 Spatial Strategy

7.3.1 The LDP spatial strategy divided the administrative area into two distinct strategy
areas to identify the broad locations for meeting the growth and development needs of
the growth strategy and in recognition of the unique identity, varying characteristics and
market demand the different areas of Neath Port Talbot possess.

7.3.2 The spatial strategy facilitates development along the M4 'coastal corridor' in the
urban areas of Neath and Port Talbot, whilst reinvigorating the 'valleys', an area comprising
of Pontardawe and the five valley areas.

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

34

Tudalen80



Coastal Corridor

7.3.3 The coastal corridor contains the areas of the strongest market demand and where
the greatest proportion of house building and economic investment is concentrated. To
deliver the growth strategy and deliver development in the most sustainable locations,
major new developments are focused along the corridor to maximise the potential of the
area, capitalising on strategic transport networks to achieve the Plan's vision.

7.3.4 To achieve more sustainable patterns of development, the re-use of brownfield
land is utilised where possible, and spatially, large scale regeneration is focused on
brownfield land at Coed Darcy and Harbourside through identification of Strategic
Regeneration Areas (SRAs).

7.3.5 The Coed Darcy development aims to create a sustainable urban village comprising
of residential, education and employment, whilst the Harbourside allocation provides an
opportunity for major regeneration and mixed use development of retail, education,
residential and employment.

7.3.6 In addition to these areas, strategic employment allocations at Junction 38 (M4)
and Baglan Bay are identified due to the market demand and their ability to accommodate
a range of employment, including the requirements of the growing energy sector and to
accommodate spin off developments from the new Swansea Bay University Campus (Bay
Campus), to encourage a shift from traditional manufacturing towards a knowledge based
economy.

7.3.7 Whilst the development of the Bay Campus has been successfully implemented
and there have been some expansions of employment uses into Baglan Bay, overall
development at the strategic employment sites and strategic regeneration areas has been
limited over the Plan period, falling below the anticipated levels of development.

7.3.8 By the 31st March 2019, the LDP housing trajectory anticipated Coed Darcy to
have delivered in the region of some 800 dwellings and 2 hectares (ha) of employment
floorspace. To date, there has been no development for employment uses and only 36%
(291 units) of the anticipated level of housing delivered. Similarly, at Harbourside delivery
has also fallen significantly below the Plan's trajectory, with 34 out of the projected 75
housing units delivered and 1.8ha of employment floorspace developed against a target
of 4.92ha.

7.3.9 In terms of infrastructure to deliver the strategy, a number of key improvements
are identified to support the growth strategy and to address issues such as congestion
and encourage a modal shift to more sustainable forms of transport. The redevelopment
of Port Talbot Parkway Station, Integrated Transport Hub, Baglan Energy Park Link Road,
Harbour Way and Ffordd Amazon have all been successfully implemented over the Plan
period. Therefore, whilst development has been limited, key infrastructure has been put
in place that could facilitate future development and address the key issues in Neath Port
Talbot.

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

35

Tudalen81



7.3.10 Based on the low levels of delivery to date, the review will need to reconsider
whether these regeneration initiatives will deliver growth within the coastal corridor, or
whether focused development in alternative locations will be more effective in delivering
the LDP Strategy, considering new initiatives such as the allocation of the Port Talbot
Waterfront Enterprise Zone in 2016.

7.3.11 The emerging NDF identifies opportunities for enhancement and a different focus
on planning for future infrastructure. The potential for a new 'Swansea Bay Metro' will
improve connectivity across the region andmaximise the opportunities for inward investment
and growth. The Metro would be one of the largest infrastructure developments seen
across the region and could bring considerable economic benefit, whilst improving
accessibility. Due to the scale of the proposals, the strategy will need to reflect the potential
opportunities associated with the development and consider how theMetro will complement
the NDF identification of the Swansea Bay and Llanelli National Growth Area (NGA). Other
forms of new infrastructure will also need to be considered in the context of the strategy,
key elements will include electric vehicle charging infrastructure, mobile communications
infrastructure and green infrastructure.

Valleys

7.3.12 The valley areas have a strong cultural heritage and distinct identity and are
steep in natural resources. Communities have however faced a decline in traditional
industries, poor health and out-migration, which has resulted in a cycle of deprivation in
some areas. The strategy to reinvigorate the Valleys recognises the challenges and key
issues within these areas and aims to diversify away from traditional industries, maximising
on regeneration initiatives and providing a more flexible approach to new development.

7.3.13 The areas of Pontardawe and the Upper Neath Valley were identified as 'Strategic
Growth Areas' for the valleys in recognition of their status as key and supporting settlements
in the Wales Spatial Plan and as they were the most sustainable settlements within the
valleys area to focus development. The benefits of managed growth and regeneration in
these areas has the ability to promote wider benefits to ripple throughout other valley
communities.

7.3.14 Pontardawe is the largest settlement within the Valleys Strategy Area (VSA),
functioning as a town centre with close links to the M4 and as a gateway to some of the
valley areas. With the ability and demand to accommodate a significant amount of new
housing development, a total of 11 housing sites are allocated, with a capacity of 664
units. Of these allocations, 240 units have been developed (up to 30th March 2019), with
delivery of housing expected to increase based on the current progress being made on a
number of sites.

7.3.15 The growth point in the Upper Neath Valley primarily centres around Glynneath,
which is situated adjacent to the A465, a key transport corridor linking to Neath, Swansea,
Cardiff and the Midlands. The retail district centre of Glynneath acts as a hub with a broad
range of services, and during the formation of the strategy had recently benefitted from
the Glynneath Town Centre Regeneration Scheme. To complement this and support the
town centre, a retail-led regeneration scheme at Park Avenue was allocated, which
comprises a mixed residential and retail allocation.

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

36

Tudalen82



7.3.16 A tourism-led mixed use regeneration development at Rheola is also allocated
to provide holiday accommodation and ancillary facilities to promote growth within the
tourism sector, due to the increasing status of the areas as a tourism destination. The
developments at Park Avenue and Rheola have not commenced during the initial years
of the Plan and the revised strategy will need to explore how growth across the valley
communities can be promoted and delivered.

7.3.17 The Strategy also seeks to encourage a more flexible approach to development
in the valleys in order to build sustainable, resilient communities with an aim to halt the
process of depopulation and decline. Live-work units are encouraged outside of, but
immediately adjacent to settlement limits and retail proposals up to 200m2 of gross
floorspace being acceptable outside of designated town, district and local centres to support
new and existing employment, create jobs and revitalise the area.

7.3.18 There have however been no live-work developments within the VSA to date.
There were three relevant applications for small retail developments of less than 200m2

in the VSA in 2018, but none in 2017 or 2019. These policies and the effectiveness of the
reinvigoration approach taken for the VSA will need to be reassessed as part of the review.

7.3.19 The emerging NDF identifies areas of the VSA as priority areas for renewable
energy. The growing energy sector and the potential for the valleys to accommodate a
number of wind and solar energy proposals will need to be considered during the review.
The potential for growth in other industries, such as tourism will also need to be considered.

7.4 Reconsideration of the Strategy

7.4.1 Although the economic-led growth strategy has seen some positive improvements
in the rate of economic activity and a reduction in unemployment, given the limited growth
in job numbers and the inability to meet the housing requirement, will mean that the strategy
will need to be reconsidered as part of the review.

7.4.2 A critical element of the LDP strategy is the job creation within the local economy,
which in turn feeds into the requirement for new housing, with the creation of new jobs an
integral element in achieving the overall vision. Given the Plan has fallen considerably
short in achieving job growth and employment development, the review will need to consider
whether an economic-led approach is still appropriate for Neath Port Talbot. Whilst the
existing strategy has addressed some of the Plan's objectives, such as reducing the
unemployment rate, some of the key issues identified still remain to be addressed.

7.4.3 Further analysis is required to determine why job growth has decreased since
2015, and whether the uncertainty around the future of TATA Steel or Brexit have had any
impact on attracting new investment to the area. New economic forecasting will be required
to establish where the potential growth sectors will be over the period of the Replacement
Plan and how contextual changes such as the Swansea Bay City Deal, Enterprise Zone
at Port Talbot, potential for the Swansea Bay Metro and the emerging NDF will have on
future economic development.

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

37

Tudalen83



7.4.4 The level of development across both strategy areas (i.e. 'Coastal Corridor' and
'Valleys') has fallen below the anticipated levels of growth set out within the adopted Plan
(as illustrated below). The review process will need to determine a revised level of
housing growth over the extended Plan period, taking account of the latest Welsh
Government projections and consider whether the spatial strategy remains the appropriate
mechanism for the distribution of growth.

Table 7.4.1 Housing Allocations & Completions by Strategy Area

Completions
Against Target

(up to 31st March
2019)

Housing
Completions H1
Allocations

(up to 31st March
2019)

Proportion
Allocated

LDP Policy H1

21%1,18982%5,690Coastal Corridor
Strategy Area

36%45718%1,275Valleys Strategy Area

-1,646100%6,695Total

7.4.5 The H1 portfolio of housing allocations will be reappraised and any undelivered
housing allocations will be reassessed to ensure that sites are deliverable and viable within
the extended Plan period. Notably, the new edition of PPW requires site viability to be
demonstrated prior to a site's allocation within the Plan, so there is now a greater emphasis
on viability which could potentially lead to the de-allocation of some sites and the inclusion
of new sites to meet the overall housing requirement.

7.4.6 The spatial distribution of the updated level of growth will also need to be considered
in the context of the draft NDF, with the emerging document suggesting there will be a
different focus for areas within the area. Draft proposals indicate that the coastal corridor
will feature within the designated Swansea Bay and Llanelli NGA, which will be the main
focus for larger scale growth and investment across the M&SWW region in recognition of
its status as the location of the main centres for population, employment, services and
connectivity.

7.4.7 The emerging national policy to focus strategic growth, essential services and
facilities, transport and digital infrastructure to the main centres, will need to be reflected
within the strategy of the Replacement LDP. Furthermore, the draft NDF recognises the
potential for the region to play a key role in supporting decarbonisation and the exploitation
of renewable energy sources such as wind, tidal and solar. A significant proportion of the
existing Valleys Strategy Area is identified within a priority area for wind and solar energy
development. These areas also have the potential to expand and diversify the tourism
industry.

7.4.8 In parallel, the revised PPW also sets out a number of planning principles that will
need to be a key focus for the Replacement Plan, in order to ensure that placemaking is
at the heart of new developments, and that the Plan creates places that promote prosperity

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

38

Tudalen84



for all, promoting healthier, active, social and accessible places for people to live and work.
All of these elements will need to be considered when assessing the current position, and
cumulatively could result in a number of changes to the overall strategy.

7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

39

Tudalen85



7 . LDP Vision, Objectives and Strategy

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

40

Tudalen86



8 LDP Topic Area Reviews

8.1 Overarching Policies

8.1.1 Strategic Policy 1 - Climate Change

8.1.1.1 Policy SP1 Climate Change is an overarching policy that is intended to be
implemented throughout all the themes and topic policies of the LDP. In the years since
the adoption of the LDP, all the indications are that climate change is becoming an ever
more pressing issue with effects and implications that are becoming more evident as time
passes. Following the Welsh Government's declaration of a climate emergency(6), it is
considered appropriate that this policy is retained as an overarching consideration that
will have overriding influence throughout the Plan.

8.1.1.2 Due to the overarching nature of the policy, a number of evidence base
documents are relevant to climate change, in terms of both causes and consequences,
for example the Environment Topic Paper, Strategic Flood Consequences Assessment
and the Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Topic Paper. The evidence base generally
relating to climate change in the context of Neath Port Talbot will need updating.

8.1.1.3 The draft NDF re-affirms the importance of climate change, stating that both the
NDF and PPW aim to ensure that the planning system focusses on delivering a
decarbonised and resilient Wales through '...the places we create, the energy we generate
and use, circular economy, the houses we live in and the way we travel'. This is taken
forward through the placemaking theme embodied in PPW.

8.1.1.4 At the Officer Working Group, no specific issues were identified in respect of the
terms of the policy or its overarching role in the Plan. The main issue identified in the AMRs
relates to a shortfall in the density of developments within the coastal corridor, which is
an issue dealt with under Policy BE1 (Design).

8.1.1.5 At present the policy is split into measures to deal with the causes of climate
change (mitigation measures) and measures relating to the consequences of climate
change (adaptation measures). It is proposed to retain this basic structure but to review
the specific policy criteria to ensure that the latest information and approaches are
incorporated.

8.1.2 Strategic Policy 2 - Health

8.1.2.1 Similarly, Policy SP2 Health is an overarching policy that is intended to be
implemented throughout all the themes and topic policies of the LDP:

Sustainable Settlements - well designed, adequately resourced and well-connected
neighbourhoods can provide positive health benefits;
Housing Allocations - siting sensitive developments such as housing away from
sources of noise, air pollution and flood risk and building to strict environmental
standards to increase energy efficiency;

6 Press Release 29/05/19

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

41

Tudalen87

https://gov.wales/welsh-government-makes-climate-emergency-declaration


Protection of Community Facilities - seeking the retention of a range of accessible
leisure, recreational, health, social, cultural and community facilities encourages
healthier, more active and safer lifestyles;
Provision and Protection of Open Space - ensure that all residents have access to
adequate open space to improve physical and mental health;
Accessibility - improve accessibility between communities and encourage active travel
wherever possible;
Employment - provide new employment opportunities to reduce unemployment and
economic inactivity rates; and
Environment - the quality of the natural and built environment can influence the health
and well-being of the population.

8.1.2.2 Health is the principle element embedded within the Well-being of Future
Generations Act which places an emphasis on taking a holistic, long term and collaborative
approach to achieving well-being through placemaking. One of the seven goals is to
achieve a healthier Wales. The new theme of placemaking and sustainable places in PPW
are relevant to this topic area and improved health is one of the objectives of the Draft
NDF. Health and well-being is therefore presented as a key objective in WG policy.

8.1.2.3 It is considered appropriate therefore that a health and well-being policy is
retained as an overarching consideration that will have overriding influence throughout
the Plan. The review however will need to consider whether it should remain as a stand
alone overarching policy or whether it should be amalgamated under a new overarching
theme of sustainable placemaking.

8.1.3 Strategic Policy 3 - Sustainable Communities

8.1.3.1 Policy SP3 Sustainable Communities is intended to facilitate the delivery of a
network of sustainable, healthy and cohesive communities through the identification and
implementation of a settlement hierarchy, defined settlement limits and protection of
community facilities.

8.1.3.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Settlement Hierarchy (Table 3.1 of the LDP) and the Settlement Topic Paper, with
information in other topic papers and documents also relevant. An audit of community
facilities and an urban capacity study will need to be undertaken to establish the current
baseline information on which to assess the capacity of settlements and the opportunities
that exist for them to grow.

8.1.3.3 In broad terms, the Settlement Hierarchy is unlikely to have changed to any
significant degree, but it will need updating to reflect any notable changes that have taken
place. Furthermore, the identified settlement limits will need amendment to reflect any
minor changes that have arisen since the Plan was adopted. Consideration will also need
to be given as to whether a revised, more flexible approach could be applied to the
identification of settlement limits within the valley areas in order to encourage more smaller
scale developments and to further facilitate reinvigoration.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

42

Tudalen88



8.1.3.4 The new placemaking theme embedded within PPW sets an even greater
emphasis on the creation of sustainable, healthy places, while the draft NDF identifies
Swansea Bay (including the towns of Neath and Port Talbot) as a national growth area.
These aspects will need to be reflected in the reviewed policies.

8.1.3.5 At the Officer Working Group, issues were also raised in respect of the detailed
wording of the criteria set out in Policy SC1 (Settlement Limits) that define the
circumstances under which development outside settlement limits would be acceptable.
The policy will need to be reviewed and amendments made to address these issues. In
respect of Policy SC2 (Protection of Existing Community Facilities), officers noted there
was some confusion concerning the definition of what constitutes a community facility. It
was also noted that there is currently no policy that relates specifically to the development
of new community facilities. Again, these issues will need to be considered as part of the
review.

8.1.4 Strategic Policy 4 - Infrastructure

8.1.4.1 Policy SP4 Infrastructure, Policy I1 (Infrastructure Requirements) and the Planning
Obligations Supplementary PlanningGuidance (SPG) seek to ensure that new development
proposals make efficient use of existing infrastructure and provide the necessary planning
obligations (as set out in Section 106 (S106) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990)
to mitigate the impacts of the development. At the time of adoption of the LDP, a Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was not progressed as funding had been identified through other
mechanisms to deliver the LDP strategy.

8.1.4.2 The evidence base which informed the formulation of these policies will be
reviewed as part of the process. The Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) (2014) established
the scale of infrastructure that currently exists but also identified the level of infrastructure
that will be provided and required in future years, the organisations responsible for providing
the infrastructure, the means (financial and otherwise) by which this infrastructure will be
provided and when it is anticipated the provision will be made.

8.1.4.3 As part of the review, an assessment of infrastructure provision and needs will
be undertaken to identify the capacity and availability of existing and planned infrastructure.
There will be a need to work closely with utility providers to have regard to their most
recent plans for improvement and the availability of funding so that infrastructure and
development are aligned. The strategy will need to reflect the availability of existing and
planned infrastructure.

8.1.4.4 Infrastructure directly relates to a number of placemaking principles identified
in the revised PPW. Both PPW and the draft NDF now place more of a focus on new types
of infrastructure, such as electric vehicle charging infrastructure, digital infrastructure,
mobile telecommunications and green infrastructure, all of which will need to be considered
during the review.

8.1.4.5 During the review of the infrastructure policies, the Officer Working Group
expressed some concern that the policy, in its current form, lacked clarity which could
impact on its implementation. The use of the term ‘infrastructure’ can cover a range of
planning considerations and can generally be interpreted as physical infrastructure, such

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

43

Tudalen89



as roads and utilities rather than planning obligations. During the review, the policy will
need to be amended to ensure there is sufficient clarity in the terminology used that will
allow the effective interpretation of the policy.

8.1.4.6 The AMR indicators have shown that a considerable number of applications
have not met their infrastructure needs (mainly relating to affordable housing and open
space provision). Due to issues with viability, the amount of S106 contributions being
secured has been significantly below the thresholds set within the LDP.

8.1.4.7 As viability has become a major issue in the determination of planning
applications, the review will need to consider the most appropriate and effective method
of securing planning obligations and ensuring that there is sufficient infrastructure in place
to deliver the strategy. PPW states that the financial viability of development sites must
be demonstrated prior to their inclusion within the Plan to ensure sites are deliverable and
can comply with other policies to deliver infrastructure and plan requirements.

8.1.4.8 Updated high level viability testing is required to consider whether the targets
within the Plan should be amended and whether CIL should be considered. A Regional
Viability Model for the M&SWWRegion is currently being developed to create a consistent
methodological approach when setting affordable housing targets and undertaking site
specific viability assessments.

8.1.4.9 Alternative means of securing planning obligations and essential infrastructure
will also be explored, such as site specific targets and masterplanning of strategic sites.

8.2 Area Based Policies

8.2.1 Strategic Policy 5 - Development in the Coastal Corridor Strategy Area

8.2.1.1 Policy SP5 Development in the Coastal Corridor Strategy Area sets out how the
spatial strategy to facilitate growth within Neath Port Talbot will be applied in the coastal
corridor. It will be implemented through a number of area-specific measures and policies,
including a number of housing allocations, employment allocations, mixed use regeneration
schemes, university campus and a number of highway schemes.

8.2.1.2 The two Strategic Regeneration Areas (SRAs) provide opportunities for large
scale redevelopment and regeneration of significant areas of brownfield land and these
will be developed over the LDP period and beyond. The SRAs will make a significant
contribution to delivering the LDP strategy, will promote economic growth, meet the
objectives of the Plan and are fundamental to the delivery of the Authority's key regeneration
proposals. They are strategically located in the urban areas of Neath and Port Talbot and
are proposed for mixed use development to promote significant regeneration to take place
that will bring wider benefits to Neath Port Talbot.

8.2.1.3 Section 7.3 of the report reviews the spatial strategy and documents the
contextual changes relevant to the coastal corridor, the findings from the previous three
AMRs and the completions on housing allocations against the targets.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

44

Tudalen90



8.2.2 Strategic Policy 6 - Development in the Valleys Strategy Area

8.2.2.1 Policy SP6 Development in the Valleys Strategy Area sets out the main measures
that will be taken to implement the spatial strategy of reinvigorating the Valleys areas. The
strategy is centred on improving economic resilience with the encouragement of tourism,
small scale employment and other economic developments, the diversification away from
traditional industries and the identification of growth areas where development will be
concentrated with the aim of spreading the regeneration effects over a wider area.

8.2.2.2 Section 7.3 of the report reviews the spatial strategy and documents the
contextual changes relevant to the VSA, the findings from the previous three AMRs and
the completions on housing allocations against the targets.

8.3 Communities and Housing

8.3.1 Strategic Policy 7 - Housing Requirement

8.3.1.1 The LDP strategy aligns the employment and housing growth, with Policy SP7
making provision to deliver 7,800 new dwellings to meet the projected increase in the
working age population. Delivering the required level of housing is therefore an integral
part of the LDP growth strategy.

8.3.1.2 The revised PPW introduces the concept of placemaking, which is a key element
in developing sustainable places that will promote healthier lifestyles and meet the
requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. Authorities should understand
their local housing market and should identify a housing requirement that is realistic and
deliverable and considers all members of the community. Future plans should therefore
cater for the housing needs of all and allocate sufficient land in the most appropriate places
to create inclusive communities that are attractive, accessible, active and healthy, creating
prosperity for all. The focus is therefore not just about meeting housing demand, but
ensuring that placemaking is at the heart of new development. The emerging NDF places
Neath Port Talbot within the M&SWW region, and estimates that 23,400 homes are needed
across the area by 2038.

8.3.1.3 There are two monitoring indicators that measure whether the LDP is meeting
the housing need identified within the Plan, these are housing completions and housing
land availability. Housing delivery has fallen significantly below the targets set within the
monitoring framework, with an average delivery rate on large sites between 2011/12 and
2018/19 of 230 homes per annum, compared with a requirement of 448 homes per annum,
as indicated below.

Table 8.3.1.1 Actual & Target Housing Completions on Large Sites 2011/12 to 2018/19

Totals2018/192017/182016/172015/162014/152013/142012/132011/12

1,835245113166231344262243231Actual

3,582686625549486386301287262Target

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

45

Tudalen91



8.3.1.4 Given that the delivery of housing development has fallen significantly below
target and the annual housing requirement has not been reached in any given year since
Plan adoption, to meet the LDP identified housing need, over the latter years of the Plan
period there would be a need to build housing units at a rate that has never been achieved
in Neath Port Talbot. Therefore, the existing level of growth is no longer deliverable, and
will require reconsideration during the review. This is detailed further within Section 7.2:
Growth Strategy.

8.3.1.5 In respect of land availability, the Council was able to demonstrate a 5 year land
supply in the first three years post adoption. However, the latest 2019 JHLAS Study has
shown that the land supply has fallen to 4.5 years.

8.3.1.6 Review of the policies with the Officer Working Group found that viability has
become an increasing concern within the area, with a number of applications unable to
meet the level of planning obligations required by the existing LDP policies. The group
has also found that there has been limited interest in development across Neath Port
Talbot, with a number of allocations within the H1 portfolio either making no progress
towards delivery, or where sites have not progressed beyond pre-application stage.

8.3.1.7 Therefore, the review will need to review all allocations within Policy H1, in the
context of any revised level of growth and determine which allocations are deliverable and
which sites should be de-allocated. All sites, whether existing H1 allocations or new
candidate sites will be required to demonstrate they are viable, deliverable within the LDP
timeframe and able to deliver planning obligations to mitigate the impacts of the
development, to ensure that developments promote sustainable places and meet the
placemaking principles. The Officer Working Group suggested that in particular, the review
should consider smaller scale house building in the valleys area.

8.3.1.8 The review will need to consider the revised Local Housing Market Assessment
to ensure that the needs of all members of the community are assessed. The potential for
revision to settlement limits and consideration of smaller allocations within the valleys
strategy area will also be assessed, to ensure there are opportunities for varying scales
of housing development.

8.3.2 Strategic Policy 8 - Affordable Housing

8.3.2.1 The LDP aims to deliver an appropriate mix and supply of housing, with Policy
SP8 setting out the approach to the delivery of affordable housing. The policy framework
sets out targets and thresholds for requiring private residential developments to contribute
to affordable housing and allows small scale affordable housing developments outside of
defined settlement limits. The policy framework relating to affordable housing was informed
by the Affordable Housing Viability Study (2012) and the Local Housing Market Assessment
(2013), both of which will need to be updated as part of the review.

8.3.2.2 Affordable housing will remain an important consideration during the review,
with PPW requiring authorities to create sustainable places and ensure an adequate mix
of house types to meet the identified housing need. Plans must understand all aspects of
the housing market and appreciate the demand for different types of affordable housing.
The emerging NDF identifies providing sufficient housing to meet identified need as one

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

46

Tudalen92



of the main priorities and estimates that 47% of new homes should be affordable. The
NDF aims to increase the delivery of affordable housing by ensuring funding is effectively
utilised and development plans have sufficient policy frameworks to deliver
affordable housing.

8.3.2.3 The AMRmonitors the number of affordable homes delivered through the planning
system, the changes in residual values and applications for affordable housing exception
sites. New affordable housing delivered through the planning system has fallen
significantly below the targets set in the monitoring framework. By the 31st March 2019,
only 50 new affordable homes had been delivered through the planning system, against
a target of 478, representing just 10.5% of the target. Whilst any amount of new, affordable
housing is positive, the shortfall in delivery will create a backlog of need and place more
pressure on the future resources to deliver affordable homes.

8.3.2.4 There are a number of reasons why delivery has fallen so far behind target, the
main reasons being the shortfall in development of general market housing and viability.
A large number of housing sites within the H1 portfolio have not progressed as anticipated,
and therefore have not delivered the level of affordable housing through S106 agreements.
On sites that have progressed, there has been the need to renegotiate the level of
affordable housing provided on sites due to viability issues.

8.3.2.5 Viability has become an increasing concern within Neath Port Talbot, with the
AMR concluding that the changes in residual value since Plan adoption having a negative
impact. Across the 6 sub-market areas, residual value has decreased substantially. Within
the 2019 AMR, the changes in residual value across the spatial areas where affordable
housing is sought were -21.46% in Neath, -28.1% in Port Talbot and -23.1% in Pontardawe.
These changes are significantly greater than the 5% trigger point within the monitoring
framework. One reason for the change is the large increase in build costs since the
Affordable Housing Viability Study was undertaken, which has not been met by an uplift
in house prices thereby having a detrimental impact on viability,

8.3.2.6 The Officer Working Group reconfirmed the findings of the AMR, and highlighted
viability as an issue in developing sites in the area, with the majority of planning applications
having to renegotiate the required planning obligations due to viability, with certain types
of developments, such as small scale conversion schemes rarely able to provide financial
contributions.

8.3.2.7 As part of the review, updated viability testing will be required to reflect changes
in development costs and the market since the original viability work was undertaken to
determine a suitable target and threshold for the Replacement Plan and to ensure that
targets are realistic and achievable. PPW now requires sites to demonstrate their financial
viability prior to their inclusion within the Plan, this should help to ensure that sites allocated
are deliverable within the Plan period and able to deliver the necessary planning obligations
to ensure developments create sustainable places. An updated Local Housing Market
Assessment is also required to identify the housing need in the area and assess the
requirements for niche groups, to ensure housing for all members of the community is
considered.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

47

Tudalen93



8.3.2.8 There have been no applications for affordable housing exception sites over the
Plan period. The current threshold is restricted to 9 units, and during the review the existing
threshold will be reviewed in discussion with the Officer Working Group and Registered
Social Landlords active within the area. The group also highlighted the increase in
applications for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) which will also need to be considered
during the review.

8.3.3 Strategic Policy 9 - Gypsies and Travellers

8.3.3.1 Neath Port Talbot has a well established Gypsy and Traveller Community. Policy
SP9 provides the policy framework for ensuring there is adequate pitch provision to
accommodate the needs of the community over the Plan period, through the allocation of
a site and providing a criteria policy to assess applications for new sites.

8.3.3.2 The policy was informed by the findings of the 2012 Gypsy and Traveller
Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) which identified a need of 20 pitches: 4 pitches by
2017; 7 pitches by 2022; and 9 pitches by 2026. To accommodate the short to medium
term need (11 pitches by 2022) an extension to the existing site at Cae Garw, Margam
was allocated, with the longer term need (9 pitches 2023-26) to be addressed through the
monitoring framework based on updated GTAAs.

8.3.3.3 Under the requirements of the Housing (Wales) Act (2014), a new GTAA was
completed and approved by Welsh Ministers in 2016. This most recent assessment
concluded that the 11 pitches accommodated at Cae Garw was sufficient to meet the
needs of the community, with an additional 4 pitches required by the end of the Plan period
(2026); lower than the need identified in the 2012 study.

8.3.3.4 GTAAs are required at intervals of at least 5 years, with the next assessment
due by 2021. This study will identify the needs of the Gypsy and Traveller Community over
the period of the Replacement Plan and will be used to form a new policy if a need is
identified. The extension of 11 pitches at Cae Garw was completed in 2016 and therefore
Policy GT1 will need to be amended during the review to reflect the new assessment.

8.3.3.5 The Officer Working Group found the general policy approach to be working
effectively. Since LDP adoption, Planning Circular 005/2018 'Planning for Gypsy, Traveller
and Showpeople Sites' was published, providing guidance on the duty to provide sites,
engaging the community in the process and policies to include within development plans.
Policy GT2 may require some minor amendments to ensure conformity with the new
Circular.

8.3.4 Strategic Policy 10 - Open Space

8.3.4.1 The Strategic Policy (SP10) , Policy OS1 (Open Space Provision), OS2
(Protection of Existing Open Space) and the Open Space and Greenspace SPG seek to
ensure that new development proposals make provision for the open space needs of its
future occupiers and employees, by providing on or off-site provision or making S106
contributions to enable provision or enhancement to be made locally. In addition, existing
open space is afforded protection from development unless specified criteria can be met.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

48

Tudalen94



8.3.4.2 The Open Space Topic Paper and Open Space Assessment (2013) provided
the evidence base which underpinned the policies contained within the LDP. The
assessment identified deficiencies in the quantity and quality of existing provision in relation
to the Fields in Trust (FIT) Six Acre Standard adopted in the LDP. The FIT Standard has
now been revised since the adoption of the LDP: Guidance for Outdoor Sport and Play:
Beyond the Six Acre Standard (2017) recommends benchmark guidelines for both formal
and informal outdoor space. The Review will need to fully consider whether to implement
these requirements in the light of TAN 16: Sport, Recreation and Open Space (2009)
which promotes evidence based locally generated standards.

8.3.4.3 Open Space directly relates to a number of the placemaking principles identified
in PPW, and in respect of the requirements for Green Infrastructure as well as being
embedded in the well-being principles: a 'Healthier Wales' and a 'Wales of vibrant culture
and thrivingWelsh Language', directly reference physical andmental health and behaviours
or encouraging participation on sports and recreation. These principles will need to be
considered as part of the review, especially the multi-functional and multi-generational
use of open space.

8.3.4.4 The Officer Working Group indicated that further consideration should be given
to the threshold in the policy, particularly in light of the viability issues on some sites and
whether this may impact on site delivery. Some minor rewording of the policies may also
be appropriate to improve clarity.

8.3.4.5 The AMR monitors both the provision and loss of open space. In respect of the
provision of open space, the indicator shows that the policy is largely working to secure
open space although this is often affected by viability considerations. The latest AMR
identifies that the policy should be reviewed. In respect of the protection of open space,
this is generally applied consistently, but may have the potential to be strengthened.

8.3.4.6 As indicated under Policy SP4 (Infrastructure) viability has become amajor issue
in the determination of planning applications. The review will need to consider the most
appropriate and effective method of securing planning obligations and ensuring that there
is sufficient infrastructure in place to deliver the strategy. PPW now states that the financial
viability of development sites must be demonstrated prior to their inclusion to ensure sites
are deliverable and can comply with other Plan policies to deliver infrastructure and plan
requirements. Whilst this may assist on allocated sites, viability may still be an issue on
smaller sites or windfall sites. The review of Policy SP4 does have linkages to SP10 so
careful consideration will need to be given to how any changes may impact on the policies.

8.3.4.7 Over the course of the review, consideration will also need to be given to whether
there is a need to allocate land for open space and whether the open space policy should
be located in a different section of the Plan under a placemaking theme.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

49

Tudalen95



8.4 The Economy

8.4.1 Strategic Policy 11 - Employment Growth

8.4.1.1 Policy SP11 Employment Growth aims to promote a sustainable economy through
a number of measures including the allocation of sites for economic development,
safeguarding existing employment sites and providing a more flexible approach to
development in the valley areas.

8.4.1.2 The policy framework was informed by the Economic Assessment and
Employment Land Provision Study (2012), which used macro-economic trends to forecast
the requirements for employment land over the Plan period. The recommended amount
of floorspace was then adjusted to make allowances for alternative plot ratios, to account
for stock losses and to ensure there was sufficient flexibility. Employment allocations and
areas of safeguarding were based on the conclusions of the Employment Land Review
(2014).

8.4.1.3 One of the key components of the updated PPW is 'Productive and Enterprising
Places', with the economy an important component of placemaking and creating sustainable
places. The economy will remain one of the fundamental elements of the Plan including,
allocating sufficient land to meet market demand and ensuring there is appropriate
economic infrastructure in place (i.e. physical, electronic or digital).

8.4.1.4 The draft NDF identifies the areas of Neath and Port Talbot within the Swansea
Bay and Llanelli NGA for the M&SWW Region, which will influence where employment
provision is directed within the spatial strategy of the Replacement Plan.

8.4.1.5 The AMR has identified a number of issues relating to the delivery of employment
development within the area. Of the four sites allocated for economic development in
Policy EC1 (Employment Allocations), there has been no development for employment
uses at J38 (M4) or Coed Darcy. Whilst there has been some development at Baglan Bay
and Harbourside, this has been limited and fallen significantly behind the anticipated
delivery rates within the monitoring framework. Policy EC1 allocated 96ha of employment
land, of which 32ha was for traditional B Class uses, whilst the remainder (64ha) to meet
the needs of the growing energy sector. To date, there has been a total of 5.1ha of
development across the allocations, of which 1.8ha has been for B class uses and 3.3ha
for a solar photovoltaic scheme.

8.4.1.6 A number of the monitoring indicators measure the performance of the economy
as a whole, in terms of job numbers, economic activity and unemployment. These are key
elements of the Plan strategy and are examined in further detail within section 7.2: Growth
Strategy. The AMR also found that there have been no applications for live-work units
since Plan adoption, and therefore the review will need to consider if the policy is still
necessary, or whether there are amendments required that would encourage its use.

8.4.1.7 TheOfficerWorking Group suggested that some elements of the policy framework
could be amended to provide further clarity and to encourage more development. Existing
policies EC3 (Employment Area Uses) and EC4 (Protection of Existing Employment Uses)
currently define appropriate uses in employment areas (EC3) and protect employment

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

50

Tudalen96



uses from development that would result in the loss of employment land or buildings (EC4).
The group suggested that the policies could be combined into one policy that would be
able to cover both elements. Policies EC5 (Employment Uses in the Valleys) allows a
more flexible approach to development in the valleys. It was suggested that whilst
development is permitted outside of settlement limits, considerations should be given to
whether this could be relaxed further to promote employment development in the valleys,
providing it was balanced with principles of sustainable development.

8.4.1.8 The review will need to consider the findings of the updated evidence base,
namely the Economic Assessment Study and the Employment Land Review to establish
the need for employment floorspace over the Plan period, based on projected growth
sectors and identify the most suitable locations for development. Existing allocations will
need to be reassessed to determine if they are viable and able to deliver the Plan's revised
strategy. Contextual changes, such as the identification of the Port Talbot Enterprise Zone,
and a number of the emerging NDF policies such as the Swansea Bay Metro, mobile
action zones, and the identification of the growth area will all need to be considered during
the review.

8.4.2 Strategic Policy 12 - Retail

8.4.2.1 The Strategic Retail Policy (SP12) and Policies R1 (Retail Allocations), R2
(Proposals Within Retail Centres) and R3 (Out of Centre Retail Proposals), seek to protect,
enhance and support the retail centres across the area through the planning process.

8.4.2.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Retail Topic Paper, the Retail Hierarchy Paper and the Retail Study. In the years since
these documents were prepared (2013/14), the retail climate nationally has changed
significantly with the growing popularity of internet shopping and the closure of a significant
number of important retail businesses, and these documents and studies will need to be
updated. An annual retail survey is also undertaken that will help to inform policy
development.

8.4.2.3 The draft NDF includes policies intended to support urban centres and ensure
that significant developments are located within town and city centres, while PPW promotes
retail and commercial centres as being the most appropriate location for a range of activities
in addition to retail services. The emphasis on placemaking within PPW is also significant
in respect of managing change and in the development of retail and commercial centres.

8.4.2.4 At the Officer Working Group meeting held to discuss this topic it was noted that
whilst the retail hierarchy was effective, it was acknowledged that boundaries will need to
be reviewed and amended based on evidence including changes from retail studies. It
was suggested that there might be a need for bulky goods allocations on edge of centre
sites, although this would need to be justified through a new retail study. In respect of
Policy R2 criteria (3) and (4), these have not always been successfully applied and these
and the extent of the primary street designations will need to be reviewed. Policy for dealing
with ‘pop-up’ businesses and retail kiosks should also be considered.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

51

Tudalen97



8.4.2.5 The AMR has identified no specific issues with retail policy implementation, but
the overall need for the policies and their effectiveness should be considered, in particular
in respect of the necessity for and usefulness of R2 Retail Centre policy restrictions. In
addition, although the R2 small shops policy concession has had a small but positive
effect, the policy thresholds should be reviewed.

8.4.2.6 Other issues that should be considered as part of the review include the general
refocussing of the topic to relate to retail and commercial development and the placemaking
theme, in accordance with more recent national policy and guidance.

8.4.3 Strategic Policy 13 - Tourism

8.4.3.1 Over recent years, the tourism industry has been growing in Neath Port Talbot,
with considerable investment in some areas. To support the growing industry, the policy
approach in the LDP provided flexibility to encourage sustainable tourism development.
The Valley Strategy Area in particular benefits from existing visitor attractions, such as
mountain biking at the Afan Valley and Waterfall Country in the Vale of Neath.

8.4.3.2 PPW recognises that the role of tourism is vital to economic prosperity and job
creation in parts of Wales, and requires plans to provide a framework to maintain and
develop well-located, good quality tourism facilities. The emerging NDF identified tourism
as a potential growth area for the M&SWW region, and supports high quality development
across the region to ensure all communities are able to benefit from their landscapes,
natural and historic environment, heritage assets and visitor attractions to grow their
economies.

8.4.3.3 The AMRs have not identified any issues relating to tourism indicators and have
not identified that any action is required. A number of tourism related proposals have been
approved since Plan adoption, and all walking and cycling routes identified in Policy TO4
have been implemented. The tourism led regeneration scheme at Rheola has had planning
approval, subject to the signing of a S106 agreement. Given that the S106 is yet to be
signed and development has not progressed, the status of the allocation and the potential
for future delivery will be considered as part of the review.

8.4.3.4 The Officer Working Group found that the policies relating to tourism are
functioning effectively and identified areas where clarity could be improved. Policy TO2
protects existing tourism facilities, and will only permit changes to residential use where
it is demonstrated tourism or other employment generating uses are no longer viable. The
group suggested the policy should be expanded to provide a sequential approach to allow
conversion to other uses, not just residential. This will be considered during the review.

8.5 Environment and Resources

8.5.1 Strategic Policy 14 - The Countryside and Undeveloped Coast

8.5.1.1 The Strategic Policy (SP14) and Policies EN1 (The Undeveloped Coast), EN2
(Special Landscape Areas), EN3 (Green Wedges), EN4 (Replacement Dwellings in the
Countryside) and EN5 (Conversion and Extension of Existing Dwellings in the Countryside),
supplemented by the Landscape and Seascape SPG, seek to ensure that the countryside

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

52

Tudalen98



and important landscapes and undeveloped coast across the area are protected from
inappropriate development and are conserved, while supporting rural enterprise including
tourism and leisure activities.

8.5.1.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Environment Topic Paper (Sections on the Countryside and Undeveloped Coast), the NPT
LANDMAP Landscape Assessment (2004) and the Carmarthen Bay, Gower and Swansea
Bay Local Seascape Character Assessment (2017). On the whole, the character of the
countryside and landscape across Neath Port Talbot is unlikely to have changed
significantly in respect of the evidence base, but it may be appropriate to consider updating
the LANDMAP Landscape Assessment (to assess the need for changes to the extent and
possible additions to the GreenWedge and Special Landscape Areas). The need for these
updates will require assessment in the light of changing national policy as this emerges
(refer below).

8.5.1.3 Countryside and Rural Economy policy contained within PPW and relevant
TANs is largely unchanged since LDP adoption. However, one of the major impacts on
the countryside and landscapes of Neath Port Talbot is likely to be from the development
of renewable energy schemes, in particular wind and solar farms. Only proposals below
10MW are now determined by LPAs and covered by LDP policy, and draft NDF Policy 10
is proposed to cover larger schemes which will be determined by the Welsh Government.
Draft Policy 10 indicates a presumption in favour of schemes within the identified Priority
Areas as shown in the draft NDF. The Priority Areas are areas within which landscape
change is deemed to be acceptable and may therefore be essentially incompatible with
LDP Special Landscape Area designations. This issue will need to be addressed as national
policy emerges over the LDP preparation period.

8.5.1.4 At the Officer Working Group meeting held to discuss these policies, it was noted
that the Special Landscape Area designations and Policy EN2 are likely to need
reassessment in the light of emerging NDF policy on renewable energy (refer above).
Policy EN3 (Green Wedges) was considered to be effective and only likely to need minor
amendments to the boundaries of some designations. Policies EN4 (Replacement Dwellings
in the Countryside) and EN5 (Conversion and Extension of Existing Buildings in the
Countryside) were generally considered to be effective in principle, but amendments and
clarification may be required in relation to the guideline sizes given for extensions and
replacement dwellings.

8.5.1.5 The main finding of the AMR in respect of the Countryside and Undeveloped
Coast policies was that of mixed impacts in respects of development in Green Wedges
and Special Landscape Areas, where developments have been permitted contrary to
policy. It was also noted that there appears to be a conflict between EN2 SLA policy and
policy relating to the refined Strategic Search Areas for renewable energy (Policy RE1).

8.5.1.6 Other issues that may need to be considered as part of the review include
addressing potential overlaps between policies relating to development outside settlement
limits (Policy SC1), Special Landscape Areas (EN2), Green Wedges (EN3), biodiversity
designations (SP15, EN6 and EN7) and new approaches to green infrastructure.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

53

Tudalen99



8.5.2 Strategic Policy 15 - Biodiversity and Geodiversity

8.5.2.1 The Biodiversity and Geodiversity Strategic Policy (SP15) and Policies EN6
(Important Biodiversity and Geodiversity Sites) and EN7 (Important Natural Features),
supplemented by the Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG, seek to protect, conserve and
enhance important biodiversity and geodiversity sites and features within the area through
the planning process.

8.5.2.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Environment Topic Paper (Sections on Biodiversity andGeodiversity). Although geodiversity
matters are unlikely to have changed significantly, the information will require updating in
respect of the area's biodiversity.

8.5.2.3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity policy within the draft NDF and PPW embodies a
strengthening of the role and importance of biodiversity considerations within the planning
system, following on from the Environment (Wales) Act 2016 which introduced an enhanced
biodiversity and resilience of ecosystems duty (the S6 duty) for public authorities requiring
them to seek to maintain and enhance biodiversity in the exercise of all their functions.
The emphasis on placemaking within PPW is also likely to be relevant in respect of
complying with this duty.

8.5.2.4 At the Officer Working Groupmeeting held to consider these policies the following
matters were discussed: It was indicated that there had been some issues with identifying
suitable sites for biodiversity compensation in relation to certain schemes. A number of
the LDP allocations are on sites designated as SINCs this causes problems and should
ideally be avoided. Sites should be surveyed to identify features of interest to be retained
as part of the placemaking approach. Previously there was a policy to require one tree to
be planted for each new dwelling and consideration should be given to reintroducing this.
PPW now requires biodiversity enhancement: this may require the integration of Green
Infrastructure (GI) and placemaking approaches together with more information about the
biodiversity present on allocated sites. Policy EN7 is useful and frequently used and it
may be appropriate to strengthen it as part of a placemaking approach.

8.5.2.5 The main finding of the AMR in respect of the Biodiversity and Geodiversity
policies was the continuing net loss of biodiversity as a result of planning decisions, without
adequate mitigation or compensation being secured in all cases.

8.5.2.6 Other issues that should be considered as part of the review include consideration
of the approach to the overlap between biodiversity policy and policies relating to
development outside settlement limits (Policy SC1), Special Landscape Areas (EN2),
Green Wedges (EN3) and new approaches to GI. Consideration should also be given to
the possible need to designate areas as National Forest, as proposed in the draft NDF.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

54

Tudalen100



8.5.3 Strategic Policy 16 - Environmental Protection

8.5.3.1 The Environmental Protection Strategic Policy (SP16) and Policies EN8 (Pollution
and Land Stability), EN9 (Developments in the Central Port Talbot Area) and EN10 (Quiet
Areas), supplemented by the Pollution SPG, seek to protect the quality of air, water and
soil and the environment generally and ensure that developments do not increase the
number of people exposed to significant levels of pollution.

8.5.3.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Environment Topic Paper (Environmental Protection section). The evidence base
information and documents for this topic will need to be updated to take into account the
latest information on pollution and land stability issues and in the light of any changes to
national policy but there are not anticipated to be any major changes in these respects
with regard to this topic.

8.5.3.3 Environmental protection policies within PPW re-emphasises the importance of
pollution and stability issues and introduces some revised approaches and terminology
including the need to achieve appropriate soundscapes rather than simply address noise
pollution, and advocates the adoption of a de-risking approach. These changes will need
to be reflected in the LDP policies.

8.5.3.4 At the Officer Working Group meeting held to discuss these policies issues with
land stability in parts of Neath Port Talbot were discussed. The possibility of dividing Policy
EN8 should be considered to provide separate policies for pollution and land stability,
referring to areas having historic land stability issues. This could include a requirement
for developers to provide information to justify development in such areas. Problems with
air quality in relation to specific LDP allocations were discussed together with the possibility
of strengthening consideration of impacts that new development would have on existing
uses in terms of exacerbating existing pollution issues. Links between requirements to
provide sustainable drainage systems in new developments (SuDS) and the water quality
criterion of Policy EN8 should also be taken into account.

8.5.3.5 No specific issues were identified in the AMR in respect of the application of
LDP pollution and land stability policies.

8.5.4 Strategic Policy 17 - Minerals

8.5.4.1 Neath Port Talbot is underlain by a significant amount of mineral resources with
a number of sites operational within the area. The Minerals Strategic Policy (SP17) and
Policies M1 (Development in Mineral Safeguarding Areas), M2 (Surface Coal Operations),
M3 (Development in Mineral Buffer Zones) and M4 (Criteria for the Assessment of Mineral
Development), seek to regulate the exploitation of mineral resources in order to make a
proportionate contribution to meeting the national, regional and local demand for minerals
while achieving an acceptable and sustainable balance with protecting the environment
and local communities.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

55

Tudalen101



8.5.4.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Minerals Topic Paper. Guidance for mineral extraction and related development in Wales
is set out in the updated PPW and supplemented by Minerals Technical Advice Notes
(MTANs).

8.5.4.3 Under the provisions of MTAN1: Aggregates, the South Wales Regional
Aggregates Working Party (SWRAWP) is charged with preparing a Regional Technical
Statement (RTS) setting out how aggregates demand will be met in the region for a 15
year period. The RTS assesses the demand and supply of aggregates within the region
and considers the environmental capacity of each Mineral Planning Authority (MPA) to
make a contribution to meeting the regional demand.

8.5.4.4 The SWRAWP has recently consulted on and will shortly be publishing an
updated RTS 2nd Review and the implications of the statement will need to be fully
considered as part of the LDP review. The Replacement LDP will need to continue to show
evidence that the Authority has the necessary landbank of aggregate reserves to meet
the identified need. Evidence set out in the AMRs to date indicates that Neath Port Talbot
has more than an adequate landbank of aggregates to meet identified need and therefore
it is highly unlikely that any new allocations will be required.

8.5.4.5 Whilst in general terms the mineral policies are considered to remain sound, the
need to respond to changing circumstances will need to be considered. Given the
declaration of a 'climate emergency' and the need to decarbonise the economy, the policy
of the Welsh Government is to no longer support the working of coal. PPW has therefore
been updated setting out the position that new applications for the working of coal should
now be resisted unless there are identified exceptional circumstances, and that there is
no longer a requirement for LDP policies to safeguard coal resources or to indicate where
coal operations would not be acceptable (i.e. Policy M2).

8.5.4.6 In addition, the draft NDF sets out the policy framework for determination of
renewable energy proposals including the introduction of Priority Areas within which there
will be a presumption in favour of wind and solar schemes (refer below). A large part of
Neath Port Talbot is within the draft wind and/or solar priority areas, so the question of
sterilisation of mineral resources / reserves by renewable energy developments will need
to be clarified as part of the review.

8.5.5 Strategic Policy 18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

8.5.5.1 The Strategic Policy (SP18) and Policies RE1 (Criteria for the Assessment of
Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Development) and RE2 (Renewable and Low Carbon
Energy in New Development), supplemented by the Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
SPG, seek to ensure that the area makes a proportionate contribution to renewable energy
generation while balancing the impact of renewable energy developments on the
environment and communities.

8.5.5.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Renewable and LowCarbon Energy Topic Paper, the LDPRenewable Energy Assessment,
the TAN 8 Annex D Study of Strategic Search Areas E and F: South Wales Valleys, and
the Provision of Landscape Advice Report. The evidence base information and documents

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

56

Tudalen102



for this topic will need to be reconsidered and revisited in the light of changes to national
policy and consenting regimes and changes in renewable energy technologies. Additional
information may be required in respect of the following:

Study into the potential for developing district heat networks, particularly in the Neath
area;
Assessments of the energy needs of all new proposed development and need for
additional generating capacity;
Identify challenging but achievable targets for renewable energy (absolute energy
installed capacity/resource potential); and
Implement the Low Carbon Toolkit (including assessment of resource potential,
impacts and opportunities, cumulative impacts and connection issues).

8.5.5.3 All proposals for onshore generating projects between 10MWand 50MW capacity
(and greater for wind energy) are now dealt with by Welsh Ministers with Local Authorities
dealing only with proposals below 10MW.

8.5.5.4 The draft NDF sets out the policy framework for determination of renewable
energy proposals including the introduction of Priority Areas within which there will be a
presumption in favour of wind and solar schemes. Other draft NDF policies cover other
aspects of renewable energy development and district heat networks. A large part of Neath
Port Talbot is within the draft wind and/or solar priority areas, where there would be a
presumption in favour of Renewable Energy (RE) developments. Neath is identified as a
priority area for District Heat Networks where opportunities should be identified and
implemented.

8.5.5.5 National policy in respect of renewable energy is therefore currently under review.
PPW currently promotes the development of renewable energy resources, introduces the
Energy Hierarchy and requires planning authorities to plan positively for local power
generation including providing for the co-location of developments to enable local heat
opportunities, maximising the use of waste heat, district heating and combined heat and
power. Both PPW and TAN8 (Renewable Energy) will be reviewed once NDF policy is
finalised and LDP policies will need to reflect and comply with this emerging framework.

8.5.5.6 At the Officer Working Group meeting held to discuss the LDP policies it was
noted that Policy RE1 would need to be amended but that the form it would take will depend
on the finalised national policy framework. It was considered that the need to split RE1 to
have separate policies for wind and solar power should be assessed as part of the review.
The question of sterilisation of mineral reserves by renewable energy developments has
been an issue in the past and this issue will also need to be clarified.

8.5.5.7 In respect of Policy RE2 (Renewable and Low Carbon Energy in New
Development) it was recommended that consideration should be given to amending the
thresholds for the requirement of Energy Assessments and whether the threshold of 100
dwellings for residential developments in particular should be reduced although this will
need to be considered in the light of development viability issues.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

57

Tudalen103



8.5.5.8 No specific issues were identified in the AMR in respect of the Renewable and
LowCarbon Energy LDP policies. However, the SAmonitoring has identified mixed impacts
in relation to the thresholds for requiring the submission of renewable energy assessments
(Policy RE2).

8.5.5.9 In addition to the above, consideration will need to be given to the need for a
separate policy for district heat networks, particularly in the Neath area, and the formal
identification of renewable energy targets.

8.5.6 Strategic Policy 19 - Waste Management

8.5.6.1 The Waste Management Strategic Policy (SP19) and Policies W1 (In-Building
Waste Treatment Facilities), W2 (Deposit of Inert Waste on Agricultural Land) and W3
(Waste Management in New Development), seek to take a sustainable approach to waste
management and contribute to making provision for an integrated and adequate network
of waste management facilities.

8.5.6.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Waste Topic Paper and the Waste Planning Monitoring Reports (WPMRs) which are
published annually by the SouthWestWales Region. PPW indicates thatCircular Economy
principles should underpin all developments and encourages design approaches that
prevent waste. It also sets out the waste hierarchy for dealing with waste materials with
disposal as the last option.

8.5.6.3 Furthermore, PPW supplemented by TAN 21 (Waste) requires that progress
towards establishing an integrated and adequate network of facilities is monitored to identify
whether sufficient landfill capacity is being maintained; sufficient treatment capacity is
beingmaintained; whether the spatial pattern of provision is appropriate to address identified
needs; and whether any further action is needed by LPAs to address unforeseen issues.

8.5.6.4 Central to the process of preparing the WPMR is the collection and analysis of
information regarding the waste situation within the region. The principle role of theWPMR
is to collate and present all available data to enable the effective monitoring of both the
region’s waste arisings and waste management facilities and to assess the region’s
performance against the targets set out in the National Waste Strategy forWales – ‘Towards
Zero Waste’ (TZW).

8.5.6.5 Whilst the evidence set out in the AMRs to date indicates that in general terms
the waste policies are considered to remain sound, the need to respond to changing
circumstances will need to be considered throughout the review. The information and
analysis presented in the WPMRs will inform this process and provide a basis to take
action on the waste arising’s within each local authority area and by implication the region
as a whole.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

58

Tudalen104



8.6 Transport and Access

8.6.1 Strategic Policy 20 - Transport Network

8.6.1.1 The Transport Network Strategic Policy (SP21) and policies TR1 (Transport
Proposals), TR2 (Design and Access of NewDevelopment), TR3 (Safeguarding of Disused
Railway Infrastructure) and TR4 (Safeguarding Freight Facilities), supplemented by the
Parking Standards SPG seek to support and develop the transport network to safely and
effectively facilitate the movement of people and freight within the area, reduce reliance
on the private car and improve connectivity.

8.6.1.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Transport Topic Paper. All the information and documents relating to this topic will need
to be updated to take into account transport infrastructure changes and other developments
that have taken place since the Plan was adopted, together with general updating of the
information available. Regard will be had to the Joint Local Transport Plan (LTP) for South
WestWales 2015-2020. Replacing the Regional Transport Plan (prepared by the SWWITCH
consortia) the four authorities in SouthWestWales have worked collaboratively in preparing
the LTP as an overarching City Region LTP. Consideration needs to be given to the policy
and land use implications of the schemes identified in the LTP.

8.6.1.3 The draft NDF emphasises the growing importance of ultra low emission vehicles
(ULEVs), active travel and public transport and includes a policy supporting development
of the Swansea Bay Metro system. The placemaking theme embodied in PPW is of
significance in relation to transport policy, and enabling more sustainable travel choices
is emphasised, together with making best use of existing capacity and managing demand.
The Sustainable Transport Hierarchy is set out as a key principle for development plans,
favouring walking and cycling first, followed by public transport, then ULEVs with other
private motor vehicles at the bottom of the hierarchy.

8.6.1.4 The Active Travel (Wales) Act 2013 places a legal requirement on local authorities
in Wales to produce active travel maps and deliver year on year improvements in active
travel routes and facilities. Any new or amended proposals for active travel routes and
facilities, especially for walking and cycling, may be considered for safeguarding through
the LDP revision process where they are within a programme, supported by funding and
likely to be delivered in the Plan period.

8.6.1.5 At the Officer Working Group meeting to discuss these policies it was noted that
some of the developments/sites listed in policies TR1 (Transport Proposals) and TR4
(Safeguarding Freight Facilities) need to be reconsidered and updated where appropriate
to take into account the completion of some proposals, reconsider of others that have not
come forward as expected and to add any new schemes. The possibility of new specific
policies for ULEVs, Active Travel and Green Infrastructure were discussed. The proposed
Swansea Bay Metro has potential positive and negative implications for Neath Port Talbot
which will need to be assessed as more detailed proposals come forward.

8.6.1.6 The AMR identifies the schemes (listed in Policy TR1) that have not been
completed and indicates that TR1 will need to be subject to a review process to take into
account the current situation. No specific issues have been identified with the other policies.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

59

Tudalen105



8.7 Culture and Heritage

8.7.1 Strategic Policy 21 - Built Environment and Historic Heritage

8.7.1.1 Strategic Policy (SP21), Policies BE1 (Design), BE2 (Buildings of Local
Importance) and BE3 (The Canal Network), the Design SPG and the Historic Environment
SPG seek to ensure that new development is undertaken to a high design standard and
that the important existing historic environment of the area is conserved and enhanced
wherever possible.

8.7.1.2 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Environment Topic Paper (Sections on the Built Environment and Historic Heritage) and
the Schedules of Buildings of Local Importance and of Designated Canal Structures
(contained within the Historic Environment SPG). For the most part, the built and historic
environment is unlikely to have changed significantly in respect of the evidence base, but
areas that may require updating include the Schedule of Buildings of Local Importance
(to take into account losses and possible additions as part of the review of the SPG) and
the undertaking of Conservation Area Appraisals.

8.7.1.3 The placemaking theme introduced by PPW10, together with TAN12 (Design)
amended in 2016 together have significant implications for design issues in particular, and
will have to be taken into account. Similarly, the new TAN24 (The Historic Environment)
consolidates and expands significantly on the previous guidance and will need to be
reflected in the review.

8.7.1.4 At the Officer Working Group meeting held to discuss these policies, concerns
were expressed that the design policy (BE1) is insufficiently clear and effective when used
to determine applications. The need and usefulness of Policy BE2 (Buildings of Local
Importance) was also debated, given the lack of resources available to deal with the
conservation of the historic environment generally.

8.7.1.5 No specific issues were identified in the AMR in respect of the operation of the
LDP policies for the Built Environment and Historic Heritage.

8.7.1.6 Other issues that may need to be considered as part of the review include
changing the terminology used to bring it in line with the latest guidance (e.g. Historic
Environment rather than Historic Heritage and Historic Assets of Special Local Interest
rather than Buildings of Local Importance). The new emphasis on placemaking and design
issues also suggests that consideration should be given to splitting design policy from
historic matters and the addition of a new placemaking/design strategic policy.

8.7.2 Strategic Policy 22 - Welsh Language

8.7.2.1 The Strategic Policy (SP22), Policy WL1 (Development in Language Sensitive
Areas) and the Development and the Welsh Language SPG seek to ensure that
development in the designated 'Language Sensitive Area' (LSA) mitigate any negative
impacts of the development on the Welsh language and culture, through the provision of
Section 106 contributions to protect, promote and enhance the Welsh language.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

60

Tudalen106



8.7.2.2 A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language is one of the seven
well-being goals identified in the Well-being of Future Generations Act, which is also
embedded in PPW and its sustainable placemaking principles. The importance of the
Welsh Language is also highlighted by theWelsh Government's ambitious target to achieve
one million Welsh speakers by the year 2050(7).

8.7.2.3 The evidence base informing the development of these policies includes the
Welsh Language Topic Paper and the Welsh Language Impact Assessment. For the most
part, the evidence base is unlikely to have changed significantly, but a review of the latest
statistical data will be needed to determine whether there will be a need to amend the
extent of the designated LSA or whether the policy thresholds require revision.
Consideration may also be given to a bilingual signage policy.

8.7.2.4 No specific issues have been identified in the AMR in respect of the operation
of the LDP policies for the Welsh language and no concerns were expressed in terms of
the clarity and wording of the policies at the Officer Working Group. In general, the policy
appears to be working well and will be retained within the Replacement LDP.

7 Cymraeg 2050: A Million Welsh Speakers.

8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

61

Tudalen107



8 . LDP Topic Area Reviews

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

62

Tudalen108



9 Reconsideration of the SA/SEA and HRA

9.1 Sustainability Appraisal (SA) including Strategic Environmental Assessment
(SEA)

9.1.1 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that the process of
drawing up and developing an LDP is informed throughout by an iterative process of
Sustainability Appraisal (SA). The SA also incorporates Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) required under European Directive 2001/42/EC. This is intended to
ensure that policies in the LDP all promote 'sustainable development' through integrating
economic, environmental, social and cultural objectives into the development of all aspects
of the LDP.

9.1.2 The findings of the SA monitoring are summarised annually in the AMR to give
an assessment of the impacts of the implementation of the LDP policies, and a summary
of the main findings is set out in Section 4 above.

9.1.3 The SA/SEA will need to be the subject of a thorough review process to take into
account all broader contextual changes in terms of national policy and guidance, changes
and updates to baseline information and other new approaches and information. The SA
Scoping Report will be reviewed accordingly, including the SAmethodology and monitoring
framework. Consideration will also need to be given to integrating theWell-being of Future
Generations Act 2015 requirements, Equalities Act, Welsh Language and Health Impact
Assessment into a single Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA).

9.2 Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)

9.2.1 The LDP was also the subject of Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA) to
assess whether its implementation would have any impacts on any European sites of
nature conservation importance (i.e. Special Areas of Conservation and Special Protection
Areas, including Ramsar Sites). This involves an extensive screening process relating to
all LDP policies and proposals and a detailed assessment of likely impacts.

9.2.2 The Replacement LDP will again need to be subject to HRA, and this will require
the HRA screening process and methodology to be reviewed and revisited and applied to
developing LDP proposals in an iterative process to ensure that the relevant legislation
and regulations are complied with and any issues are fully addressed.

9 . Reconsideration of the SA/SEA and HRA

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

63

Tudalen109



9 . Reconsideration of the SA/SEA and HRA

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

64

Tudalen110



10 Opportunities for Collaborative Working

10.1 Joint LDPs and Collaborative Studies

10.1.1 Collaboration is a requirement of the Well-being of Future Generations Act and
part of the first LDP test of soundness (i.e. Does the Plan Fit?). In addition, the updated
draft 'Development Plans Manual (Edition 3)', indicates that LPAs will need to demonstrate
that all opportunities for joint working and collaboration on both plan preparation and the
evidence base have been exhausted. This is particularly relevant where the LDPs of
neighbouring authorities are on similar preparation timescales and where there are strong
cross-boundary linkages.

Joint Local Development Plans

10.1.2 Neath Port Talbot Council shares its administrative boundary with six other Local
Planning Authorities (LPAs): Swansea, Carmarthenshire, Powys, Rhondda Cynon Taf,
Bridgend and Brecon Beacons National Park. The following table summarises each LPA's
current position in respect of their LDP preparation cycle.

Table 10.1.1 LDP Status in Adjoining Local Planning Authorities

Progress of ReviewPlan PeriodDate of LDP
Adoption

Local Authority

Not required at present2010 - 20252019Swansea

Work started on Replacement LDP with
recent consultation on the Preferred
Strategy.

2006 - 20212014
Carmarthenshire

Not required at present2011 - 20262018Powys

N/A2006 - 20212011Rhondda Cynon Taf

Work started on Replacement LDP with
recent consultation on the Preferred
Strategy.

2006 - 20212013
Bridgend

Work started on Replacement LDP with
recent consultation on the Preferred
Strategy.

2007 - 20222013
Brecon Beacons National Park

10.1.3 The above information highlights that in terms of timescales, there is little
opportunity to prepare a Joint LDP with any adjoining authority, as all are at significantly
different stages in the plan preparation process. Despite the incompatible timescales,
collaboration with all neighbouring authorities will nevertheless be a central part of the
work to prepare the Replacement LDP which will need to align as far as possible with
existing and/or emerging strategies and proposals of adjoining areas.

10 . Opportunities for Collaborative Working

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

65

Tudalen111



Collaborative Initiatives and Studies

10.1.4 Recognising that the most effective focus and use of resources at this stage
would be to build on joint working opportunities on cross-boundary issues and key areas
of evidence, a significant amount of collaborative work involving all authorities affiliated to
the Mid and South West Wales Strategic (M&SWW) Planning Group has already
commenced.

10.1.5 To date, discussions and progress have centred on three key studies: a 'Regional
Employment Study' (RES), a ‘Joint Local Housing Market Assessment’ (LHMA) and a
'Regional Viability Study' (RVS). All three studies will not only inform reviews of individual
LDPs but will also contribute positively as a potential baseline for future work on SDPs
(refer below).

10.1.6 The work associated with the RES has currently been put on hold primarily due
to resource / capacity issues within those LPAs that are focusing their efforts and attention
on putting in place an evidence base for their respective LDPs. Notably, ‘Regional Officer’
posts have recently been created within the Welsh Government and as such, it is the
intention that the RES be re-visited in the future, with a potentially greater SDP focus, in
conjunction with WG officers.

10.1.7 Following the appointment of Opinion Research Services (ORS), the Joint LHMA
study is nearing completion. The final regional report and sub area (LPA) reports are
expected at the end of December 2019. The aim of the commission was to ensure that a
consistent methodological approach was established to assess the housing needs across
the M&SWW region in accordance with best practice, to provide robust data to inform
forthcoming LHMAs.

10.1.8 The RVS, lead by Andrew Burrows of ‘Burrows-Hutchinson’ is also nearing
completion: with the Development Viability Model (DVM) currently in the process of being
made available on each respective LA's website. The DVM is a spreadsheet based
appraisal tool capable of testing the suitability of sites for inclusion in a Plan/Strategy and
also to assist the assessment of financial viability of a specific development proposal at
application stage. Use of the DVM can be used as part of submissions to the Council for
pre-application advice, planning applications and ‘Candidate Sites’ submitted as part of
the LDP review process.

10.1.9 Additional collaborative work that will inform LDP preparation has also been
undertaken with specific neighbouring authorities, with an example being the preparation
with colleagues in Swansea of the FabianWay Innovation Corridor Supplementary Planning
Guidance. Future preparation of joint and shared evidence such as this, including potential
Statements of Common Ground (SoCG) where shared interests exist, will be pursued
wherever the opportunities arise.

10 . Opportunities for Collaborative Working

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

66

Tudalen112



10.2 Strategic Development Plans

10.2.1 The Planning (Wales) Act 2015 introduced the legal framework to strengthen the
plan led approach in Wales by introducing the legal basis to prepare the National
Development Framework (NDF) and also Strategic Development Plans (SDPs). LDPs or
LDP Lites (i.e. a shorter, more focused version of an LDP where a SDP is in place), will
ultimately need to conform with these higher tier plans.

10.2.2 The Draft NDF policy framework requires SDPs to come forward in each of the
three identified regions: North Wales; Mid and South West Wales (M&SWW) and South
East Wales. These areas will be the focus for WG policy and future investment. The SDP
will need to address cross-boundary issues at a regional level and must be in general
conformity with the NDF. Notably, in respect of the Draft NDF policy framework specific
to the M&SWW region:

Swansea, Neath, Port Talbot and Llanelli are identified as 'Centres of National
Growth' with these areas being the main focus for investment and growth;
Carmarthen, Llandrindod Wells, Newtown, Aberystwyth and the four haven
towns are identified as 'Centres of Regional Growth' and will be the focus for
managed growth reflecting their important sub-regional functions;
As a proportion of national need, 23,400 homes are needed by 2038 and over
the initial 5 years (2018/19 to 2022/23) 44% of the homes needed should be
affordable; and
The policy framework also specifically supports the continued development of
the Haven Waterway and Swansea Bay Metro.

Figure 10.1 Mid and South West Wales Region

10 . Opportunities for Collaborative Working

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

67

Tudalen113



10.2.3 In light of this new emerging planning regime in Wales, SDP related discussions
are now taking place on a regular basis across the M&SWW region to establish the future
role of authorities and the scope of the work required. Following the publication of the Draft
NDF, discussions between the constituent LPAs will now be gathering pace to determine
how the preparation of a SDP should progress, including agreeing the geographical
footprint, the governance arrangements, the resources available and the timing of plan
preparation.

10.2.4 Over the course of preparing the Replacement LDP therefore, there will be a
need for the Council to closely consider the implications of the SDP as and when the new
regional policy direction emerges.

10 . Opportunities for Collaborative Working

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

68

Tudalen114



Appendix A: LDP Policy Review

A.1 The following provides an overview of the LDP Policies (Strategic Policies are in
Bold):

Table A.0.1 Overarching Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy
Ref

The Policy will be retained but the individual policy criteria will be reviewed to ensure
that the latest information and approaches are incorporated.

Climate ChangeSP1

This Policy will be subject of review to consider whether the Policy considerations
should be widened in the light of legislative changes and a greater focus on a holistic
approach to development.

HealthSP2

No specific issues identified in relation to Policy SP3. The need for an additional
detailed policy relating to new community facilities should be given consideration.

Sustainable
Communities

SP3

The policy will be reviewed in respect of the wording of the criteria.Settlement LimitsSC1

Consideration to be given to providing additional clarification about the
definition/scope of the term Community Facilities.

Protection of
Existing Community
Facilities

SC2

This Policy will be the subject of a review as it is not delivering the benefits
anticipated. The term 'infrastructure' can cover a range of planning considerations

InfrastructureSP4

and therefore the policy text will require amendments to ensure physical infrastructure
and planning obligations can be readily separated to provide clarity.

The Policy is essential in ensuring that there is sufficient infrastructure to mitigate
the impacts of new development and should be carried forward in the new plan.
However, as with the Strategic Policy, the policy needs to be amended to provide

Infrastructure
Requirements

I1

further clarify on the requirements for planning obligations. Viability testing will
determine the scope for developer contributions in new developments and an
assessment of the key issues will determine if the list of potential requirements are
still appropriate.

Table A.0.2 Area Based Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy
Ref

The policy requires amendment to reflect the revised spatial and growth
strategies. The policy will need to consider the emerging NDF, updated

Development in the
Coastal Corridor Strategy
area

SP5

evidence base and will require an assessment of existing and potential new
allocations to determine their ability to accommodate future development.

Revise policy to reflect reconsideration of spatial and growth strategy.Coed Darcy Strategic
Regeneration Area

SRA1

Revise policy to reflect reconsideration of spatial and growth strategy.Harbourside Strategic
Regeneration Area

SRA 2

Revise policy to reflect reconsideration of spatial and growth strategy.Coastal Corridor
Regeneration Schemes

CCRS
1

Campus mostly developed, consider whether a specific policy is still relevant.Coastal Corridor University
Campus

CCRS
2

Appendix A: . LDP Policy Review

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

69

Tudalen115



OverviewTitlePolicy
Ref

Whilst, in view of the emerging NDF, it is likely that the coastal/ valley split
will be retained, there are a number of indicators relevant to this Policy, which

Development in the
Valleys Strategy area

SP6

have had mixed success. Those relating to overall housing delivery and that
in Pontardawe SGA have not delivered as anticipated. Whilst the housing
indicators for Glynneath SGA and the Neath Valley have not raised issues,
this is because the delivery date has not been reached. It is likely that new
allocations within the Valleys will need to be made to help enable its growth,
which will include residential development, safeguard employment , cultural
heritage and regeneration opportunities.

Revise policy to reflect reconsideration of spatial and growth strategy.Valleys Strategy
Regeneration Scheme

VRS 1

Table A.0.3 Communities and Housing Topic Based Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

Policy will be subject to amendment to reflect the updated spatial and growth
strategies and the level of housing need required over the plan period.

Housing
Requirement

SP7

Revise housing allocations to reflect the spatial and growth strategies and
the spatial distribution of housing over the plan.

Housing SitesH2

The policy will be subject to amendment to reflect the updated strategy,
viability evidence, and national policy relating to affordable housing.

Affordable HousingSP8

The policy will require amendment to reflect updated viability work.Affordable HousingAH1

No relevant applications since LDP adoption. Further investigation and
discussion with RSL partners and possible amendments required.

Affordable Housing
Exception Sites

AH2

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments required to reflect the next
Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment.

Gypsies and
Travellers

SP9

The allocation has been delivered. Policy to either be removed or updated
to reflect the requirements of the next Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation
Assessment.

Gypsy and Traveller
Site

GT1

The policy is functioning effectively. Some minor amendments required to
align with updated national policy guidance.

Proposals for New
Gypsy and Traveller
Sites

GT2

The strategic policy may not require any revision, as the issues it covers are
still relevant and appropriate.

Open SpaceSP10

This Policy requires review, there have been changes to the FIT standard,
which a review will need to consider. In addition the requirement for Green

Open Space
Provision

OS1

Infrastructure may need to feature in this Policy, if it is not included
elsewhere. In addition some amendments required in response to the Officer
Working Group comments to improve clarity.

Policy seems to be working relatively well on the whole, it may need some
slight revision to add further clarity, but should be carried forward into the

Protection of Existing
Open Space

OS2

new Plan. In addition some amendments required in response to the Officer
Working Group comments to improve clarity.

Appendix A: . LDP Policy Review

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

70

Tudalen116



Table A.0.4 The Economy Topic Based Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

Policy will be reviewed in line with updated economic assessment to ensure
the policy reflects the plan’s strategy.

EmploymentGrowthSP11

Review to establish the expected demand for employment floorspace required
to deliver the strategy. Review of the employment allocations to determine if
allocations are deliverable and viable.

Employment
Allocations

EC1

Review to establish the expected demand for employment floorspace required
to deliver the strategy. Consider whether the protection of all employment
areas listed are required based on conclusions of Employment Land Review.

Existing Employment
Areas

EC2

The policy is functioning effectively. Consider some minor amendments to
improve clarity and consider whether policies EC3 and EC4 can be combined.

Employment Area
Uses

EC3

The policy is functioning effectively. Following comments fromOfficer Working
Group, consider some minor amendments to improve clarity and consider
whether policies EC3 and EC4 can be combined.

Protection of Existing
Employment Uses

EC4

The policy is functioning effectively. Consider some minor amendments to
improve clarity, in response to Officer Working Group comments.

Employment Uses in
the Valleys

EC5

No relevant applications since LDP adoption. Consider whether policy is still
necessary.

Live work UnitsEC6

The Policy is functioning effectively, with the issues covered still relevant.
Some minor amendments may be required to reflect changes to national

RetailSP12

retail policy. The retail hierarchy and retail boundaries will be subject to review
and amendment to ensure designations are up to date and appropriate.

The policy will require amendment to reflect the revised assessment of need.Retail AllocationsR1

The policy is functioning effectively. Where necessary, there may be some
minor revisions to the policy required to reflect changes to national retail
policy.

Proposals within
Retail Centres

R2

The policy is functioning effectively. Where necessary, there may be some
minor revisions to the policy required to reflect changes to national retail
policy.

Out of Centre Retail
Proposals

R3

The policy is functioning effectively.TourismSP13

The policy is functioning effectively. Consider some minor amendments to
improve clarity, in response to Officer Working Group comments.

TourismDevelopment
in the Countryside

TO1

The policy is functioning effectively. Following comments fromOfficer Working
Group, consideration needed as to whether the policy should be expanded
to cover the conversion to other uses, not just residential.

Protection of Existing
Tourism Facilities

TO2

The allocation has not been delivered. Consider whether the allocation is still
appropriate and deliverable within the plan period and consider whether other
allocations are required to meet the strategy.

Tourism Led
Regeneration
Scheme

TO3

The routes identified have been delivered. Consider the allocation of
alternative walking and cycling routes required to deliver the strategy.

Walking and Cycling
Routes

TO4

Appendix A: . LDP Policy Review

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

71

Tudalen117



Table A.0.5 Environment and Resources Topic Based Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

The policy is functioning effectively.The Countryside and
Undeveloped Coast

SP14

The policy is functioning effectively.The Undeveloped
Coast

EN1

The policy may need to be reviewed in the light of national policy changes
and application decisions.

Special Landscape
Areas

EN2

The policy may need to be reviewed in the light of application decisions.Green WedgesEN3

The policy is functioning effectively.Replacement Dwellings
in the Open
Countryside

EN4

The policy is functioning effectively.Conversion and
Extension of Existing

EN5

Buildings in the
Countryside

The policy will be reviewed in the light of the on-going loss of biodiversity
as a result of planning decisions.

Biodiversity and
Geodiversity

SP15

The policy is functioning effectively.Important Biodiversity
and Geodiversity Sites

EN6

The policy is functioning effectively.Important Natural
Features

EN7

The policy is functioning effectively.Environmental
Protection

SP16

The policy is functioning effectively. Following comments from the Officer
Working Group, consider splitting the policy to have separate policies for
Pollution and Land Stability to improve clarity.

Pollution and Land
Stability

EN8

The policy is functioning effectively. Consider some minor amendments to
improve clarity, in response to Officer Working Group comments.

Developments in the
Central Port Talbot
Area

EN9

The policy is functioning effectively.Quiet AreasEN10

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national minerals policy.

MineralsSP17

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national minerals policy.

Development in Mineral
Safeguarding Areas

M1

The policy is no longer required due to changes to national minerals policy.Surface Coal
Operations

M2

The policy is functioning effectively.Development in Mineral
Buffer Zones

M3

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national minerals policy.

Criteria for the
Assessment of Mineral
Development

M4

Appendix A: . LDP Policy Review

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

72

Tudalen118



OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national renewable energy policy.

Renewable and Low
Carbon Energy

SP18

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national renewable energy policy.

Criteria for the
Assessment of

RE1

Renewable and Low
Carbon Energy
Development

The policy functioning effectively. Consider amending the threshold for
submitting assessments in response to Office Working Group comments.

Renewable and Low
Carbon Energy in New
Development

RE2

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national waste policy.

Waste ManagementSP19

The policy is functioning effectively.In-Building Waste
Treatment Facilities

W1

The policy is functioning effectively.Deposit of Inert Waste
on Agricultural Land

W2

The policy is functioning effectively.Waste Management in
New Development

W3

Table A.0.6 Transport and Access Topic Based Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect
changes to national transport policy.

Transport NetworkSP20

The policy is functioning effectively. Amendments are required to reflect the
fact that schemes have been completed.

Transport ProposalsTR1

The policy is functioning effectively.Design and Access of
New Development

TR2

The policy is functioning effectively.Safeguarding of
Disused Railway
Infrastructure

TR3

The policy is functioning effectively.Safeguarding Freight
Facilities

TR4

Table A.0.7 Culture and Heritage Topic Based Policies

OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

The policy is functioning effectively.Built Environment
and Historic
Heritage

SP21

The policy will be reviewed in order to consider amendments in response to
officer working group comments.

DesignBE1

The policy is functioning effectively.Buildings of Local
Importance

BE2

Appendix A: . LDP Policy Review

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

73

Tudalen119



OverviewTitlePolicy Ref

The policy is functioning effectively.The Canal NetworkBE3

The Policy may require someminor revision, if any other Language Sensitive
Areas are identified from research.

Welsh LanguageSP22

The Policy will remain, but may require some minor revision, if the thresholds
need revision. Someminor revision may be required in response to the Officer

Development in
Language Sensitive
Areas

WL1

working group comments e.g. In respect of thresholds, or the inclusion of an
Advertisement / Signage Policy.

Appendix A: . LDP Policy Review

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

74

Tudalen120



Appendix B: Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

Table B.0.1 SA Monitoring Findings (Summary Table)

SA Finding/ RecommendationIssues 2019Issues 2018Issues
2017

Ind
Ref

SA Objective

Ref

There have been approvals
contrary to policy within flood
zone C2. This was addressed

N/AN/AFlooding: 3
Approvals
in Zone C26

Climate
Change
Adaptation1A

through officer/member training.
Monitoring of this issue should
continue.

Areas of GW/SLA have not been
protected. The policies should be
reviewed to ensure designated
areas/controls are appropriate.

Development in
GW and SLA

N/AN/A

62

Significant (& increasing)
shortfalls in density requirements
are unsustainable in terms of

CCSA Density -
17% compliance

CCSA Density
- 32%
compliance

CCSA
Density -
50%
compliance

1

Climate
Change
Mitigation

1B

resources and env impact. The
terms and operation of the policy
should be reviewed.VSA Density -

16% compliance
VSA Density -
24%
compliance

VSA
Density -
27%
compliance

2

There have been significant
shortfalls in the number of REAs
submitted, and therefore in the

1 REA submittedN/ANo REAs
submitted

75 provision of Renewable/low
carbon energy technologies. The
terms and operation of the policy
should be reviewed.

Concerns at low number of
RE/LC proposals although this
appears to be improving. Policy

N/ANo RE
Proprosals

N/A

74

Climate
Change
Energy

1C

should be reviewed, but national
policy appears to be changing in
respect of larger proposals.

There have been significant
shortfalls in the number of REAs
submitted, and therefore in the

1 REA submittedN/ANo REAs
submitted

75 provision of Renewable/low
carbon energy technologies. The
terms and operation of the policy
should be reviewed.

Significant (& increasing)
shortfalls in density requirements
are unsustainable in terms of
resources and env impact. The
terms and operation of the policy
should be reviewed.

CCSA Density -
17% compliance

CCSA Density
- 32%
compliance

CCSA
Density -
50%
compliance1

Natural
Resources2A

Appendix B: . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

75

Tudalen121



SA Finding/ RecommendationIssues 2019Issues 2018Issues
2017

Ind
Ref

SA Objective

Ref

VSA Density -
16% compliance

VSA Density -
24%
compliance

VSA
Density -
27%
compliance

2

Areas of GW/SLA have not been
protected in accordance with
policy. The terms and operation

Developments
approved in GW
and SLA contrary
to policy

N/AN/A

62 of the relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure designated
areas and controls are
appropriate.

Biodiversity targets not beingmet.
The terms and operation of the
relevant policies should be

0.15ha SINC lostN/AN/A

SA8Loss of
Biodiversity3A reviewed to ensure designated

areas and controls are
appropriate.

No biodiversity enhancements
achieved through planning
process (info only available for

No biodiversity
enhancements
made as a result
of developer
contributions

N/AN/A

12Biodiversity
Improvements3B 2019): The terms and operation

of the relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure designated
areas and controls are
appropriate.

Areas of GW/SLA have not been
protected in accordance with
policy. The terms and operation

Developments
approved in GW
and SLA contrary
to policy

N/AN/A

62Landscape &
Townscape4A of the relevant policies should be

reviewed to ensure designated
areas and controls are
appropriate.

The effectiveness of the policy
appears to be improving, but it
should be reviewed to ensure that

N/A3 Community
facilities lost

10
Community
facilities
lost7

Social
Cohesion6A

measures are employed to
prevent losses of community
facilities wherever possible.

The effectiveness of the policy
appears to be improving, but it
should be reviewed to ensure that
measures are employed to
support communities.

N/A1 application
was approved
for town centre
uses in an out
of town
location

1
application
was
approved
for town
centre uses

10

in an out of
town
location

Appendix B: . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

76

Tudalen122



SA Finding/ RecommendationIssues 2019Issues 2018Issues
2017

Ind
Ref

SA Objective

Ref

Shortfalls in housing delivery are
likely to have detrimental impacts
on the local economy and

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
behind targets

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
behind targets

N/A

14

affordable housing provision and
therefore may adversely affect

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites in
VSA behind
targets

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
in VSA behind
targets

N/A

31

community cohesion. The
relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
for social cohesion are
maximised.

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites in
Pontardawe
behind targets

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
in Pontardawe
behind targets

N/A

32

Delivery of all
types of housing
behind target

Delivery of all
types of
housing
behind target

N/A

39

Delivery of
affordable housing
behind target

Delivery of
affordable
housing
behind target

N/A

41

Shortfalls in open space provision
are likely to have negative
impacts on social cohesion. The

Targets for the
provision of open
space not fully
met

Targets for the
provision of
open space
not fully met

Targets for
the
provision of
open space
not fully
met

46 relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Shortfalls in employment
floorspace provision are likely to
have negative impacts on social

Targets for the
provision of new
employment

Targets for the
provision of
new

N/A

52 cohesion. The relevant policies
should be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.

floorspace not met
for two
consecutive years

employment
floorspace not
fully met

Lack of new small scale local
retail provision is likely to have a
negative impact on social

No small scale
local retail
proposals
approved

N/AN/A

58 cohesion. The policy should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

The effectiveness of the policy
appears to be improving, but it
should be reviewed to ensure that

N/A3 Community
facilities lost

10
Community
facilities
lost7

Physical and
mental health
outcomes

7A
measures are employed to
prevent adverse outcomes
wherever possible.

Appendix B: . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

77

Tudalen123



SA Finding/ RecommendationIssues 2019Issues 2018Issues
2017

Ind
Ref

SA Objective

Ref

Shortfalls in open space provision
are likely to have negative
impacts on health outcomes. The

Targets for the
provision of open
space not fully
met

Targets for the
provision of
open space
not fully met

Targets for
the
provision of
open space
not fully
met

46 relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Reductions in workplace
employment are likely to have
negative impacts on health

Decreasing levels
of workplace
employment

Decreasing
levels of
workplace
employment

N/A

49 outcomes. Relevant policies
should be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.

Rates of economic activity appear
to have fluctuated, with likely
mixed results on health

N/ADecreasing
rates of
economic
activity

N/A

53 outcomes. Relevant policies
should be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.

The effectiveness of the policy
appears to be improving, but it
should be reviewed to ensure that

N/A3 Community
facilities lost

10
Community
facilities
lost7

Minimise the
incidence and
impacts of ill
health

7B

measures are employed to
minimise adverse effects
wherever possible.

Shortfalls in open space provision
are likely to have negative
impacts on health. The relevant

Targets for the
provision of open
space not fully
met

Targets for the
provision of
open space
not fully met

Targets for
the
provision of
open space
not fully
met

46 policies should be reviewed to
ensure that benefits are
maximised.

Reductions in workplace
employment are likely to have
negative impacts on health.

Decreasing levels
of workplace
employment

Decreasing
levels of
workplace
employment

N/A

49 Relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Rates of economic activity appear
to have fluctuated, with likely
mixed results on health. Relevant

N/ADecreasing
rates of
economic
activity

N/A

53 policies should be reviewed to
ensure that benefits are
maximised.

Reductions in workplace
employment are likely to have
negative impacts on poverty.

Decreasing levels
of workplace
employment

Decreasing
levels of
workplace
employment

N/A

49

Minimise the
incidence and
impacts of
poverty

7C
Relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Appendix B: . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

78

Tudalen124



SA Finding/ RecommendationIssues 2019Issues 2018Issues
2017

Ind
Ref

SA Objective

Ref

Rates of economic activity appear
to have fluctuated, with likely
mixed results on poverty.

N/ADecreasing
rates of
economic
activity

N/A

53 Relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Shortfalls in housing delivery are
likely to have detrimental
implications for economic
infrastructure.

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
behind targets

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
behind targets

N/A

14

Economic
Infrastructure8A

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites in
VSA behind
targets

Delivery of
housing on
allocated sites
in VSA behind
targets

N/A

31

Delivery of all
types of housing
behind target

Delivery of all
types of
housing
behind target

N/A

39

Delivery of
affordable housing
behind target

Delivery of
affordable
housing
behind target

N/A

41

Shortfalls in employment
floorspace provision are likely to
have negative impacts on

Targets for the
provision of new
employment

Targets for the
provision of
new

N/A

52 economic infrastructure. Thefloorspace not met
for two
consecutive years

employment
floorspace not
fully met

relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Lack of new small scale local
retail provision is likely to have a
negative impact on economic

No small scale
local retail
proposals
approved

N/AN/A

58 infrastructure. The policy should
be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.

Shortfalls in housing delivery are
likely to have mixed impacts on
the economic use of local

Delivery of
housing at Coed
Darcy below
target for 2
consecutive years

N/AN/A

15
Use of local
resources and
assets

8B

resources. The relevant policies
should be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.

Shortfalls in employment
development are likely to have
mixed impacts on the economic

No new
employment
developments at
Coed Darcy

N/AN/A

16

use of local resources. The

Appendix B: . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

79

Tudalen125



SA Finding/ RecommendationIssues 2019Issues 2018Issues
2017

Ind
Ref

SA Objective

Ref

relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Shortfalls in housing delivery are
likely to have mixed impacts on
the economic use of local

Delivery of
housing at
Harbourside
below target for 2
consecutive years

N/AN/A

19 resources. The relevant policies
should be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.

Shortfalls in employment
development are likely to have
mixed impacts on the economic

No new
employment
developments at
Harbourside for 3
consecutive years

N/AN/A

20 use of local resources. The
relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

Lack of retail development is
likely to have mixed impacts on
the economic use of local

No new retail
developments at
Harbourside for 3
consecutive years

N/AN/A

21

resources. The relevant policies
should be reviewed to ensure that
benefits are maximised.No small scale

local retail
proposals
approved

N/AN/A

58

Shortfalls in employment
development are likely to have
mixed impacts on the economic

No new
employment
developments at
Coed Darcy

N/AN/A

16

Use of local
skills and
knowledge

8C

use of local resources. The
relevant policies should be
reviewed to ensure that benefits
are maximised.

No new
employment
developments at
Harbourside for 3
consecutive years

N/AN/A

20

Lack of small scale local retail
proposals likely to have adverse
impacts on the use of local skills

No small scale
local retail
proposals
approved

N/AN/A

58 and knowledge. The relevant
policies should be reviewed to
ensure that benefits are
maximised.

Appendix B: . Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring - Key Findings

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

80

Tudalen126



Appendix C: Status of LDP Allocations

C.1 The following tables provides an up-to-date summary of the status of the current
LDP allocations.

C.2 As part of the LDP review, all allocations not yet commenced will be reassessed to
determine if they remain deliverable. Those sites that are no longer considered deliverable
will be de-allocated and removed from the LDP. In addition, those existing allocations with
no current planning approval will need to be re-submitted as part of the Candidate Sites
stage so their suitability can be reassessed.

Table C.0.1 Policy H1 - Current Status of Housing Allocations

CommentaryEstimated
Number of

Units

Site NameRef

No planning application received15Gorffwysfa,
BryncochH1/1

No planning application received. Site has been subject to
pre-application discussions200

Leiros Park
Extension,
Bryncoch

H1/2

Site under construction42Groves Road
(Phase 2), NeathH1/3

Site complete81Ocean View, Jersey
MarineH1/4

No planning application received100Dwr Y Felin Lower
School, LongfordH1/5

Site under construction12Hafod House Care
Home, NeathH1/6

Site has full planning permission for 12 units. No planning
application received for remainder of site50Neath Town Centre

RedevelopmentH1/7

Site complete

75

Crymlyn Grove
(Phase 2) to the
rear of Crymlyn
Parc, Skewen

H1/8

No planning application received

150

Crymlyn Grove
(Phase 3) to the
rear of Crymlyn
Parc, Skewen

H1/9

Site complete
50

Wern Goch,
Crymlyn Road,
Skewen

H1/10

Part of site has permission for 138 units. No planning application
received for remainder of site300

Neath Road /
Fairyland Road,
Tonna

H1/11

Site complete13Waunceirch, NeathH1/LB/1

Appendix C: . Status of LDP Allocations

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

81

Tudalen127



CommentaryEstimated
Number of

Units

Site NameRef

Site complete34Groves Road
(Phase 1), NeathH1/LB/2

Application allowing extension of time for submission of reserved
matters lapsed50Elba Crescent,

Crymlyn BurrowsH1/LB/3

Site has full planning permission for 140 units
157

Area 1, Coed Darcy
Urban Village,
Llandarcy

H1/LB/4

Site has outline consent. Reserved matters application for 75 units
awaiting decision. No reserved matters applications received for
remainder of site

2,400
Coed Darcy Urban
Village, LlandarcyH1/LB/5

Application to extend the period for submission of reserve matters
undetermined50Eaglesbush,

MelincryddanH1/LB/6

Site complete34Garthmor (Phase
2), MelyncryddanH1/LB/7

Site complete28Briton Ferry Road,
NeathH1/LB/8

Site complete12Barrons Court,
NeathH1/LB/9

Site complete15The Rope Walk,
NeathH1/LB/10

Site complete16Cardonnel Road,
SkewenH1/LB/11

Site complete81Crymlyn Grove
(Phase 1), SkewenH1/LB/12

No planning application received
141

Blaenbaglan School
(land to the rear of),
Baglan

H1/12

No planning application received100Hawthorn Close,
CwmafanH1/13

No planning application received130Western Logs,
CwmafanH1/14

No planning application received
70

Neath Port Talbot
College (Margam
Campus)

H1/15

Site complete
50

Glanafan
Comprehensive
School, Port Talbot

H1/16

Phase 1 complete. No planning application received for remainder
of site385Harbourside, Port

TalbotH1/17

No planning application received. Site has been subject to
pre-application discussions150

Afan Lido and land
to the rear of Tywyn
School, Sandfields

H1/18

Appendix C: . Status of LDP Allocations

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

82

Tudalen128



CommentaryEstimated
Number of

Units

Site NameRef

Site complete23Bay View Social
Club, SandfieldsH1/19

Current outline application P2013/1047 undetermined115Purcell Avenue,
SandfieldsH1/20

Site complete10Morfa Afan Care
Home, SandfieldsH1/21

No planning application received75Tir Morfa Road,
SandfieldsH1/22

The site has an extant planning consent
160

Land at
Blaenbaglan Farm,
Baglan

H1/LB/13

Site complete10Thorney Road,
BaglanH1/LB/14

Site under construction24Stycyllwen, BaglanH1/LB/15

Site complete42Abbottsmoor,
Baglan MoorsH1/LB/16

Site under construction25Farteg Fawr, BrynH1/LB/17

Site complete90Copperminers,
CwmafanH1/LB/18

Site under construction12Forest Lodge Lane,
CwmafanH1/LB/19

Site complete39Groeswen, MargamH1/LB/20

Site complete14Station Road, Port
TalbotH1/LB/21

Site complete
46

Royal Buildings
Talbot Road, Port
Talbot

H1/LB/22

Site complete14Dyffryn RoadH1/LB/23

Site complete16Maes Marchog,
BanwenH1/LB/24

The site has full permission for 22 units21Glyn Dulais Care
Home, CrynantH1/LB/25

Planning consent P2007/1376 lapsed68Heol Y Waun,
Seven SistersH1/LB/26

No planning application received150Park Avenue,
GlynneathH1/23

The site has an extant planning consent81Heol y Glyn,
GlynneathH1/LB/27

Appendix C: . Status of LDP Allocations

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

83

Tudalen129



CommentaryEstimated
Number of

Units

Site NameRef

Current application P2011/0486 undetermined17Welfare Hall,
GlynneathH1/LB/28

Site complete16Ynys Y Nos
Avenue, PontwalbyH1/LB/29

Site complete52Bryn Morgrug
(Phase 2), AlltwenH1/24

No planning application received50Ynysymond Road,
AlltwenH1/25

Site complete
32

Cwmtawe School
(Phase 2),
Pontardawe

H1/26

Current application P2019/5543 undetermined115Waun Sterw / Waun
Penlan, RhydyfroH1/27

Part of site has permission for 79 units. No planning application
received for remainder of site150Bryn Brych Farm,

RhosH1/28

No planning application received50Parc Ynysderw,
PontardaweH1/29

Site complete56Bryn Morgrug
(Phase 1), AlltwenH1/LB/30

Site complete
80

Cwmtawe School
(Phase 1),
Pontardawe

H1/LB/31

Planning consent P2007/0215 lapsed45Holly Street,
PontardaweH1/LB/32

Planning consent P2007/0281 lapsed19Waun Penlan,
RhydyfroH1/LB/33

Site complete
15

Glan Yr Afon
(Phase 2),
Ynysmeudwy

H1/LB/34

Current application P2013/0737 undetermined70Compair/GMF,
YstalyferaH1/30

No planning application received160Tirbach Washery,
YstalyferaH1/31

Site complete64Golwg Y Mynydd,
Godre'r GraigH1/LB/35

Site complete
42

Graig Newydd
(Phase 1), Godre'r
Graig

H1/LB/36

Site complete
66

Graig Newydd
(Phase 2), Godre'r
Graig

H1/LB/37

Appendix C: . Status of LDP Allocations

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

84

Tudalen130



Table C.0.2 Policy GT1 - Current Status of Gypsy and Traveller Site Allocation

CommentarySite NameRef

Site completeCae Garw, MargamGT1

Table C.0.3 Policy EC1 - Current Status of Employment Allocations

CommentarySite Area
(ha)

Site NameRef

Limited amount of employment land developed75Baglan Bay, Port
Talbot

EC1/1

No planning application received6Junction 38 (M4)
Margam

EC1/2

No planning application received4Land within Coed
Darcy SRA

EC1/3

Limited amount of employment land developed7Land within
Harbourside SRA

EC1/4

Table C.0.4 Policy R1 - Current Status of Retail Allocations

CommentarySite NameRef

Part completeNeath Town Centre Regeneration
Scheme

R1/1

CompleteGlanafan Comprehensive School,
Port Talbot

R1/2

No planning application receivedHarbourside, Port TalbotR1/3

No planning application receivedPark Avenue, GlynneathR1/4

Table C.0.5 Policy TO3/1 - Current Status of Tourism Allocation

CommentarySite NameRef

Planning Application awaiting the signing of a S106 agreementRheola Estate, GlynneathTO3/1

Table C.0.6 Policy TR1 - Current Status of Transport Proposals

CommentaryScheme NameRef

Complete.Baglan Energy Park Link RoadTR1/1

Not startedCoed Darcy Southern Access RoadTR1/2

CompleteFfordd Amazon (Stage 2)TR1/3

Part completeJunction 43, M4 ImprovementsTR1/4

CompleteHarbour Way (PDR), Port TalbotTR1/5

CompleteIntegrated Transport Hub, Port TalbotTR1/6

Appendix C: . Status of LDP Allocations

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

85

Tudalen131



CommentaryScheme NameRef

Part completeAmman Way Cycle WayTR1/7

CompleteAfan Valley Trail (Port Talbot - Afan
Valley)

TR1/8

Not startedJunction 38 (M4) Margam (Park and
Share)

TR1/9

Appendix C: . Status of LDP Allocations

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

86

Tudalen132



Appendix D: Glossary

Table D.0.1 Glossary of Terms

ExplanationTerm

Report to assess the extent to which policies in the adopted LDP are being
successfully implemented (Regulation 37 of the Town and Country Planning
(Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations (2005).

Annual Monitoring Report
(AMR)

Candidate Sites are those nominated by anyone for consideration by the
LPA as allocations in an emerging LDP.

Candidate Site

The CIL is a planning charge, introduced by the Planning Act (2008) as a
tool for LPAs to help deliver infrastructure to support the development of
their area. It came into force on 6 April 2010 through the CIL Regulations
(2010).

Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL)

Part of the Delivery Agreement which sets out the Council’s scheme for
involving local communities in the Plan preparation process.

Community Involvement

Scheme (CIS)

A formal process in which comments are invited on a particular topic / set
of topics or a draft document.

Consultation

A document comprising the Authority’s timetable for the preparation of the
LDP together with its Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) and submitted
to the Welsh Government for agreement.

Delivery Agreement (DA)

Is the Plan the Local Planning Authority (LPA) considers is sound and able
to be adopted. Subject to a formal six week consultation period in which
individuals and organisations can make representations on the Plan.

Deposit LDP

Interpretation of information / data to provide the foundation for the Plan’s
policies.

Evidence Base

A process whereby an independent Inspector considers whether the Deposit
LDP is ‘sound’ and any representations to it.

Examination in Public
(EIP)

PPW identifies GI as: the network of natural and semi-natural features, green
spaces, rivers and lakes that intersperse and connect places. Component
elements of green infrastructure can function at different scales.

Green Infrastructure (GI)

At the landscape scale, green infrastructure can comprise entire ecosystems
such as wetlands, waterways and mountain ranges.

At a local scale, it might comprise parks, fields, public rights of way,
allotments, cemeteries and gardens.

At smaller scales, individual urban interventions such as street trees,
hedgerows, roadside verges, and green roofs/walls can all contribute to
green infrastructure networks.

Appendix D: . Glossary

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

87

Tudalen133



ExplanationTerm

The person appointed by the Planning Inspectorate to consider the LDP
and undertake the Examination in Public.

Inspector

Report of the Inspector specifying precise recommendations identifying
required changes to the LDP, together with reasons for the changes. It will
focus on whether the LDP is ‘sound’.

Inspector’s Report

The required statutory Development Plan to be produced by each local
authority in Wales under Part 6 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act (2004).

Local Development Plan
(LDP)

A planning authority responsible for the preparation of a LDP – i.e. a County
or Borough Council or National Park Authority.

Local Planning Authority
(LPA)

The NDF will set out a 20 year land use framework for Wales, and
will replace the currentWales Spatial Plan (WSP). It is presently in production
and it is anticipated that the NDF will be published in the Autumn of 2020.
A consultation draft was published in August 2019.

National Development
Framework (NDF)

Is a holistic approach to the planning and design of development and spaces,
focused on positive outcomes. It draws upon an area’s potential to create
high quality development and public spaces that promote people’s prosperity,
health, happiness, and well-being in the widest sense (PPW 10).

Placemaking

A National document which sets out the land use planning policies of the
Welsh Government, supplemented by Technical Advice Notes, Policy
Clarification letters and Welsh Government Circulars.

Planning Policy Wales
(PPW)

These include the vision, strategic options, preferred strategy, key policies,
the Integrated Sustainability Appraisal (ISA) report, the candidate sites
register and Review Report (if appropriate).

Pre-Deposit Documents
(LDP)

The required statutory report under S69 of the 2004 Act and/ or Reg41 to
conclude on the LDP revision procedure to be followed based on a clear
assessment of what has been considered and what needs to change and
why, based on evidence.

Review Report

In order to be adopted, an LDP must be determined 'sound' by the
examination Inspector (S64 of the 2004 Act). The Tests of soundness and
checks are identified in PPW.

Sound

Individual, group or body whose interests are directly affected by the LDP.Stakeholder

Provision is made under the Planning (Wales) Act (2015) for the preparation
of SDP's at a regional level. An SDPwill have regard to the NDF; responding
at a regional level to strategic issues.

Strategic Development
Plan (SDP)

Generic term used internationally to describe environmental assessment
as applied to policies, plans and programmes. The SEA Directive

Strategic Environmental

Assessment (SEA) (2001/42/EC) requires a formal ‘environmental assessment of certain plans
and programmes, including those in the field of planning and land use’.

Provides supplementary information with regard to policies in a LDP. SPG
do not form part of the development plan and are not subject to independent
examination but must be consistent with it and with national planning policy.

Supplementary Planning

Guidance (SPG)

Appendix D: . Glossary

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

88

Tudalen134



ExplanationTerm

A tool for appraising policies to ensure they reflect sustainable development
objectives – i.e. social, economic and environmental factors. Each LPA is

Sustainability Appraisal
(SA)

required by S62(6) of the Act to undertake an SA of the LDP. This form of
SA fully incorporates the requirements of the SEADirective and Regulations.

A topic-based document published by theWelsh Government to supplement
Planning Policy Wales (PPW).

Technical Advice Notes
(TAN)

An Act which requires public bodies in Wales to take account of the long
term, to prevent problems occurring or getting worse, to work collaboratively
and involve people of all ages. The aim is to support and deliver a public
service which meets the needs of the present without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs.

Well-being of Future
Generations Act (WBFG)
(2015)

The Well-being Plan sets out the Public Services Board’s (PSB) long term
vision for the area as well as priorities for action over the next 5 years.

Well-being Plan

Appendix D: . Glossary

LD
P
R
ev
ie
w
R
ep

or
t(
C
on

su
lta
tio
n
D
ra
ft
-J

an
ua

ry
20

20
)

89

Tudalen135



Appendix D: . Glossary

LD
P
R
eview

R
eport(C

onsultation
D
raft-January

2020)

90

Tudalen136



Tudalen137



Tudalen138



NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL

29th January 2020

Report of the Head of Legal Services – Mr Craig Griffiths

Matter for Decision

Wards Affected: All Wards

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – TOWN/COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
MEMBER

Purpose of the Report:

1. To seek approval to appoint a new Town/Community Council 
Member and a reserve to the Neath Port Talbot County Borough 
Council Standards Committee.

Executive Summary:

2. Regulation 10 of the Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 
2001 provides that the membership of a standards committee 
which is to discharge functions in relation to (a)community 
councils which are situated in that relevant authority’s area, and 
(b)the members of those community councils, must include at 
least one community committee member. This report seeks 
authority to appoint a new representative to this role.

Tudalen139

Eitem yr Agenda6



Background:

3. Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 introduced a new 
Ethical Framework for Councils. As part of this framework, the 
Council has a Standards Committee. This Committee is also 
responsible for standards functions in relation to the Town and 
Community Councils (and their Members) in the area of the 
County Borough Council.

4. Regulation 10 of the Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 
2001 provides that the membership of a standards committee 
which is to discharge functions in relation to (a)community 
councils which are situated in that relevant authority’s area, and 
(b)the members of those community councils, must include at 
least one community committee member. 

5. The report to Council of the 22nd May 2019 named Town 
Councillor Alan Carter (Neath) as the Community Council 
representative. Community Councillor Michele Emerson (Gwaun 
Cae Gurwen) was the substitute member. Sadly Town Councillor 
Carter passed away in November 2019 and the Council were 
advised by the Clerk to Gwaun Cae Gurwen Community 
Councillor that Community Councillor Emerson is no longer a 
community councillor.

6. An approach was made to OneVoice Wales in November 2019 
for nominees for a new Town/Community Councillor Member. Mr 
Paul Egan of One Voice Wales has now advised the Council that 
following a meeting of their area committee the following 
nominees have been put forward

Tudalen140



a) Community Councillor Carl Williams (Tonna) (Main Nomination)

b) Town Councillor Gerry Reynolds (Glynneath) (Substitute 
Nomination)

7. Approval is therefore sought to nominate Community Councillor 
Carl Williams as the Community Councillor Representative to the 
Standards Committee with Town Councillor Gerry Reynolds 
appointed as the substitute.

Financial Impacts: 

8. No impacts

Integrated Impact Assessment:

9 Not required

Valleys Communities Impacts: 

10. No impacts

Workforce Impacts:

11. No impacts 

Legal Impacts:

12.  Regulation 10 of the Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 
2001 provides that the membership of a standards committee 
which is to discharge functions in relation to (a)community 
councils which are situated in that relevant authority’s area, and 

Tudalen141



(b)the members of those community councils, must include at 
least one community committee member.

Risk Management Impacts: 

13.  Failure to appoint a town/community councillor will result in the 
Standards Committee not being quorate leaving it unable to 
fulfil its legislative functions.

Consultation:

14. There is no requirement for external consultation on this item

Recommendations: 

15. It is recommended that Community Councillor Carl Williams be 
appointed as the Community Councillor Representative to the 
Standards Committee with Town Councillor Gerry Reynolds 
appointed as the substitute.

Reasons for Proposed Decision: 

16. To ensure that the appropriate representative is appointed to the 
Standards Committee and is in accordance with the 
requirements of the Standards Committee (Wales) Regulations 
2001

Implementation of Decision:

17. The decision is proposed for immediate implementation

Appendices: 

18. None

Tudalen142



List of Background Papers:

19. None

Officer Contact:

20. Craig Griffiths, Head of Legal Services
Tel 01639 763767, email c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk

Tudalen143

mailto:c.griffiths2@npt.gov.uk


Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



1

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL

29th January 2020

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer

SECTION A – MATTER FOR DECISION

WARDS AFFECTED – ALL

AMENDMENT TO THE TIMETABLE OF MEETINGS FOR 2019/20

Purpose of the Report

To seek Council approval to amend the Timetable of Meetings for 2019/20 
previously agreed at Council on 16th October 2019 in relation to the Social 
Services Health and Housing Cabinet Board/Scrutiny Committee.

Executive Summary

Following the decision taken by Council on 16th October 2019 where it was 
agreed to amend the frequency of meetings to four weekly, it has proved difficult 
to achieve this around the current cycle of meetings. Therefore it is proposed to 
return to the six weekly cycle until the new civic year.   Thereafter the meetings 
will be held four weekly.

Background

Members are asked that the frequency of meetings of the Social Care, Health 
and Housing Scrutiny Committee/Cabinet Board be agreed as above

Financial impact:

No implications

Integrated impact assessment:

There are no Equality Impacts.

Valleys Communities Impacts:

No implications

Tudalen145

Eitem yr Agenda7



2

Workforce impacts

No implications

Legal Powers

Section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents

Risk Management

No implications

Consultation

There is no requirement under the Constitution for external consultation.

Recommendation

Council is asked to approve that the frequency of meetings of the Social Care, 
Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Board/Scrutiny Committee be six weekly until the 
new civic year for the reasons outlined above. 

Reason for Proposed Decisions:

To update the Council’s Committee Cycle. 

Implementation of Decisions

The decisions are for immediate implementation.

List of Background Papers

The Constitution.

Officer Contact

Karen Jones, Assistant Chief Executive and Chief Digital Officer
Contact: k.jones3@npt.gov.uk  or telephone 01639 763284

Tudalen146

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1989/42/contents
mailto:k.jones3@npt.gov.uk


Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

COFNOD A BENDERFYNIADAU GWEITHREDOL

Y CABINET

DYDD MERCHER, 30 HYDREF 2019

Cabinet Members:

Cynghorwyr: R.G.Jones (Cadeirydd), A.J.Taylor, C.Clement-Williams, 
D.Jones, E.V.Latham, A.R.Lockyer, P.A.Rees, 
P.D.Richards, A.Wingrave a/ac L.Jones

Swyddogion yn bresennol:

S.Phillips, H.Jenkins, G.Nutt, K.Jones, C.Griffiths, A.Thomas, H.Jones, 
K.Warren, C.Furlow-Harris, C.Davies a/ac T.Davies

1. PENODI CADEIRYDD 

Cytunwyd y dylid penodi'r Cynghorydd R G Jones yn Gadeirydd ar gyfer 
y cyfarfod.

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU 

Gwnaeth yr aelodau canlynol ddatganiadau o fudd ar ddechrau'r 
cyfarfod:-

Y Cynghorydd C Clement-Williams     Parthed: Cronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelod - Baglan, gan ei fod yn 
cyfeirio at ei Chronfa Gymunedol. 
Gan fod ei budd yn rhagfarnol, 
gadawodd hithau'r ystafell yn ystod 
y drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am 
hynny.

Y Cynghorydd L C Jones - Parthed: Cronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelod, Pelenna (Clwb Rygbi 
Tonmawr) - gan fod ei mab yn 

Tudalen147

Eitem yr Agenda8



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

chwarae i Glwb Rygbi Tonmawr ac 
mae ei gŵr yn hyfforddi un o'r 
timau. Gan fod ei budd yn 
rhagfarnol, gadawodd hithau'r 
ystafell yn ystod y drafodaeth a'r 
pleidleisio am hynny.

Y Cynghorydd E V Latham - Parthed: Cronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelod - Dwyrain Sandfields, gan 
fod y ddau adroddiad yn cyfeirio at 
ei Gronfa Gymunedol. Gan fod ei 
fudd yn rhagfarnol, gadawodd 
yntau'r ystafell yn ystod y 
drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am 
hynny.

Y Cynghorydd P D Richards – Parthed: Cronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelod - Baglan, gan ei fod yn 
cyfeirio at Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
aelod yn ei ward. Gan fod ei fudd 
yn rhagfarnol, gadawodd yntau'r 
ystafell yn ystod y drafodaeth a'r 
pleidleisio am hynny.

Y Cynghorydd A Wingrave -  Parthed: Cronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelod - Llangatwg, gan ei fod yn 
cyfeirio at ei Chronfa Gymunedol. 
Gan fod ei budd yn rhagfarnol, 
gadawodd hithau'r ystafell yn ystod 
y drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am 
hynny.

3. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL 

Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfodydd blaenorol a gynhaliwyd ar 25 Medi 
a 2 Hydref, 2019.

4. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 2019-20 

Fe'i nodwyd gan y pwyllgor

Tudalen148



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

5. MONITRO'R GYLLIDEB REFENIW 2019-20 

Penderfyniadau:

1. Nodi'r wybodaeth am fonitro'r gyllideb a rhoi trefniadau rheoli ar 
waith i leihau gorwariant a'r effeithiau niweidiol ar gronfeydd wrth 
gefn.

2. Nodi'r grantiau ychwanegol a dderbyniwyd

3. Cymeradwyo'r cynigion i symud arian wrth gefn a throsglwyddo 
arian o'r gyllideb a hysbysu'r cyngor bod hyn yn briodol.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniadau:

Diweddaru cyllideb y cyngor ar gyfer y grantiau ychwanegol a 
dderbyniwyd, trosglwyddiadau a symudiadau o ran arian wrth gefn, yn 
unol â chyfansoddiad y cyngor.

Rhoi Penderfyniadau ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniadau eu rhoi ar waith ar ôl ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu ac wedi i'r cyngor eu hystyried a'u cymeradwyo.

6. ADRODDIAD MONITRO'R RHAGLEN GYFALAF 2019-20 

Penderfyniadau:

1. Cyflwyno cyllideb rhaglen gyfalaf 2019/20, gwerth £43,800m, i'r 
cyngor i'w chymeradwyo.

2. Nodi'r sefyllfa mewn perthynas â gwariant ar 30 Medi 2019.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniadau:

Diweddaru'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf ar gyfer 2019/20 a hysbysu'r aelodau o'r 
gwariant ar gyfer y flwyddyn hyd yma.

Rhoi Penderfyniadau ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniadau eu rhoi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod tri diwrnod galw i 
mewn.

Tudalen149



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

7. MONITRO RHEOLAETH Y TRYSORLYS 2019-20 

Nododd Aelodau'r Cabinet fod y gyfradd llog wedi bod yn ffafriol pan 
fenthycwyd y benthyciad aeddfedrwydd £10 miliwn (fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a gylchredwyd) - hon oedd y gyfradd hirdymor isaf erioed i'r 
cyngor fenthyca arni.

Penderfyniad:

Y dylid nodi'r adroddiad monitro.

8. ARFERION RHEOLI'R TRYSORLYS 

Dywedodd Aelod y Cabinet dros Gyllid y byddai Arferion diwygiedig 
Rheoli'r Trysorlys bellach yn adlewyrchu trefniadau gweithio cyfredol, yn 
dilyn nifer o newidiadau staffio yn yr is-adran cyllid.

Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo Datganiadau diwygiedig Arferion Rheoli'r Trysorlys fel y'u 
nodir yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad a gylchredwyd, a'u cyflwyno i'r cyngor.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Diweddaru trefniadau llywodraethu Rheoli'r Trysorlys.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

9. CYNLLUN GWEITHREDU GWELLA LLYWODRAETHU 
CORFFORAETHOL AR GYFER 2019-20 - ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD 
HANNER BLWYDDYN 

Penderfyniad:

Y dylid nodi'r adroddiad.

Tudalen150



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

10. CYNLLUN CYDRADDOLDEB STRATEGOL 2015-2019: ADRODDIAD 
BLYNYDDOL DRAFFT 2018-2019 AC ESTYN CYNLLUN 
CYDRADDOLDEB STRATEGOL 2015-2019 TAN FIS EBRILL 2020 

Penderfyniadau:

1. Cymeradwyo Adroddiad Blynyddol Drafft 2018-2019 Cynllun 
Cydraddoldeb Strategol 2015-2019 yn amodol ar ddiwygio'r 
paragraff sy'n ymwneud â'r Digwyddiad Coffáu Swffragetiaid i 
gynnwys cyfeiriad ar gyfranogaeth y Cynghorydd L M Purcell a 
Jane Gebbie,

2. Rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i'r Prif Weithredwr Cynorthwyol a'r Prif 
Swyddog digidol i wneud y fath newidiadau ag y mae eu hangen i'r 
Adroddiad Blynyddol Crafft cyn ei gyhoeddi, ar yr amod nad yw'r 
fath newidiadau'n newid cynnwys y ddogfen a ystyrir gan y Cabinet 
yn sylweddol, 

3. Cymeradwyo'r estyniad ar gyfer y Cynllun Cydraddoldeb Strategol i 
fis Ebrill 2020. 

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniadau:

Bodloni'r gofynion statudol a nodir yn Rheoliadau Deddf Cydraddoldeb 
2010 (Dyletswyddau Statudol) (Cymru) 2011.  

Rhoi Penderfyniadau ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniadau eu rhoi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod tri diwrnod galw i 
mewn.

11. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL SYLWADAU, CANMOLIAETHAU A 
CHWYNION 

Penderfyniad:

Gohiriwyd yr adroddiad hwn i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod heddiw a chaiff ei 
ailgyflwyno i gyfarfod y Cabinet a gynhelir ar 20 Tachwedd 2019.

Tudalen151



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

12. RHEOLAU GWEITHDREFNAU CONTRACTAU 

Penderfyniadau:

1. Caiff Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau y manylwyd arnynt yn 
Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad a gylchredwyd eu rhoi ar waith ar 6 Ionawr 
2020, neu ar ddyddiad arall y bydd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol yn penderfynu ei fod yn briodol,

2. Cyflwynir adroddiad i'r cyngor sy'n ceisio diwygio cyfansoddiad 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot i gynnwys y 
Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau arfaethedig yn Atodiad 1 yr 
adroddiad.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniadau:

Sicrhau bod Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau yn gyfoes fel eu bod yn 
adlewyrchu'r newidiadau cyfreithiol a pholisi a roddwyd ar waith ers y 
dyddiad y cymeradwywyd y Rheolau Gweithdrefnau Contractau cyfredol, 
ac sy'n effeithio ar weithgareddau caffael y cyngor a bod agweddau 
gweithdrefnol ar weithgareddau caffael y cyngor yn cael eu diweddaru ar 
lefel weithredol.

Rhoi Penderfyniadau ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniadau eu rhoi ar waith ar ôl ymgynghori â'r Pwyllgor 
Craffu ac wedi i'r cyngor eu hystyried a'u cymeradwyo.

13. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - BAGLAN 

(Ar y pwynt hwn o'r cyfarfod, ailddatganodd y Cynghorwyr C Clement-
Williams a P D Richards eu buddiannau, gan adael y cyfarfod a'r 
drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am hynny)

Penderfyniad:

Caiff Menter Rhandiroedd Cymunedol ei datblygu ar safle Rhandiroedd 
Heol Crawford, Baglan, sy'n eiddo i'r cyngor, ac y bydd y Cynghorwyr 
Carol Clement -Williams a Susanne Renkes yn cyfrannu £4,593 yr un, 
dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Tudalen152



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

(Ailymunodd y Cynghorwyr C Clement-Williams a P D Richards â'r 
cyfarfod)

14. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - LLANGATWG 

(Ar y pwynt hwn o'r cyfarfod, ailddatganodd y Cynghorydd A Wingrave ei 
budd, gan adael y cyfarfod a'r drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am hynny)

Penderfyniad:

Gwella'r llifoleuadau yng Nghae Glaswellt Artiffisial Ysgol Gymunedol 
Llangatwg, Heol Fawr, Llangatwg a dyfarnu dyraniad y Cynghorydd 
Wingrave sef £8,000 dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

(Ailymunodd y Cynghorydd A Wingrave â'r cyfarfod)

15. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - CANOL COEDFFRANC 

Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r sesiynau a'r cyfarpar Therapi Celf i ddechrau côr 
cymunedol ar gyfer y grŵp gwirfoddol 'Growing Together' sy'n cwrdd yn 
'Nhŷ'r Santes Fair', y Ganolfan Gymunedol newydd ar gyfer Eglwys y 
Santes Fair yn Sgiwen, a dyfarnu £4,524.27 o ddyraniad y Cynghorydd 
Angharad Aubrey dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Tudalen153



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

16. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - Y CREUNANT 

Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo gosod gât ddiogelwch sy'n ei chau ei hun yn ardal 
chwarae'r plant bach yng Nghanolfan Gymunedol y Creunant, 24 Heol 
Woodland, y Creunant, Castell-nedd, a dyfarnu £1,004.00 o ddyraniad y 
Cynghorydd Siân Harris dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

17. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - ONLLWYN 

Penderfyniad:

Cyflogi Ceidwad Cymunedol yn Ward Onllwyn, fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a gylchredwyd, a dyfarnu dyraniad y Cynghorydd Dean 
Cawsey sef £10,000 dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Tudalen154



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

18. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - PELENNA (CLWB RYGBI 
TONMAWR) 

(Ar y pwynt hwn o'r cyfarfod, ailddatganodd y Cynghorydd L C Jones ei 
budd, a gadawodd y cyfarfod a'r drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am hynny)

Penderfyniad:

Prynu cyfarpar hyfforddi newydd ar gyfer Adran Plant Bach ac Iau Clwb 
Pêl-droed Tonmawr, Dan-y-Coed, Tonmawr, a dyfarnu dyraniad y 
Cynghorydd Jeremy Hurley sef £800 dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

(Ailymunodd y Cynghorydd L C Jones â'r cyfarfod)

19. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - PELENNA (CLWB BOWLIO 
PONT-RHYD-Y-FEN) 

Penderfyniad:

Prynu peiriannau cynnal a chadw tiroedd newydd ar gyfer Clwb Bowls 
Pont-rhyd-y-fen, Stryd y Frenhines, Pont-rhyd-y-fen, a dyfarnu dyraniad y 
Cynghorydd Jeremy Hurley sef £682.50 dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Tudalen155



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

20. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - RESOLFEN (NEUADD LES Y 
GLOWYR) 

Penderfyniad:

Datblygu Neuadd Les y Glowyr, Heol Castell-nedd, Resolfen ymhellach, 
fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a gylchredwyd, a dyfarnu dyraniad y 
Cynghorydd Dean Lewis sef £4,000 dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

21. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - RESOLFEN (ARDAL 
CHWARAE BRYN GOLWG) 

Penderfyniad:

Ychwanegu cyfarpar chwarae at ardal chwarae Bryn Golwg, Clun, 
Castell-nedd, fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a gylchredwyd, a dyfarnu 
dyraniad y Cynghorydd Dean Lewis sef £4,995 dan Gronfa Gymunedol 
yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

Tudalen156



Dydd Mercher, 30 Hydref 2019

22. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - DWYRAIN SANDFIELDS 
(DIFFIBRILWYR) 

(Ar y pwynt hwn o'r cyfarfod, ailddatganodd y Cynghorydd E V Latham ei 
fudd, a gadawodd y cyfarfod a'r drafodaeth a'r pleidleisio am hynny)

Penderfyniad:

Prynu 2 Diffibriliwr Allanol Awtomataidd a'u gosod yng Nghlwb Rygbi 
Aberavon Green Stars a Chlwb Lles Nwy Port Talbot, a bod y 
Cynghorwyr Edward Latham a Matthew Crowley yn cyfrannu £1,300 yr 
un o'u Cronfeydd Cymunedol yr Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

23. CRONFA GYMUNEDOL YR AELODAU - DWYRAIN SANDFIELDS 
(PARC VIVIAN) 

Penderfyniad:

Moderneiddio'r cyfleusterau yn lawnt fowls Parc Vivian, Rhodfa Parc 
Vivian, Port Talbot, a sicrhau eu bod yn ddiogel, a dyfarnu £1,605 o 
ddyraniad y Cynghorydd Edward Latham dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rheswm dros y Penderfyniad:

Cymeradwyo'r cais am gyllid a dderbyniwyd dan Gronfa Gymunedol yr 
Aelodau.

Rhoi'r Penderfyniad ar Waith:

Caiff y penderfyniad ei roi ar waith ar ôl y cyfnod galw i mewn o dridiau.

CADEIRYDD
Tudalen157



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen158



- 1 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL, IECHYD A LLES

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd L.M.Purcell

Is-gadeirydd: Cynghorydd C.Galsworthy

Cynghorwyr: A.P.H.Davies, J.Miller, S.Paddison, 
D.Whitelock, A.N.Woolcock, C.Edwards, 
W.F.Griffiths a/ac H.C.Clarke

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

K.Warren a/ac J.Woodman-Ralph

Gwahoddedigion y 
Cabinet:

Cynghorwyr A.R.Lockyer

1. DERBYN UNRHYW DDATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT GAN 
AELODAU

Gwnaeth yr aelod canlynol ddatganiad o fudd ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod:

Y Cynghorydd C 
Galsworthy

Parthed: Tegwch y Polisi Darpariaeth 
Gwasanaethau a'r Adolygiad o'r 
Gwasanaethau Cefnogi Cymunedau 
- Cydlynwyr Ardaloedd Lleol am ei 
bod hi'n Gynorthwyydd Personol i'w 
mam.

2. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL

Caiff cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol a gynhaliwyd ar 5 Medi 2019 eu 
cymeradwyo yn amodol ar y diwygiad canlynol:

Tudalen 6 - Astudiaeth Dichonoldeb Cartref Gofal Preswyl Trem y 
Glyn

Tudalen159



- 2 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

Bod y paragraff sy'n cynnwys y canlynol:

Gofynnodd y pwyllgor a fyddai'r gwerthusiad yr un peth â'r hyn a 
gynhaliwyd yn flaenorol lle nodwyd bod yr angen am ofal preswyl yn 
lleihau.  

yn cael ei ddisodli gan:

Gofynnodd y pwyllgor a fyddai'r gwerthusiad yn defnyddio'r un meini 
prawf ag a ddefnyddiwyd pan gynhaliwyd y gwerthusiad blaenorol a 
ddaeth i'r casgliad bod yr angen am ofal preswyl yn lleihau. Eglurwyd 
bod y strategaeth wedi newid o ganolbwyntio'n unig ar daliadau 
uniongyrchol i ddatblygu opsiynau ychwanegol ar gyfer gofal preswyl.

3. DEWIS EITEMAU PRIODOL O AGENDA CYN CRAFFU BWRDD Y 
CABINET (ADRODDIADAU BWRDD Y CABINET YN AMGAEEDIG 
AR GYFER YR AELODAU CRAFFU)

Dewisodd y pwyllgor graffu ar yr eitemau canlynol ar agenda Bwrdd y 
Cabinet:

Adroddiad Blynyddol Gofalwyr Bae'r Gorllewin

Derbyniodd y pwyllgor ddiweddariad am gynnydd rhoi Cynllun 
Gweithredu Bwrdd Partneriaeth Gofalwyr Bae'r Gorllewin ar gyfer 
2018-19 ar waith, fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

Roedd yr aelodau'n falch bod yr Adroddiad Blynyddol yn cynnwys 
astudiaethau achos a oedd yn llawn gwybodaeth. Yn ogystal, roedd 
aelodau'n falch bod yr wybodaeth wedi'i llunio yn ieithoedd y 
gymuned ond credwyd y dylid rhoi ystyriaeth i lunio gwybodaeth sy'n 
glir ac yn hawdd ei darllen.

Codwyd yr ymholiadau canlynol gan aelodau:

 A fu cynnydd yn niferoedd y gofalwyr sy'n nodi eu bod yn 
ofalwyr?  
Mae Gweithwyr Cymdeithasol yn parhau i geisio nodi gofalwyr 
fel rhan o'u gwaith beunyddiol a chynhaliwyd ymgyrchoedd 
cynyddu ymwybyddiaeth ychwanegol yn y Gwasanaethau i 
Oedolion. Datblygodd y Gwasanaethau Plant raglen 
hyfforddiant gydag ysgolion i geisio nodi a chefnogi gofalwyr 
ifanc. Cymerodd 1,600 o bobl ifanc ran yn y sesiwn awr a daeth 

Tudalen160



- 3 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

200 o ofalwyr ifanc ymlaen i ofyn am gymorth. Yn ogystal, mae 
2 ofalwr ifanc yn aelodau o'r Cyngor Ieuenctid ac maent yn 
rhagweithiol iawn wrth gyflwyno materion.

 A oedd cynlluniau i ymgysylltu â'r clybiau ieuenctid?
Roedd cludiant yn broblem fawr i ofalwyr ifanc er mwyn 
cyrraedd y clybiau ieuenctid. Hefyd, pan ofynnwyd iddynt, 
dywedodd y gofalwyr ifanc eu bod yn mwynhau bod yng 
nghwmni gofalwyr eraill fel y gallant rannu eu profiadau. 
Cynhelir y cyfarfodydd hyn bob wythnos a darperir cludiant i 
hwyluso hyn. Gwnaed cysylltiadau hefyd ag asiantaethau eraill i 
sicrhau bod y gofalwyr ifanc yn derbyn yr holl gefnogaeth 
angenrheidiol.

 Pam na ellid cynnal yr asesiad gofalwyr ar yr un pryd ag 
asesiad defnyddiwr y gwasanaeth? Nodwyd hyn gan rai 
gofalwyr fel opsiwn a ffefrir.
Esboniodd swyddogion fod yr adborth a dderbyniwyd yn rhoi 
safbwynt gwahanol a bod y Gwasanaeth Gofalwyr yn cynnal y 
rhain ar ran y cyngor. Pe bai'n well gan unrhyw ofalwr gael y 
ddau asesiad ar yr un pryd, yna byddai hyn yn cael ei drefnu.

 Pam nad oedd yr arian ar gyfer Cynllun Gweithredu 
Partneriaeth Gofalwyr Bae'r Gorllewin wedi cael ei rannu'n 
gyfartal rhwng y partneriaid?
Esboniodd swyddogion y cytunwyd yn hanesyddol ar y meini 
prawf ar gyfer rhannu'r arian pan gafodd y bartneriaeth ei 
sefydlu. Gyda'r bartneriaeth newydd rhwng Castell-nedd Port 
Talbot ac Abertawe, sef Partneriaeth Gofalwyr Gorllewin 
Morgannwg, rhennir yr arian rhwng y ddau awdurdod.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd nodi'r adroddiad.

Adroddiad Blynyddol Byrddau Diogelu Bae'r Gorllewin 2018/19

Derbyniwyd gwybodaeth mewn perthynas ag Adroddiad Blynyddol 
Byrddau Diogelu Bae'r Gorllewin 2018/19 fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

Roedd aelodau'n falch bod y Bwrdd Diogelu Ieuenctid wedi'i sefydlu 
yng Nghastell-nedd Port Talbot. Roedd trefniadau tebyg yn cael eu 
gwneud yn Abertawe.

Tudalen161



- 4 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

Derbyniwyd esboniad y byddai nifer y lleoliadau gofal ledled y 
rhanbarth ar gael yn yr adroddiad nesaf sef Adroddiad Blynyddol 
Diogelu Gorllewin Morgannwg. 

Roedd aelodau'n poeni mai dim ond yn awr yn y mae protocol ar 
gyfer Cartrefi Gofal Plant a'u dyletswyddau i blant coll yn cael ei 
ddatblygu. Rhoddwyd esboniad mai protocol newydd oedd hwn a'i 
fod yn cael ei ddatblygu gyda Heddlu De Cymru o ganlyniad i nifer 
cynyddol o gartrefi gofal preswyl preifat i blant yn agor yn y 
fwrdeistref sirol. Nid oes rheoliadau i gyfyngu ar y niferoedd o'r 
cartrefi hyn a oedd yn cael eu defnyddio'n bennaf ar gyfer plant o 
awdurdodau eraill. Nodwyd pwysau gan yr Heddlu o ran nifer y 
galwadau a oedd yn cael eu derbyn gan y cartrefi hyn pan fyddai 
plentyn yn eu gofal yn mynd ar goll, er bod y cartrefi hyn yn y rhan 
fwyaf o achosion yn gwybod lle mae'r plentyn wedi bod yn aros. 
Roedd gwaith yn parhau i edrych ar y diffiniad o blentyn sy'n mynd ar 
goll er mwyn cynorthwyo'r heddlu. Cafwyd cadarnhad fod Heddlu De 
Cymru'n gyfrifol am gostau'r heddlu wrth chwilio am blentyn coll.

Er mwyn ateb ymholiadau aelodau, cafwyd cadarnhad bod gan y 
cyngor drefniadau monitro ar waith ar gyfer y plant sy'n derbyn gofal 
sy'n mynd ar goll. Roedd Barnardos wedi cyfweld â'r holl blant ar ôl 
un achos i geisio darganfod pam yr aeth y plentyn ar goll. Yr heddlu'n 
unig sydd â'r data am yr holl blant yr adroddir eu bod ar goll. Yr 
awdurdod lleoli oedd yn dal yn gyfrifol am blant o'r tu allan i'r sir sy'n 
cael eu rhoi mewn cartrefi gofal preswyl preifat.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd nodi'r adroddiad.

Polisi Cludiant â Chymorth

Cafodd y pwyllgor wybodaeth am ganlyniad yr ymgynghoriad ar Bolisi 
Cludiant â Chymorth y Gwasanaethau i Oedolion fel y nodwyd yn yr 
adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

Gofynnodd aelodau am eglurhad cyfreithiol ar elfennau symudedd y 
Taliadau Annibyniaeth Personol (TAP) a'r Lwfans Byw i'r Anabl 
(LBA). Eglurwyd bod y rheoliadau'n mynnu bod y cyngor yn 
anwybyddu elfennau symudedd y TAP a'r LBA wrth gyfrifo 
rhwymedigaethau person i gyfrannu tuag at gost eu gofal a 
chefnogaeth. Nid oes ganddynt ymroadau wrth ystyried pa gludiant 
ymarferol/adnoddau symudedd sydd gan berson eisoes neu y gall 
gael mynediad atynt wrth asesu a oes angen  darparu cludiant i 
wasanaeth dydd.  

Tudalen162



- 5 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

Sicrhawyd aelodau na fyddai disgwyl i ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth 
ddod o hyd i'w cludiant eu hunain os na fyddai gofalwr yn gallu mynd 
â nhw i ganolfannau dydd oherwydd ymrwymiadau personol. Byddai 
cludiant yn cael ei ddarparu o hyd.  

Mewn ymateb i gwestiynau aelodau, eglurwyd na fyddai effaith ar 
gymunedau'r cymoedd. Roedd yr asesiad yn seiliedig ar angen 
unigolyn. Pe bai'r asesiad yn dod i'r casgliad y gallai defnyddiwr y 
gwasanaeth ddefnyddio cludiant cyhoeddus, ond nad oedd cludiant 
cyhoeddus ar gael, byddai'r cyngor yn sicrhau y darperir cludiant i 
alluogi defnyddiwr y gwasanaeth i fynd i wasanaethau dydd.

Cafwyd trafodaeth ynghylch a fyddai effaith ar y gweithlu a oedd yn 
darparu'r cludiant. Eglurwyd nad oedd swyddogion yn teimlo y byddai 
effaith gan y byddai'n rhaid parhau i ddarparu cludiant i ddefnyddwyr 
gwasanaeth. 

Gofynnodd aelodau a fyddai unrhyw gyfle i asiantaethau eraill 
ddefnyddio gwasanaethau cludiant y cyngor yn ystod unrhyw 
amserau segur. Byddai swyddogion yn codi'r mater gyda'r adran 
berthnasol.

Roedd y pwyllgor yn pryderu ynghylch y diffyg ymateb i'r 
ymgynghoriad gan ddefnyddwyr gwasanaeth, er gwaethaf y ffaith bod 
1,800 o bobl yn ei ddefnyddio. Eglurodd y swyddog fod pob 
defnyddiwr gwasanaeth wedi derbyn llythyr, bod nifer o 
ddigwyddiadau cynyddu ymwybyddiaeth wedi’u trefnu ac y 
defnyddiwyd cyfryngau cymdeithasol.

Cafwyd trafodaeth bellach am y gwaith paratoi a gafwyd gyda 
defnyddwyr gwasanaeth i'w galluogi i deithio'n annibynnol a gwybod 
yr hyn i'w wneud pe bai rhywbeth yn digwydd sy'n wahanol i'r drefn 
arferol. Yn ogystal, cafwyd trafodaeth â'r gyrwyr bysus perthnasol fel 
eu bod yn ymwybodol o broblemau posib.  Ar gais yr aelodau, byddai 
swyddogion yn ymchwilio i ba hyfforddiant a ddarperir gan 
Gyfarwyddiaeth Cludiant Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port 
Talbot yn fewnol ac a oes unrhyw hyfforddiant allanol yn cael ei roi. 
Yn ogystal, byddai gan ofalwyr hawl i docyn bws i fynd gyda 
defnyddwyr gwasanaeth os oeddent yn bodloni meini prawf 
Llywodraeth Cymru.

Yn dilyn y broses graffu, roedd y pwyllgor yn gefnogol o'r cynigion i'w 
hystyried gan Fwrdd y Cabinet.

Tudalen163



- 6 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

Polisi Tegwch Darpariaeth Gwasanaethau

Derbyniodd yr aelodau wybodaeth am ganlyniad yr ymgynghoriad 
cyhoeddus ar Bolisi Tegwch Darpariaeth Gwasanaethau y 
Gwasanaethau i Oedolion fel y nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd.

Roedd y pwyllgor yn fodlon ar y newidiadau i'r polisi fel y'u cynigiwyd 
mewn cyfarfod blaenorol o'r Pwyllgor Craffu Gofal Cymdeithasol, 
Iechyd a Lles. Yn ogystal, roedd y pwyllgor yn hapus i gael adroddiad 
blynyddol ond gofynnodd a fyddai modd ailgyflwyno'r adroddiad i'r 
pwyllgor yn gynharach nag yn flynyddol pe bai unrhyw broblemau.

Gofynnodd yr aelodau am eglurder o ran yr ymatebion a dderbyniwyd 
yn ystod cyfnod yr ymgynghoriad ynghylch pryd y byddai defnyddwyr 
gwasanaeth yn gallu cael mynediad at Daliadau Uniongyrchol. 
Esboniodd swyddogion, o dan y Ddeddf, os aseswyd angen, y 
byddai'n rhaid i'r cyngor gynnig Taliadau Uniongyrchol.

Er mwyn ateb ymholiadau'r aelodau, dywedwyd bod gan y cyngor 
restr o'r holl gontractwyr cymeradwy y comisiynir gwasanaethau 
ganddynt ond ni fyddai'r rhestr hon yn cael ei rhannu â defnyddwyr 
gwasanaeth i'w defnyddio gyda'u Taliadau Uniongyrchol. Gellid 
ystyried hyn fel y cyngor yn ymyrryd â dewis defnyddwyr 
gwasanaeth. Mae'r cyngor yn sicrhau bod yr arian yn cael ei wario'n 
briodol. Pe byddai angen, byddai'r cyngor yn darparu'r gwasanaeth 
ac yn tynnu'r Taliadau Uniongyrchol yn eu hôl.

Yn dilyn craffu, roedd y pwyllgor yn gefnogol o'r cynigion i'w hystyried 
gan Fwrdd y Cabinet.

Adolygiad o'r Gwasanaethau Cefnogi Cymunedau – Cydlynwyr 
Ardaloedd Lleol

Derbyniodd yr aelodau wybodaeth am estyn cylch gorchwyl y 
Cydlynwyr Ardaloedd Lleol o'u hardaloedd daearyddol presennol ar 
gyfer yr awdurdod lleol ehangach.

Rhoddwyd esboniad ar y gwahaniaethau rhwng Cydlynwyr Ardaloedd 
Lleol a Chysylltwyr. Darparodd Cydlynwyr Ardaloedd Lleol 
gefnogaeth ymyrryd yn gynnar ac atal i bobl ddiamddiffyn, ar draws 

Tudalen164



- 7 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

pob oed a demograffig. Roedd cysylltwyr yn edrych am wasanaethau 
cymunedol a oedd yn ddewis amgen i wasanaethau nad ydynt 
bellach ar gael. Yn y dyfodol, byddai cysylltwyr yn gweithio ochr yn 
ochr â’r CALl i'w cynorthwyo yn eu rôl.  

Rhoddwyd cadarnhad y cynyddwyd nifer y Cydlynwyr Ardaloedd Lleol 
i chwech gan fod y gwasanaeth wedi'i ehangu ledled y fwrdeistref 
sirol.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd nodi'r adroddiad.

Tudalen165



- 8 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

Cynllun Blynyddol Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid ac Ymyrryd yn Gynnar 
Castell-nedd Port Talbot 2019 – 2020

Derbyniodd y pwyllgor y cefndir a chrynodeb cynnwys Cynllun 
Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Castell-nedd Port Talbot 2019 – 2020 fel y 
nodwyd yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd

Roedd yr aelodau'n falch bod adeilad wedi'i nodi ar gyfer y Ganolfan 
Addysg.

Gofynnodd yr aelodau am eglurder ynghylch y gefnogaeth a 
dderbyniwyd gan y Gwasanaeth Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Iechyd Meddwl 
(CAMHS). Eglurwyd y cynhaliwyd cyfarfodydd ymgynghori misol gyda 
CAMHS a bod hyn wedi galluogi mynediad cyflymach at 
wasanaethau. Roedd trafodaethau'n cael eu cynnal ar hyn o bryd 
gyda CAMHS i ddatblygu swydd arbenigol yn y gwasanaeth.

Hefyd, yn y dyfodol, byddai CAMHS yn cynnal archwiliadau o 
achosion y gorffennol i ddysgu ganddynt. Ar ôl hyn, byddai adroddiad 
yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r pwyllgor gyda chanlyniadau'r archwiliad.

Gofynnodd yr aelodau a oedd cysylltiad yn y data â chyflyrau niwro-
amrywiol gan nad oedd dim wedi'i gynnwys yn y data sydd yn yr 
adroddiad. Esboniodd swyddogion fod y data a gasglwyd wedi'i 
reoli'n flaenorol gan Fwrdd Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Bae'r Gorllewin. 
Byddai Bwrdd Cyfiawnder Ieuenctid Gorllewin Morgannwg yn casglu 
data'n lleol a byddai'n cynnwys gwybodaeth am addysg. Yn y dyfodol, 
byddai adroddiadau sy'n cael eu hystyried gan y pwyllgor yn cynnwys 
data lleol.

Amlygwyd, o ganlyniad i weithio'n agos gyda'r gwasanaethau plant a'r 
heddlu ar gam cynharach i atal ymddygiad rhag gwaethygu ac arwain 
at weithgarwch troseddol, fod niferoedd y bobl ifanc y mae eu 
hymddygiad yn gwaethygu wedi lleihau'n ddramatig.

Hefyd, gyda chyflwyno cyfarfodydd rheolaidd gyda chynrychiolwyr y 
llys a'u presenoldeb ar y Bwrdd Rheoli, roedd perthnasoedd gwaith 
cadarnhaol wedi datblygu.

Yn dilyn craffu, roedd y pwyllgor yn gefnogol o'r cynigion i'w hystyried 
gan Fwrdd y Cabinet.

Tudalen166



- 9 -

Dydd Iau, 17 Hydref 2019

4. RHAGLEN WAITH CRAFFU YMLAEN 2019/20

Nododd y pwyllgor y trefnwyd Seminar i'r Holl Aelodau ar gyfer 24 
Hydref 2019. Hefyd byddai'r Adroddiad Awtistiaeth yn barod i'w 
ystyried yn y cyfarfod nesaf.

CADEIRYDD

Tudalen167



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen168



- 1 -

Dydd Gwener, 18 Hydref 2019

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADFYWIO A DATBLYGU CYNALIADWY

(Ystafelloedd Pwyllgor A/B – Canolfan Ddinesig Castell-Nedd)

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Gwener, 18 Hydref 2019

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd S.K.Hunt

Is-gadeirydd: Cynghorydd R.L.Taylor

Cynghorwyr: S.Bamsey, D.Cawsey, N.T.Hunt, H.N.James, 
C.J.Jones, S.Pursey a/ac S.Rahaman

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

N.Pearce, C.Morris, M. Thomas, N. Jones a/ac 
N.Headon

Gwahoddedigion y 
Cabinet:

Cynghorwyr L.Jones a/ac P.A.Rees

1. DATGANIADAU O FUDD

Gwnaeth yr aelod canlynol ddatganiad o fudd ar ddechrau'r cyfarfod:-

Y Cynghorydd S Rahaman -      Adroddiad ar y cyd y Pennaeth 
Cynllunio a Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r 
Pennaeth Eiddo ac Adfywio Parthed: 
Adroddiad Archwilio Cymru, Iechyd yr 
Amgylchedd - gan ei fod yn gweithio yn y 
fasnach fwyd yng Nghastell-nedd Port 
Talbot.

2. COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAENOROL

Cymeradwywyd cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol a gynhaliwyd ar 6 
Medi 2019 fel cofnod cywir.

3. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 2019-20

Nododd y pwyllgor y Blaenraglen Waith a gylchredwyd.

Tudalen169



- 2 -

Dydd Gwener, 18 Hydref 2019

4. DEWIS EITEMAU PRIODOL O AGENDA CYN CRAFFU BWRDD Y 
CABINET (ADRODDIADAU BWRDD Y CABINET YN AMGAEËDIG 
AR GYFER YR AELODAU CRAFFU)

Craffodd y Pwyllgor ar yr eitemau canlynol ar agenda Bwrdd y 
Cabinet:

Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Castell-nedd Port Talbot (CDLl) - ystyried y 
canfyddiadau, y casgliadau a'r argymhellion o drydedd Adroddiad 
Monitro Blynyddol (AMB) y CDLl 

Cafodd aelodau drosolwg o'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

Esboniodd swyddogion fod gofyn i'r cyngor baratoi Adroddiad Monitro 
Blynyddol (AMB) i'w gyflwyno i Lywodraeth Cymru erbyn 31 Hydref.  
Roedd yr adroddiad yn darparu'r sail ar gyfer monitro effeithiolrwydd y 
Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (CDLl).

Dywedodd swyddogion y byddai'r wybodaeth am yr adolygiad o'r 
CDLl ar gael mewn seminar i'r holl aelodau ar 28 Tachwedd. 
Anogwyd aelodau i ddod i'r digwyddiad.

Cynhaliwyd trafodaethau am gyflwyno tai yng Nghoed Darcy.  
Esboniodd swyddogion y bu heriau gyda'r datblygiad, ond mae a 
bydd trafodaethau'n parhau fel rhan o adolygiad.

Amlygwyd bod y CDLl yn cynnwys strategaeth a arweinir gan yr 
economi, a bod rhai ardaloedd o weithgarwch economaidd wedi 
gwella ac y bu cynnydd tuag at gyflawni'r strategaeth a arweinir gan 
yr economi.
 
Mewn ymateb i ymholiadau aelodau, pwysleisiodd swyddogion ei bod 
hi'n bwysig i aelodau, busnesau lleol a datblygwyr gefnogi proses 
adolygu'r CDLl a bod yn rhan ohoni. Amlygwyd y bydd gan 
berchnogion tir a phob parti arall â diddordeb gyfle i gynnig safleoedd 
i'w hystyried yn y Cynllun Disodli.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd i nodi'r adroddiad. 

Ymgynghoriad Llywodraeth Cymru:  Fframwaith Datblygu 
Cenedlaethol 2020-2040 - Ymgynghoriad Drafft 

Derbyniodd y pwyllgor wybodaeth am Ymgynghoriad Llywodraeth 
Cymru ar y Fframwaith Datblygu Cenedlaethol (FfDC) drafft.

Tudalen170



- 3 -

Dydd Gwener, 18 Hydref 2019

Roedd aelodau'n falch bod trefi Castell-nedd a Phort Talbot wedi'u 
nodi'n rhan o ardal â thwf cenedlaethol. 

Nodwyd bod fframwaith polisi'r FfDC yn gofyn am Gynllun Datblygu 
Strategol (CDS) gan bob rhanbarth; goblygiad hyn yw na fydd 
trefniadau rhanbarthol anffurfiol neu ymrwymiadau i weithio ar y cyd 
yn addas mwyach fel dull o gynllunio rhanbarthol sy'n ofynnol gan y 
FfDC. 

Esboniodd swyddogion y bydd angen i waith ar y CDS gyflymu a 
bydd yn adeiladu ar y gwaith cydweithio a gwblhawyd ac sydd eisoes 
yn mynd rhagddo. Amlygodd swyddogion hefyd y ffaith y bydd y CDLl 
mabwysiedig canlynol yn dod i ben yn 2026, ac yr eir ati i adolygu'r 
CDLl ochr yn ochr â'r CDS sy'n dod i'r amlwg. Er na fydd gan y CDS 
unrhyw ddylanwad nes iddo gael ei fabwysiadu'n ffurfiol, bydd angen 
i'r adolygiad o'r CDLl sicrhau y bydd y ddogfen yn cyd-fynd â'r 
fframwaith rhanbarthol sy'n cael ei ddatblygu.

Yn dilyn craffu, roedd y pwyllgor yn gefnogol o'r cynigion i'w hystyried 
gan Fwrdd y Cabinet.

Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot - Adroddiad 
Cynnydd Ansawdd Aer 2019

Derbyniodd aelodau drosolwg o Adroddiad Cynnydd Ansawdd Aer 
2019.

Cafwyd trafodaeth am leoliad yr Ardal Rheoli Ansawdd Aer yn Nhai-
bach/Margam, ac esboniodd swyddogion mai dyma'r lle mwyaf addas 
ac y byddai'n parhau mewn grym.  

Esboniodd swyddogion fod y cyngor yn gweithio gyda Tata, Cyfoeth 
Naturiol Cymru a Llywodraeth Cymru mewn gweithgor ar y cyd i reoli 
ansawdd aer.

Mewn ymateb i bryderon a godwyd ynghylch nifer cyfyngedig yr 
Ardaloedd Rheoli Ansawdd Aer (ARhAA), esboniodd swyddogion y 
caiff  ARhAA eu datgan pan fo ansawdd yr aer yn agos i lefel 
dderbyniol o lygredd neu'n uwch na hynny, felly mae'n newyddion da 
mai dim ond un ARhAA sydd gennym.

Aeth swyddogion ymlaen i esbonio bod ansawdd yr aer yn y 
fwrdeistref sirol yn gwella ac nad oes gennym faterion sy'n peri pryder 

Tudalen171



- 4 -

Dydd Gwener, 18 Hydref 2019

difrifol. Rydym yn parhau i fonitro PM10 ac maent yn parhau i ostwng. 
Mae mesuriadau wrth Orsaf Dân Port Talbot wedi gostwng ac yn dal i 
gydymffurfio'n hawdd ag amcanion ansawdd aer.

Amlygwyd bod amrywiol orsafoedd ar gyfer amrywiol lygryddion 
ledled y fwrdeistref sirol. Eglurwyd bod gorsafoedd nad oedd mwyach 
yn recordio problemau ansawdd aer wedi'u tynnu'n ôl o'r blaen gan 
nad oedd problem mwyach yn yr ardaloedd hyn.  Amlygwyd bod 
adroddiad wedi'i gyflwyno i bwyllgor blaenorol gyda'r argymhelliad i 
gau'r gorsafoedd, a bod aelodau wedi cytuno i hyn.

Yn dilyn craffu, roedd y pwyllgor yn gefnogol o'r cynigion i'w hystyried 
gan Fwrdd y Cabinet.

Adroddiad Archwiliad Cymru - Iechyd yr Amgylchedd 

Gwnaeth y cynghorydd S Rahaman ddatganiad o fudd a gadwodd yr 
ystafell cyn i'r eitem hon ddechrau.

Derbyniodd yr aelodau wybodaeth am gasgliadau Swyddfa Archwilio 
Cymru (SAC) o'u gwaith dilynol yn seiliedig ar yr adroddiad 
cenedlaethol "Cyflwyno â llai - yr effaith ar Wasanaethau Iechyd yr 
Amgylchedd a Dinasyddion".

Yn dilyn craffu, roedd y pwyllgor yn gefnogol o'r cynigion i'w hystyried 
gan Fwrdd y Cabinet.

CADEIRYDD

Tudalen172



- 1 -

Dydd Gwener, 29 Tachwedd 2019

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADFYWIO A DATBLYGU CYNALIADWY

(Ystafelloedd pwyllgora A/B-Canolfan Ddinesig Castell-nedd)

Aelodau sy’n Bresennol: Dydd Gwener, 29 Tachwedd 2019

Cadeirydd: Cynghorydd R.L.Taylor

Is-gadeirydd: Cynghorydd 

Cynghorwyr: J.Evans, H.N.James, C.J.Jones a/ac S.M.Penry

Swyddogion sy’n 
Bresennol:

S.Brennan, N.Headon a/ac N. Jones

Gwahoddedigion y 
Cabinet:

Cynghorwyr D.Jones

1. COFNDION Y CYFAEFOD BLAENOROL

Cymeradwywyd cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 18 Hydref, 
2019.

2. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH 2019/20

Nodwyd y Blaenraglen Waith.

3. CRAFFU CYN PENDERFYNU

Dewisodd y pwyllgor graffu ar yr eitemau canlynol ar agenda Bwrdd y 
Cabinet:

Dangosyddion Perfformiad Allweddol 2019/2020 - Chwarter 2 (1 Ebrill 
2019 i 30 i Medi 2019)

Cafodd aelodau drosolwg o'r adroddiad a ddosbarthwyd.

Tudalen173



- 2 -

Dydd Gwener, 29 Tachwedd 2019

Gofynnodd aelodau am ganran y ceisiadau cynllunio a ddiystyriwyd.  
Cytunwyd y byddai aelodau'n cysylltu â Phennaeth Cynllunio a 
Diogelu'r Cyhoedd i drafod ymhellach. 

Cafwyd trafodaeth ynghylch busnesau newydd yn y fwrdeistref sirol.  
Cytunwyd y byddai'r Pennaeth Eiddo ac Adfywio'n dod ag adroddiad i 
gyfarfod yn y dyfodol.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd nodi'r adroddiad.

4. MYNEDIAD I GYFARFODYDD

PENDERFYNWYD: Yn unol ag Adran 100A(4) a (5) o Ddeddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 1972, gwahardd y cyhoedd 
o'r eitemau busnes canlynol a oedd yn 
cynnwys datganiadau posib o wybodaeth 
eithriedig, fel a diffinnir ym Mharagraff 12, 13 
ac 14 o Ran 4 Atodlen 12A y Ddeddf uchod.

5. ADRODDIAD PERFFORMAID EIDDO

Rhoddodd swyddogion drosolwg o'r adroddiad preifat a gylchredwyd.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd nodi'r adroddiad.

6. TENDR ANFFURFIOL AR GYFER GWAREDU HEN SAFLE LIDO 
AFAN A SAFLE'R MAES PARCIO GORLIF

Rhoddodd swyddogion drosolwg o'r adroddiad preifat a gylchredwyd 
am hen safle Lido Afan.

Yn dilyn craffu, cytunwyd nodi'r adroddiad.
TRAILER_SECTION>

CADEIRYDD

Tudalen174


	Agenda
	 Y Flwyddyn Ddinesig 2019/2020                                                                                    16 Hydref and 27 Tachwedd 2019
	Cofnodion
	Minutes Public Pack, 27/11/2019 Council
	Cofnodion


	4 Cynllun Gostyngiadau Treth y Cyngor
	5 Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Castell-nedd Port Talbot 2011-2026
	Council (29-Jan-20) LDP Review Report.pdf
	RSDCB (24-Jan-20) LDP Review Report.pdf
	2 Appendix 1 LDP Review Report

	Blank Page

	6 Pwyllgor Safonau Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Castell-nedd Port Talbot - Aelod o'r Cyngor Tref/Cymuned
	7 Newidiadau i'r Cylch Cyfarfodydd
	8 Derbyn y canlynol ac unrhyw gwestiynau a godir gan yr aelodau, neu unrhyw faterion sydd i'w codi gan Aelodau’r Cabinet:-
	Cofnodion
	Minutes Public Pack, 17/10/2019 Social Care, Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Board
	Cofnodion

	Minutes , 18/10/2019 Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board
	Cofnodion

	Minutes , 29/11/2019 Regeneration and Sustainable Development Cabinet Board




